





7<sup>th</sup> European Conference on Service-Learning in Higher Education

# Transforming Europe through University Collaboration

24-25 September 2024

Palma Balearic Islands, Spain

# **Book of Abstracts**

Web version

# **COLOPHON**

Book of Abstracts of the 7<sup>th</sup> European Conference on Service-Learning in Higher Education 24-25 September 2024 – Palma de Mallorca, Spain

# **Editors**

Prof. Dr. Berta Paz Lourido – University of the Balearic Islands/SP Mrs. Kaat Somers – UCSIA/BE

# Organizer

European Association for Service-Learning in Higher Education (EASLHE)

# Host

University of the Balearic Islands/SP

# Scientific Committee

Ms. Kaat Somers – UCSIA/BE

Prof. Dr. Berta Paz Lourido - University of the Balearic Islands/SP Prof. Dr. Alzbeta Brozmanova Gregorova - Matej Bel University/SK

Dr. Irene Culcasi - LUMSA University/IT

Prof. Dr. Nicolas Standaert - KU Leuven/BE

Ms. Gilke Gunst – UCSIA/BE

EASLHE General Meeting

ERASMUS+ project SLIDE consortium

### **Conference Chairs**

Prof. Dr. Alzbeta Brozmanova Gregorova - Matej Bel University/SK

Dr. Irene Culcasi – LUMSA University/IT

Prof. Dr. James Kennedy – Utrecht University/NE

Prof. Dr. Rolf Laven - University College of Teacher Education Vienna/AU

Prof. Dr. Jörg Miller – University of Duisburg-Essen/GE

Prof. Dr. Berta Paz Lourido - University of the Balearic Islands/SP

Prof. Dr. Nives Mikelić Preradović – University of Zagreb/HR

Ms. Kathia Reynders - KU Leuven/BE

Prof. Dr. Pedro Jesús Ruiz-Montero – University of Granada/SP

Prof. Dr. Alina Simona Rusu – University of Agricultural Sciences and Veterinary Medicine

Cluj-Napoca/RO

Ms. Kaat Somers – UCSIA/BE

Prof. Dr. Wolfgang Stark – University of Duisburg-Essen/GE

Prof. Dr. Nicolas Standaert - KU Leuven/BE

Prof. Dr. Patricia Zunszain - King's College London,/UK

ISBN: Pending

First Published (expected): 2024

This document is licensed under the Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 International License CC BY-NC-ND 4.0.





# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Foreword	7
Keynote lecture: European Higher Education and Quality	8
Panel discussion: European Alliances and Service-Learning	9
Session 1.1: Student Impact of Service-Learning Courses	
Development of a Survey Instrument to promote Sustainability Competencies through Serv Learning among students (SeLeNa)	
Portrait of Engaged Students: Beyond developing Soft Skills	13
Addressing the Employment Needs of Madrid City through a Service-Learning Project base on SSME Techniques	
Session 1.2: Service-Learning Experiences in the Humanities	17
Unconventional Practice Placement: an Italian Service-Learning experience in Social Work Education	
Service-Learning meets Translator Education: the IN.TRA Experience	20
Session 1.3: Experiences in (inter)nation University Collaboration	22
Learning from EASLHE to Inform a Canadian Service-Learning Network	22
Models of International Service-Learning Collaborations	24
Service-Learning in Spain: The Role of Networks, Associations and Alliances	20
Session 1.4: Examples of Service-Learning Institutionalization	28
S-L i3 Lab – Institutionalization of Service-Learning at the University of the Basque Countries steps taken and challenges ahead	ry,
Service-Learning as a Lever for a Learning Pathway towards Cocreation	30
Position Service-Learning within the broader University Knowledge Production Mission to expand the Social Justice Discourse	
Session 2.1: Service-Learning Impact from Multiple Perspectives	33
The Many Dimensions of Service-Learning Impact: a Systematic Literature Review	33
Virtuous Professionals: Findings from a study on Staff Experiences of Community-engaged Learning at a Scottish University	
Evaluation of Service-Learning Programme in Physiotherapy: Impact on Service Recipients	37
Benefits of Service-Learning and Motivation to Engage in it - Community Perspective	39
Session 2.2: Co-creation with the Community	42
Teaching and Learning in the face of Eco-Anxiety	42
Learning with the City: Sharing Knowledge in Leiden	44
Challenges and Opportunities: Transforming a Postgraduate Module involving Older Adult the Community	
Session 2.3: Critical Perspectives on Service-Learning Practices	48
Effects & Best Practices related to a Service-Learning experience and Integrity-Based Mode	:1.48
Exploring the Challenges of Service-Learning in Contemporary Higher Education	5(



Session 2.4: Cross-University Partnerships	52
Community Service-Learning in Tourism Higher Education Institutions	52
ServU Project unveils: Guide Service-Learning in Higher Education for Ukraine's Recover	y54
Empowering Service-Learning in the Southern European Region: The Uniservitate Project example of Networked Learning	
Session 3.1: Cross-University Partnerships	59
Measuring Effects on Quality of Participation & Citizenship Education Dimensions: Learn from Unexpected Results	_
Fostering Civic-Mindedness: The Role of Service-Learning in Social Work Education	60
Unbundling the Impacts of a Student-Led Service-Learning Course on Volunteering after School	62
Session 3.2: Service-Learning in Teacher Education	<b>6</b> 4
Democratic Engagement in Post-Democracy: Facilitating Mutual Societal Learning	64
"To Read or Not to Read That's the question." Service-Learning in Initial Teacher Train	
Session 4.1: Critical Reflections in Service-Learning Research	68
The very Same, but Different - Distinguishing Different Types of Service-Learning	68
A systematic review of Published Qualitative Research on Service-Learning in Physiothera	ру 70
Mapping Service-Learning Practice & Research in Europe: Challenges in Evolving Contex	t73
Session 4.2: Service-Learning in an International Context	75
Challenges and Recommendations of an International Service-Learning Trajectory	75
MicroMundo: Bridging Citizen Science and Service-Learning to promote Antibiotic Resistant Awareness in the Community	
ICU2 Foundation Service-Learning Projects: Student Volunteers' Impact on the delivery o Vision Care to the Underserved	
Development of Inclusion and Social Justice by University Service-Learning with Migrants Europe's land border with Africa	
Session 4.3: Processes of Service-Learning Institutionalization	83
Hasselt University as a Civic University: How do we integrate our Civic Mission in our Education?	83
An Opportunity to reinforce Service-Learning in Higher Education: a Code of Ethics and Conduct for Service-Learning Projects	
Investing in Service-Learning Student Leaders to Promote Institutional Culture Change	87
Building a Catholic university community marked by a commitment to Service Learning	88
Session 5.1: Service-Learning Research in Primary & Secondary Schools	90
Service-Learning and In-service Teachers. Analysis of Results and Evaluation of Tools in a Case Study	
Erasmus@school: The value of Reflective Practices in a Service-Learning project with Erasmus Students	92
Empowering Schools in Socially Disadvantaged Areas and Tomorrow's Teachers: Experie from a German Service-Learning Seminar	



Session 5.2: Service-learning & the Power of Stories	96
Bridging Academia over Poverty: a Data Science Service-Learning initiative	96
Stories and Memories: Development of a Service-Learning project in Gerontology	
Development of Storytelling to enhance Executive Functions	100
Session 5.3: Service-learning in Teacher Education	102
Narrating Development, Weaving Identity – an experience of Serving-Learning within a Tailoring Workshop	102
Academics' Reflections on the Personal and Professional Impact of using Service-Learning Undergraduate Teaching	_
The Impact of Service-Learning with TPR method on competences of EFL Teacher Education Students	106
Session 6.1: Service-Learning Impact on Students' Attitudes	108
Exploring Impact of Service-Learning on University Students' Community Representation	ıs 108
Understanding the Impact of Community Service Learning through the Lenses of Student Agency and Awareness	
Session 6.2: Transdisciplinarity in Service-Learning	112
Civic Reflection on Action: Institution-Wide Civic Reflection Module at Hasselt Universit	y.112
Breaking the Barriers: Introducing Credit Bearing Interdisciplinary Service-Learning in a U Higher Education Institution	
Discover. Experiment. Co-create. Learn. Case study of a new Transdisciplinary Partnershi Community-Engaged Learning	
Session 6.3: Digitalization in Service-Learning	118
Digitally Competent, Socially Conscious: Engaging the Degrees in Education in Service- Learning	118
Service-Learning in Computer Science: an Opportunity to work in Accessibility	119
Session 6.4: Resources for service-learning institutionalization	121
Innovation Resources for Best Practices in your Service-Learning Teaching	121
Mapping and Assessing diversified Community-Engaged Teaching & Learning Practices u TEFCE Toolbox - YUFE Case Study	
Interventions to Deepening Community-Campus Partnerships: Multi-Campus Reflections Research Results – Updates	
Poster presentations	127
Poster 1 – SLIDE: Service-Learning as a pedagogy to promote Inclusion, Diversity and D Empowerment	
Poster 2 – Towards an Integrated Approach to Service Learning Within and Outside the Program	129
Poster 3 – The Role of Reflection in fostering Spiritual Dimension in Service-Learning Prat University: a Systematic Review of Literature	
Poster 4 – A Minor in Service-Learning: Learning by Doing – Consulting to Social	4
Entrepreneurs, lessons from more than a decade of teaching	133



Workshops
Workshop 1 – How Tailored Care-ful Training supports Impactful Research with Communities: Reflections on Practice
Workshop 2 – Digital Development: Training Program for Higher Education Students136
Workshop 3 - Reflection becoming Innovation in Service-Learning: When and How?137
Workshop 4 – Brainstorming the Future of Civic Engagement: University Collaborations for Inclusive Learning and Community Service
Workshop 5 – Rethinking Campus-Community Relations: Asset-Based Approach to Equitable Partnerships
Workshop 6 – The Influence of the Cultural Context on Community Service-Learning Practices
Workshop 7 – Two in One: The Fusion of Citizen-Science and Barcamp - A Synergy for Promoting Service-Learning
Workshop 8 – Collaborative Knowledge Mobilization in Campus-Community Partnerships 145
Workshop 9 – Reflection as a Transversal Axis in Service-Learning
Workshop 10 – How to choose Assessment and construct a Curriculum-Based Portfolio in Community-Engaged Learning?148
Workshop 11 – Which Community? Conceptualizing and Institutionalizing University Relations with Social Partners
Workshop 12 – Advancing Service-Learning Research through a Future-Focused Global Research Agenda
Workshop 13 – Designing a Learning Pathway towards Service-Learning and Cocreation: a Practical Toolbox
Workshop 14 – The World Café Approach in Service-Learning
Workshop 15 – Unravelling the Rationales, Responses and Roles of Practitioners when embedding Service-Learning
Workshop 16 – Community Need at the Heart of Service Learning/Community Engaged Learning (SL/CEL)



# **FOREWORD**

It is my pleasure to present this Book of Abstracts that condenses the efforts of researchers, academics, students, community entities, and leaders of political advocacy in Higher Education. Service-learning has expanded in recent years throughout the different European regions, making possible a large part of the illusions, values and commitments acquired in the process of building what we know today as Europe, and that is much more than a dimension of physical geography. There are other dynamic maps, other possible geographies in European Higher Education, that are being shaped by the wind of socio-economic challenges, legislative initiatives and multiple cultural realities. Europe's multidimensional diversity is a challenge, but it also represents an important opportunity for managing changes from the local to the regional, national, European and global spheres, underpinned by values of civic engagement, equity and social justice. Issues such as the alliance of nations, national dignity, cooperation and solidarity, as well as the union of common responsibility require a cosmopolitan freedom and democracy that must be achieved by people taking ownership of building Europe together. Due to that, European higher education can, or is called upon to, contribute to the aim of a new social contract by promoting the culture of experiential learning engaged with the community. Service-Learning is an integrated learning pedagogy based on partnerships with the community that requires reciprocity and provides mutual benefits for all actors involved: students, social partners and institutions. Such a pedagogy aspires to delineate shapes of conduct confronting contradictory traditions of thought in the wake of mutual enrichment to foster in our days a new social contract.

The 7<sup>th</sup> ECSLHE is articulated to illustrate how Service-learning improves academic understanding of subject matter, skills learned, and the ability to apply knowledge and reframe complex social issues. This is only possible with rigorous research that allows us to measure and to understand the processes, products and impacts of service-learning. Previous research on service-learning has shown positive effects on students' lives including cultural awareness, social responsibility, and student cognitive learning outcomes. Therefore, it is essential to institutionalize these practices. In the end, we are talking about equity in education.

The abstracts included in this book cover service-learning at the critical level of its impacts, (inter)national university collaboration, transdisciplinarity, co-creation with the community, cross-university partnerships, critical reflections on research, processes of institutionalization and emerging technologies. Both the European framework and the policies for quality Higher Education introduce the context in which most of the projects presented at this conference were developed. Other experiences come from other parts of the world contributing to contrast and enrich service-learning in Higher Education. By reading these abstracts, a person familiar with Service-Learning can gain many new ideas, compile a set of instruments to measure it, gather recommendations for its successful implementation in universities, or lines for future research. A reader unfamiliar with this pedagogy can also identify multiple examples of how it can be developed in Higher Education. But even more important, it will be able to become aware of the growing community of people involved in the promotion and institutionalization of Service-Learning in Higher Education. Join us and keep updated for the next conference!

Berta Paz Lourido University of the Balearic Islands, EASLHE



# **KEYNOTE LECTURE**

# European Framework and Policies for Quality Higher Education

# Maria Kelo

Director of Institutional Development, European University Association

# Berta Paz Lourido

Vice-president of the European Association of Service-Learning in Higher Education

# **Abstract:**

The European Higher Education Area (the EHEA) has a solid framework for quality assurance in the form of the Standards and guidelines for quality assurance (the ESG). Common criteria for quality are important to support and enable international cooperation such as student mobility, joint programmes and other joint education provision, and even European university alliances. But is the current framework sufficient to detect and support enhancement in all elements we consider as integral to quality higher education? Do they allow for sufficient flexibility in terms of different types and formats of education (from digitally supported education and interdisciplinary programmes to work-place and service-learning? What should the future of the European quality assurance look like to ensure our higher education systems remain relevant and sustainable? After a brief presentation of the current framework, the EU priorities for quality higher education, and some current key trends, the session will look into addressing some of these questions with focus in Service-Learning as a strategic way to reinforce both the social dimension of the universities and the quality in Higher Education.

# Biography:

Maria Kelo is Director of the Institutional Development at the European University Association (EUA). The unit's work focuses on issues related to higher education learning and teaching, recognition and quality assurance. She is also a member of the Swiss Accreditation Council and a member of the Executive Board of EQAR. Before joining EUA in January 2022, Maria was for over a decade the Director of ENQA, the European Association for Quality Assurance in Higher as well as member of the EQAR Executive Board in 2013-2020. She took part in European policy making processes within the Bologna Process and through cooperation with the European Commission. Prior to joining ENQA, Maria worked for nine years in the field of international higher education in different European organizations and as a private consultant and has gained significant experiences on issues such as quality assurance, international higher education, and higher education reform.

Berta Paz Lourido is Associate Professor of Physiotherapy, at the UIB. She holds a PhD with European Mention in Education. Berta is Vice-President of the European Association of Service-Learning in Higher Education (EASLHE), Director of the Innovation Unit in sustainable development, health and global justice through service-learning (iApS2030), and President of the Spanish Association of Service-Learning in Higher Education. As director of the European Observatory of Service-Learning in Higher Education (EOSHLE) she coordinated projects such as the European Service-Learning Public Declaration on Civic Responsibility of Higher Education, and the Green Paper on Service-Learning in European Higher Education. Berta is an advisor at the Institute for Educational Research and Innovation (IRIE) and the National Agency for Quality Assessment and Accreditation of Spain (ANECA).



# PANEL DISCUSSION

# **European Alliances and Service-Learning**

# Pilar Aramburuzabala

Autonomous University of Madrid, Spain

# Bojana Ćulum Ilić

University of Rijeka, Croatia

# Marjolein Zweekhorst

Vrije Universiteit Amsterdam, Netherlands

# Abstract:

Established by the European Commission since 2017, the European Universities Initiative is promoting the creation of the so-called European University Alliances. These Alliances are long-term cooperation projects between higher education institutions in the Member States which, among other objectives, aim to improve the quality of higher education in all its dimensions and contribute to the development of the European Education Area and the competitiveness of European universities. After a brief introduction to each of the alliances represented at this conference (CIVIS, YUFE and AURORA), three questions will be proposed to open the debate between the speakers and the participants: a) In what way has service-learning been articulated in your alliance? b) What concrete actions have been developed in relation to service-learning and what difficulties have they faced? c) What suggestions or recommendations would you make to other alliances already established or that may be stablished in the future? These questions could be linked with the specific case of the University of the Balearic Islands, host of this conference and partner of the EUNICOAST European Alliance, whose official presentation will take place in September 2024, in parallel to the International Week of Service-Learning in which the 7th ECSLHE is framed.

# Biography:

Pilar Aramburuzabala holds a PhD in Education by the Complutense University of Madrid. She is currently working at the School of Teacher Training and Education of the Autonomous University of Madrid as an Associate Professor. Since 1997 she oriented her academic interests towards the fields of civic engagement and service-learning. She was the founding President of the Spanish Association of Service-Learning in Higher Education (ApS(U)), the European Association of Service-Learning in Higher Education (EASLHE) and the European Observatory of Service-Learning in Higher Education (EOSLHE). Pilar is promoter of the Service-Learning Expert Group within the CIVIS Alliance (Europe's Civic University Alliance). In CIVIS, she has organized multiple training and dissemination activities, such as mapping of practice, blended intensive programs, service-learning awards, and guides.

**Bojana Ćulum Ilić** works as a Full Professor at the University of Rijeka, Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences (Croatia). Her research interests lie at the intersection of engaged university, engaged teaching and learning pedagogy and youth civic education, while her teaching follows community-engaged pedagogy. At her university, she initiated policies related to service-learning and was engaged in creating the University Charter on Formal Recognition of Students' Competences Gained Through Community-Based Engagement. She has been engaged in many



EU funded projects focused on university community engagement and service-learning development in the EU. The University of Rijeka is a member of YUFE University Alliance (Young Universities for the Future of Europe), and Bojana is UNIRi leader of the working package dedicated to community and civic engagement.

Marjolein Zweekhorst is professor Innovation and Education in the health and life sciences at the Athena Institute, VU Amsterdam. She wrote her PhD thesis on institutionalisation of an interactive approach to technological innovation (defence 2004). Her current research is focused on 1) methodology development for inter- and transdisciplinary research and 2) development of educational approaches and innovations aiming to prepare students for inter- and transdisciplinary research. She leads the Broader Mind Community Service Learning (CSL) Team of the VU University, which aims to involve CSL within all programs of the VU. In 2022 with this team won the European Triple Engagement Award for one of the CSL strategies. Marjolein was involved in two work packages of Aurora Alliance related to CSL and co-creation. Currently, she is also involved in four other EU projects focusing on integration of CSL in education.



# SESSION 1.1 STUDENT IMPACT OF SERVICE-LEARNING COURSES

Development of a Survey Instrument to promote Sustainability Competences through Service-Learning among Students (SeLeNa)

Bremer, Ann-Kathrin<sup>1</sup>, Brok, Dr. Ulrike<sup>2</sup>, Lindau, Prof. Dr. Anne-Kathrin<sup>3</sup>

Conference track: Empirical research on service-learning and service-learning impact

**Keywords:** Education for Sustainable Development (ESD), Higher Education Teaching, Impact, Learning Out-comes, Questionnaire

# **Abstract:**

Universities play a central role in addressing diverse global challenges (Rieckmann & Bormann, 2020). In fulfilling their social responsibility, they contribute to the development of students' personalities and skills through the courses they offer. Service Learning (SL) has emerged as an effective approach to holistic education and is increasingly being integrated into university curricula (Stöhr & Herzig, 2021). Moreover, SL is gaining recognition as a viable pedagogical tool for Education for Sustainable Development (ESD) (Rieckmann, 2021). The trans- and interdisciplinary cooperation in various SL projects promotes the scientific examination of socially relevant problems (Bartsch & Grottker, 2020), which leads to the development of skills that promote the management of global challenges and the shaping of transformation processes (Spraul et al., 2020). However, empirical data regarding the impact of SL on students' learning outcomes (Bartsch & Grottker, 2020), particularly in relation to sustainable development skills (Reinders, 2016; Bormann et al., 2022), remains limited. The presented research project aims to fill this gap.

The BMBF-funded project "Senatra - Service Learning and Sustainable Transformation at Universities" led among others by the Catholic University of Eichstätt-Ingolstadt and the Martin Luther University Halle-Wittenberg seeks to explore how SL can contribute to a comprehensive institutional sustainable transformation of universities (Whole Institution Approach). The central research interest is the question: What influence does SL have on the acquisition of skills and competences by students? Based on interdisciplinary research findings, the authors have developed a psychological impact model (SeLeNa) that considers the influence of different dimensions of SL. This model and the questionnaire developed (Bremer, Brok & Lindau, 2024, submitted) consider quality criteria of SL (HBdV, 2020), situational variables, and ESD aspects (e.g., motivation or sustainability awareness) to determine their influence on learning success and quality in the context of ESD. For example, key competences in the field of sustainability will be investigated. The development of the questionnaire is based on the current state of research and involved several stages, expert consultations and iterative revisions to ensure the content validity. A pilot study was conducted to test the first version of the questionnaire during the winter semester of 2023/24 and was therefore distributed to students in Service Learning (SL) seminars on sustainable development at three different universities through an online platform. There is a version of the survey that is used PRE the seminars, which covers the following areas: organisation, personal items and



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Catholic University of Eichstätt-Ingolstadt

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Catholic University of Eichstätt-Ingolstadt

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Martin Luther University Halle-Wittenberg

competences and the POST version additionally adds quality criteria of SL. The three PRE sections and the five POST sections include mostly Likert scaled items which are measured on a 5 point scale ranging from 'strongly disagree' to 'strongly agree'. A total of 109 students participated in the survey, with 46 students completing the PRE survey and 35 students completing the POST survey. The validity of the instrument was tested using factor analysis and correlation with other measures. Reliability was assessed with Cronbach's alpha (Döring et al. 2016). The presentation will introduce the SeLeNa model and the associated questionnaire and will also discuss findings from the validation phase and implications for future research.

- Bartsch, G. & Leonore G. (2020). Service Learning mit Studierenden: Ein kurzer Handlungsleitfaden. Weinheim: Beltz. http://nbn-resolving.org/urn:nbn:de:bsz:31-epflicht-1819670
- Bormann, I., Singer-Brodowski, M., Taigel, J., Wanner, M., Schmitt, M. & Blum, J. (2022). Transformatives Lernen durch Engagement. Soziale Innovationen als Impulsgeber für Umweltbildung und Bildung für nachhaltige Entwicklung. Abschlussbericht (Umweltbundesamt, Hrsg.) (Texte 54). Dessau-Roßlau. https://www.umweltbundesamt. de/publikationen/transformatives-lernen-durch-engagement-soziale
- Bremer, A.-K., Brok, U., & Lindau, A.-K. (2024). Service Learning als Methode zur Förderung von Nachhaltigkeitskompetenzen bei Studierenden Entwicklung eines Instrumentes zur Erfassung der Wirksamkeit (SeLeNa) (submitted).
- Döring, N., Bortz, J. & Pöschl, S. (2016). Forschungsmethoden und Evaluation in den Sozial- und Humanwissenschaften. 5. Edition. Berlin: Springer. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-642-41089-5
- Hochschulnetzwerk Bildung durch Verantwortung/Redaktionsgruppe Qualität (HBdV). (2020). Zehn Kriterien ein Referenzrahmen für gelingendes Service Learning. https://netzwerk-bdv.de/wp-content/uploads/2023/11/Qualitaetskriterien\_HBdV.pdf
- Reinders, H. (2016). Service Learning theoretische Überlegungen und empirische Studien zu Lernen durch Engagement (1. Aufl.). Weinheim, Basel: Beltz Juventa. http://www.beltz.de/de/nc/verlagsgruppe-beltz/gesamtprogramm.html?isbn=978-3-7799-3380-9
- Rieckmann, M. & Bormann, I. (Hrsg.) (2020). Higher Education Institutions and Sustainable Development. MDPI. https://www.mdpi.com/books/pdfview/book/2783
- Rieckmann, M. (2021). Service Learning für nachhaltige Entwicklung. In Boos, A., Eeden, M. den van & Viere, T. (Hrsg.), CSR und Hochschullehre. Transdisziplinäre und innovative Konzepte und Fallbeispiele (Management-Reihe Corporate Social Responsibility, S. 185–198). Berlin: Springer Gabler. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-662-62679-5\_9
- Spraul, K., Hufnagel, J. & Höfert, A. (2020). Der Beitrag von Service Learning zur Agenda 2030. In Rosenkranz, D., Oberbeck, N. & Roderus, S. (Hrsg.), Service Learning an Hochschulen. 1. Aufl., 170–75: Beltz Juventa.
- Stöhr, J. & Herzig, C. (2021). Verantwortungsbewusste Unternehmensführung am Beispiel der Gemeinwohl-Ökonomie mithilfe von Service Learning und Transdisziplinarität lehren. In Boos, A., Eeden, M. den van & Viere, T. (Hrsg.), CSR und Hochschullehre. Transdisziplinäre und innovative Konzepte und Fallbeispiele (Management-Reihe Corporate Social Responsibility, S. 141–183). Berlin: Springer Gabler. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-662-62679-5\_9



# SESSION 1.1 STUDENT IMPACT OF SERVICE-LEARNING COURSES

# Portrait of Engaged Students: Beyond Developing Soft Skills

Michiels, Gloria<sup>1</sup>, Heymans, Eleonore<sup>2</sup>, Hiligsmann, Philippe<sup>3</sup>

- <sup>1</sup> UCLouvain
- <sup>2</sup> UCLouvain
- <sup>3</sup> UCLouvain

# Conference track: Empirical research on service-learning and service-learning impact

**Keywords:** student engagement, extra-academic skills

# **Abstract:**

In a university and professional environment where both individuals and institutions seek to stand out, it seems all the more important to enable students to develop more extra-academic skills in order to promote their socio-professional integration. It is in this context that our institution wishes to encourage student participation. To this end, we have carried out an extensive survey of alumni in order to draw up a profile of an engaged student and to identify the benefits and barriers to engagement. For the purposes of this presentation, we will define student engagement as a very broad concept that encompasses the projects, both academic and non-academic, in which students invest their time during their university studies. This engagement can take place in different areas of activity, be it cultural, associative, sporting, solidarity, environmental, family, etc.

The aim of our contribution is to present the results of a survey based on a quantitative approach. After outlining the methodology used, we will present the results of the survey, which show that 62% of students at our institution are involved. We will illustrate these results by highlighting the various opportunities for student engagement offered within the university and by briefly describing the specific features of student life on campus that seem to facilitate the many opportunities for extra-curricular activities. In fact, we found that 73% of students who got involved did their undergraduate degree at our institution. In addition, we will look at the skills developed through engagement activities and detail the many benefits of engagement activities cited by respondents. We conclude our presentation by questioning the role of engagement in the student journey: to what extent is it the role of a university to develop the potential of skills related to academic skills? How can we help students to make the most of these skills? We will look critically at the limitations of the methodology used and also question the foundations of engagement more broadly. We will therefore offer a critical reading of the competency-based approach and question the socio-economic dynamics of student engagement.

# References:

Julie Couronné, Camille Dupuy, François Sarfati, Jules Simha. S'engager pour trouver un emploi ? Une logique utilitariste de l'engagement étudiant. 2020. Hal-02573903

Mary Stuart, Catherine Lido, Jessica Morgan and Lucy Solomon, (2011) The impact of engagement with extracurricular activities on the student experience and graduate outcomes for



widening participation populations, Active Learning in Higher Education 12:3, 203-215, DOI: 10.1177/1469787411415081

Rick D. Axelson & Arend Flick (2010) Defining Student Engagement, Change: The Magazine of Higher Learning, 43:1, 38-43, DOI: 10.1080/00091383.2011.533096



# SESSION 1.1 STUDENT IMPACT OF SERVICE-LEARNING COURSES

Addressing the Employment Needs of Madrid City through a Service-Learning Project based on SSME Techniques

Marcos López-Sanz<sup>1</sup>, Valeria de Castro<sup>2</sup>, Esperanza Marcos<sup>3</sup>, Maricela Salgado<sup>4</sup>

Conference track: Empirical research on service-learning and service-learning impact

Keywords: Service-Learning, Service Science, Management and Engineering, Employment support

# **Abstract:**

In the city of Madrid, one of the areas where social progress is most needed is in the creation of active, efficient and effective employment policies. Specifically, one of the needs identified by the Madrid Employment Agency is to be able to bring employers and the unemployed into contact with each other. Solving this circumstance is of vital importance for the progress of Madrid society. On the other hand, Service-Learning (SL) is an educational innovation methodology aimed at promoting curricular and social competences in students, offering a comprehensive education and strengthening curricular sustainability and university social responsibility (Samino, 2021). Moreover, SL projects are usually aligned with the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) proposed by the UN in its 2030 Agenda (UN, 2015). It is in this context that several URJC (Universidad Rey Juan Carlos) professors have developed an SL project in conjunction with the Employment Agency of the city of Madrid and students of the Degree in Science, Management and Service Engineering (SSME Degree).

The aim of this SL project has been to raise the social awareness of university students through their involvement in the creation of a service that would link unemployed people and organizations, companies or professional employers in the city of Madrid. As such, the objective we set ourselves has been multiple. Primarily, the creation of the employment service itself, which has served to connect unemployed people contacted by the Madrid City Council with different actors involved in job creation such as local companies and organizations and the Madrid Employment Agency itself. But it has also intended to demonstrate the usefulness or feasibility of using SSME techniques in the context of an SL project. Finally, from the teaching point of view, the participation of several students as the backbone of the project activities has served as a real experience of the application of the knowledge and skills acquired throughout the degree. As such, in order to carry out the planned work, a series of activities have been carried out using techniques and methodologies from SSME such as a Design Thinking workshop (Razzouk et al. 2012), modelling of the user experience with Customer Journey Maps (Rosenbaum et al, 2017), characterization of the people involved in the service using person diagrams and person models (Stikndorn et al., 2018), measurement of specific aspects by defining KPIs (Olsina et al., 2019) and the creation of prototypes of technological service



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Rey Juan Carlos University

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Rey Juan Carlos University

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Rey Juan Carlos University

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Rey Juan Carlos University

solutions. All the experiences of the all the involved participants were evaluated using a multifocal perspective using both qualitative and quantitative instruments.

The main aspects to be highlighted from the social experience carried out within the framework of the SL project presented can be summarized in the following points: on the one hand, to have understood and empathized with the social needs of all the actors involved with the Employment Agency; connecting with their real experiences and needs so that they could be better addressed by the Agency; and, on the other hand, to have identified and proposed improvements in the services offered to citizens, employers and entities that collaborate with the Employment Agency; proposing improvements in the design of their user experiences and indicators that allow to know and evaluate the performance of their processes by the technicians of the Employment Agency and also improvements regarding their technological platform.

- Bitner, M.J., Ostrom, A.L. and Morgan, F.N. (2008). Service blueprinting: A practical technique for service innovation, California Mgmt Review, Univ. of California Press.
- GREM. Rúbrica para la autoevaluación y la mejora de los proyectos APS, 2014: www.aprenentatgeservei.cat/intra/aps/documents/aps\_autoevaluacio\_cast\_IMPA5.pd f
- Demirkan, H. and Rabinovich, E. (2010). Moving forward and making a difference: research priorities for the science of service, Journal of Service Research, Vol. 13 No. 1, pp. 4-36, doi:10.1177/1094670509357611
- Maglio, P.P. and Spohrer, J. (2008). Fundamentals of service science. Journal of the Academy of Marketing Science, Springer US, Vol. 36 No. 1, pp. 18–20.
- Olsina, L., Dieser, A. (2019). Metrics and indicators as key organizational assets for ICT security assessment. Elsevier. https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-411474-6.00002-5
- Ostrom, A.L., Bitner, M.J., Brown, S.W., Burkhard, K.A., Goul, M., Smith-Daniels, V., Puig, J., Martín, X., & Rubio, L. (2017). ¿Cómo evaluar proyectos de aprendizaje servicio? Voces de la Educación,2(2), 122-132. Retrieved January 25th, 2022, from: https://hal.archivesouvertes.fr/hal02534364/document
- Razzouk, Rim & Shute, Valerie. (2012). What Is Design Thinking and Why Is It Important?. Review of Educational Research. 82. 330-348. doi:10.3102/0034654312457429
- Rosenbaum, M.S., Otalora, M.L. and Ramírez, G.C. (2017). How to create a realistic customer journey map. Business Horizons, Elsevier, Vol. 60 No. 1, pp. 143–150.
- Salgado, M., De Castro Martínez, M. V., Marcos Martínez, E., López-Sanz, M., & Martín-Peña, M. L. (2022a). Driving organisational change in SMEs using service design. Journal of Service Theory and Practice, 32(5), 701-736.
- Samino García, R. (2021). Experiencias de Aprendizaje Servicio (ApS) en la Educación Superior: aprender haciendo un servicio a la comunidad. Experiencias de aprendizaje servicio (ApS) en la educación superior, 1-133.
- Stinkdorn, M., Hormess, Edgar, M., Adam, S. and Jakob., L. (2018), This Is Service Design Methods, BIS Publishers.
- United Nations (2015). Transforming our World: The 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development.



# SESSION 1.2 SERVICE-LEARNING EXPERIENCES IN THE HUMANITIES

# Unconventional Practice Placement: an Italian Service-Learning Experience in Social Work Education

Corradini, Francesca<sup>1</sup>, Landi, Camilla<sup>2</sup>, Raineri, Maria Luisa<sup>3</sup>

- <sup>1</sup> Centro di Ricerca Relational Social Work, Università Cattolica del Sacro Cuore, Milano, Italy.
- <sup>2</sup> Centro di Ricerca Relational Social Work, Università Cattolica del Sacro Cuore, Milano, Italy.
- <sup>3</sup> Centro di Ricerca Relational Social Work, Università Cattolica del Sacro Cuore, Milano, Italy.

# Conference track: Best practices and practical experiences in service-learning

**Keywords:** Social work education, Unconventional Practice Placements, Relational social work, Reciprocity, Community

# **Abstract:**

This contribution aims to present a practice learning experience, called Unconventional Practice Placements (UPPs), that the Università Cattolica del Sacro Cuore in Italy has been offering for more than 10 years in the context of social work education. UPPs are based on the core ideas and values of the Service-Learning approach (Nadel et al., 2007; Petracchi et al., 2016; Gerstenblatt & Gilbert, 2014) and the Relational Social Work method (Folgheraiter, 2017; Folgheraiter and Raineri, 2017). The key concept underpinning this practical learning experience is reciprocity, whereby social work students, as 'experts' in professional help, help people to improve their life situation and, at the same time, people help the expert, in an exchange of professional knowledge on the one hand and experiential knowledge on the other. In this context, the promotion of participation is crucial. Thus, during UPPs, students work with a network of people (professionals from public or voluntary organizations, service users, carers and members of the community) to facilitate dialogue and collaboration to address one or more problems they share. Thus, the outcomes of UPPs are generally community social work projects that start from a common concern or desire for improvement that emerges from communities (Begun et al., 2010). Projects are designed by students together with a 'steering group' of interested people who are responsible for the whole process, from planning to monitoring the social interventions carried out. Other people who were not involved in the planning process, but who are willing to collaborate, may also be involved in the implementation of the project actions. UPPs are scheduled in the third year of the Bachelor's degree and in the second year of the Master's degree. They're closely linked to social work methods courses and are supported by university tutors who are qualified social workers, through weekly student group work based on a peer-to-peer learning perspective.

Over the last ten years, more than 600 UPPs have been carried out, involving more than 5,000 people (Raineri et al., 2022). Various projects have been carried out: self-help/mutual aid groups, social events, recreational activities, initiatives to provide practical or emotional support, awareness-raising and training activities, with different objectives such as promoting social inclusion, mutual support, promoting active citizenship, community problem solving, social service planning, community development. The community members involved in the



UPPs found the students to be supportive figures in promoting improvement processes; the students were able to better learn many useful skills for facilitating participatory planning processes in the field of social work. Some research carried out in the last 5 years highlight the UPPs projects' impact in the communities involved. The data (Raineri et al., 2022) show that in 70.8% of the cases the projects continued in full or in part, mainly thanks to the motivation and commitment of the partners of the steering group (58%) and the student as a volunteer (27%). This highlights the high level of involvement of communities and organizations in developing the projects. Another important outcome of these experiences is that 19.2% of students were employed by a public or third sector organization as a result of the UPP.

In realizing UPPs, the students have to overcome numerous challenges: first, unlike in typical practice placements, students are not placed with a formal organization and do not have a supervisor who assigns them precise tasks. Students are expected to conceive and develop the project themselves from the beginning, with the required negotiation with various stakeholders: their university on one side and citizens, communities, users and/or professionals and agencies, on the other. This often causes anxiety among students because they do not have a priori instructions for what they must do or how to do it. Moreover, students must define and implement a social work project along with professionals, volunteers, users, and citizens, but it is clear that, as students, they risk not being taken seriously by the other people involved, especially in institutional contexts. Furthermore, it is important to consider that students may experience difficulties exercising appropriate skills in communicating with and facilitating a group during the planning process.

The group work and the university tutor help students to face these challenges. Group learning is used to provide students with facilitation skills through a process of practical learning and direct experimentation. Classroom workshops are particularly similar to self-help groups (Steinberg, 2004), with the tutor assuming the role of facilitator. During the classroom workshop, students develop additional reflections on professional learning derived from their fieldwork, and working together encourages and enables them to plan and improve their practice learning activities: this process is important in helping students connect social work theory and practice. In addition to classroom workshops, students have access to individual supervision interviews. In these interviews, the student is encouraged to reflect on his/her practice placement and plan future actions. In this context, the tutor does not evaluate the student. The interview techniques, such as reformulating ideas and giving feedback, are meant to promote self-awareness of the problematic issues to be overcome by students.

In this presentation, the main characteristics of this innovative learning experience will be presented, using data collected thanks the survey with students and the reports that social work students have to write at the end of their UPPs.

- Begun, A. L., Berger, L. K., Otto-Salaj, L. L., & Rose, S. J. (2010). Developing effective social work university—Community research collaborations. Social Work, 55(1), 54–62. https://doi.org/10.1093/sw/55.1.54
- Folgheraiter, F. (2017). The sociological and humanistic roots of relational social work. Relational Social Work, 1(1), 4–11. https://doi.org/10.14605/rsw111601
- Folgheraiter, F., & Raineri, M. L. (2017). The principles and key ideas of relational social work. Relational Social Work,1(1), 12–18. https://doi.org/10.14605/rsw111602
- Gerstenblatt, P., & Gilbert, D. J. (2014). Framing service learning in social work: An interdisciplinary elective course embedded within a university–community partnership. Social Work Education, 33(8), 1037–1053. https://doi.org/10.1080/02615479.2014.935731



- Nadel, M., Majewski, V., & Sullivan-Cosetti, M. (Eds) (2007). Social Work and Service Learning: Partnerships for Social Justice. Lanham: Rowman & Littlefield.
- Petracchi, H. E., Weaver, A., Schelbe, L., & Song, H. A. (2016). Service learning in baccalaureate social work education: Results of a national survey of accredited programs. Journal of Social Work Education, 52(3), 325–336. https://doi.org/10.1080/10437797.2016.117462
- Raineri M.L., Corradini F., Landi C., Limongelli P. (2022). Unconventional Practice Placements: Creativity, Partnership and New Professional Opportunities in an Italian Experience of Social Work Field Education, in Rajendra Baikady, Sajid SM, Varoshini Nadesan and M. Rezaul Islam (eds.) (2022) The Routledge Handbook of Field Work Education in Social Work, 436-454. ISBN: 978-1-032-12607-4(hbk).
- Steinberg D.M. (2004). The mutual aid approach to working with groups: Helping people help one another. London: Routledge.



# SESSION 1.2 SERVICE-LEARNING EXPERIENCES IN THE HUMANITIES

# Service-Learning meets Translator Education: The IN.TRA Experience

Bernardini, Silvia<sup>1</sup>, Stempniewicz, Patrycja Lidia<sup>2</sup>, Ballerini, Gaia<sup>3</sup>

- <sup>1</sup> University of Bologna.
- <sup>2</sup> University of Bologna.
- <sup>3</sup> University of Bologna.

# Conference track: Best practices and practical experiences in service-learning

**Keywords:** Translator Education, Service-Learning, Community Engagement, Professional Development

### **Abstract:**

Given the important role played by translators with respect to community involvement, activism, and social transformation (Taibi & Ozolins, 2016), and the constant call for the honing of professional translation competencies (EMT, 2022; EFFORT, 2023), the significance of servicelearning as an innovative pedagogical tool in translator education cannot be underestimated (Tocaimaza-Hatch, 2018). However, so far attention in translation pedagogy has been devoted mainly to pedagogical approaches favoring project-based experiences (see e.g. the International Network of Simulated Translation Bureaus (INSTB), van Egdom et al., 2020), while disregarding the need to also foster active citizenship and self-reflection in university students. An informal survey conducted among EMT members in 2020 showed that only 25% of the participants had heard about service-learning and understood its main tenets, let alone implemented it in their degrees (Fabbri, 2022).

Building upon this groundwork, we advocate for an academic model that combines socio-constructivist project-based translation pedagogy (Kiraly, 2019) with service-Learning principles and methods (Furco 1996, Butin 2003). The first makes it possible to apply and boost the knowledge, skills and abilities acquired in the individual modules of a translation degree course, rooting them in professional experience; the second enables the development of active citizenship skills, by stimulating reflection on the practical civic engagement and solidarity values in the community. More precisely, we introduce IN.TRA, a student-driven pro bono language service provider founded in 2021 at the Department of Interpreting and Translation of the University of Bologna (Italy) within the academic curriculum of the Master's in Specialized Translation.

We describe the theoretical and methodological underpinnings of the initiative, its implications, pitfalls and affordances. IN.TRA students put their language, translation and cultural skills at the service of our community partners, NPOs and NGOs. By offering them interlingual services, they help them to disseminate their activities through translation. The collaboration towards a common purpose on the one hand helps the community partners to break down the language and cultural barriers that may hinder the activities of development cooperation projects in which the community partners operate; on the other, it enables students to develop key citizenship skills, essential for the shaping of their career future trajectory.



We also present the findings of a qualitative exploratory study aimed at assessing both students' perceptions of service-learning and its effects on the activities of our community partners. Through an in-depth analysis of responses to pre- and post-questionnaires and students' electronic reflective diaries (Bringle & Hatcher, 1999), our aim is to offer insights into the transformative impact of service-learning on students' professional development and personal growth into well-informed and impactful individuals. We conclude by suggesting that service-learning offers a scalable model that is in line with mainstream socio-constructivist approaches to translator education. As such, it could be successfully rolled out to other translation and interpreting degrees, and even tailored to other academic programs in the humanities, particularly those addressing students of modern languages and linguistics, equipping them with the competencies they need to thrive as professionals and citizens.

- Bringle, R. G., & Hatcher, J. A. (1999). Reflection in service learning: Making meaning or experience. Evaluation/Reflection, 23. https://digitalcommons.unomaha.edu/slceeval/23
- Butin, D. W. (2003). Of what use is it? Multiple conceptualizations of service-learning in education. Teachers College Record, 105(9): 1674–1692.
- Hurtado Albir A., Rodríguez-Inés P., & van Egdom G.-W. (2023). Methodological guide to use the Common European framework of reference for translation levels A and B (non-specialist translator). https://www.effortproject.eu/framework-for-translation-levels-a-b/guide-to-use-the-framework
- EMT Board (2022). Competence Framework. https://commission.europa.eu/document/download/b482a2c0-42df-4291-8bf8-923922ddc6e1\_en?filename=emt\_competence\_fwk\_2022\_en.pdf
- Fabbri, M. (2022). IN.TRA: un progetto di service-learning all'interno del Dipartimento di Interpretazione e Traduzione dell'Università di Bologna. [Master Thesis], University of Bologna, Corso di Studio in Specialized translation [LM-DM270] Forlì.
- Furco, A. (1996). Service-learning: A balanced approach to experiential education. In Expanding boundaries: Serving and learning (pp. 2–6). Washington, DC: Corporation for National Service.
- Kiraly, D. (2019). Authentic project work and pedagogical epistemologies: A question of competing or complementary worldviews? In Towards authentic experiential learning in translator education (pp. 1–16). Newcastle upon Tyne: Cambridge Scholars.
- Taibi, M., & Ozolins, U. (2016). Community translation. London: Bloomsbury.
- Tocaimaza-Hatch, C. (2018). Linguistic and social affordances in the translation and interpretation course via Service-learning, Cuadernos de ALDEEU, Special Issue on Service-learning and Spanish for Specific Purposes in U.S. Higher Education, 33: 53–86.
- van Egdom, G-W., Kalle K., Vandepitte, S., Fernández-Parra, M., Loock, R., & Bindels, J. (2020). Empowering Translators through Entrepreneurship in Simulated Translation Bureaus, Hermes Journal of Language and Communication in Business, 60: 81–95.



# SESSION 1.3 EXPERIENCES IN (INTER)NATIONAL UNIVERSITY COLLABORATION

# Learning from the EASLHE to inform a Canadian Service-Learning Network

Smeltzer, Sandra<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Faculty of Information and Media Studies, Western University.

# Conference track: Collaboration & alliances for service-learning

Keywords: Canada, Europe, Network Development, Research

### **Abstract:**

In this presentation, I will describe the development of a nascent service-learning (SL) network across the Canadian university system, highlighting the important role played by the European Association of Service-Learning in Higher Education (EASLHE) in its formation. With the exponential growth of experiential learning (EL) across Canadian higher education, SL is on the rise throughout the country's university system (Smeltzer et al., 2022). In the first half of this presentation, I will provide an overview of my in-depth primary research, conducted between April and September 2023, that maps SL throughout the country. The first of its kind in Canada, this research produced key findings in the following areas: how SL is rhetorically positioned in institutional strategic plans; the size and scope of centralized SL personnel; where SL is housed in each respective university (e.g., teaching and learning centres, community engagement offices, broader EL units); and insights from SL academic and non-academic staff regarding the current role and future trajectory of SL within and beyond Canadian borders.

In the second section of the presentation, I will argue that this growing field of scholarship and practice in Canada would benefit from a common set of principles, as well as venues to share SL resources and best practices (Lund & Bragg, 2020; Universities Canada, 2020, p. 6). The former Canadian Alliance for Community Service Learning is long-defunct and although the Co-operative Education and Work-Integrated Learning (CEWIL) organization is the primary voice for EL in Canada, SL is relegated to a very small role in this network. My primary research thus revealed a strong desire for a sustainable, bilingual SL network composed of individuals who develop, coordinate, facilitate, and critique SL activities.

I have recently co-established a small community of practice for SL in the country and launched a website dedicated to SL scholarly resources, tips and guides, events and calls for papers, as well as a list of national and international SL website links. The EASLHE has served as a foundational model for this burgeoning network in Canada. While it may not, at first glance, appear challenging to develop a network in a single country, Canada is the second largest nation in the world, with 80 publicly assisted universities and over 300 satellite campuses, spread across 10 provinces and three territories, and in two official languages. Additionally, the country has seen considerable growth in first-generation and international students, and universities are struggling to respond to significant regional government pressures to expand university-based EL programming.

As an invested member of EASLHE since 2019, I have gained significant insight into how to build a cooperative network across a vast and diverse set of locales. In the presentation, I will therefore



highlight what aspects of the European model have been relevant to the Canadian context and close with provocative questions for attendees to consider how other international contexts can learn from the challenges, opportunities, and limitations of this European model.

- Aujla, W., & Hamm, Z. (2018). Establishing the roots of community service-learning in Canada: Advocating for a community first approach. *Engaged Scholar Journal: Community-Engaged Research, Teaching, and Learning*, 4(1), 19-37.
- Lund, D. E., & Bragg, B. (2020). A Campus-Wide Community-Engaged Learning Study: Insights and Future Directions. *Engaged Scholar Journal*, 6(2), 31-51.
- Pinto, J. C., & Costa-Ramalho, S. (2023). Effects of service-learning as opposed to traditional teaching-learning contexts: a pilot study with three different courses. *Frontiers in Education*, 8, 1-12.
- Ribeiro, Á., Aramburuzabala, P., & Paz, B. (2021). Reflections on service-learning in European higher education. *Revista Iberoamericana de Aprendizaje-Servicio*, 12, 3-12.
- Smeltzer, S., Sperduti, V. R., & Leon, C., & Park, I. (2022). Labouring for a cause: Community engaged pedagogy during a pandemic. *Workplace, 32*, 49–60.
- Sperduti, V. R. & Smeltzer, S. (2022). Community-oriented Experiential Learning: Fostering Ethical High-Impact Practices for the Future. In J.C. Hughes, J Mighty, and D Stockley (Eds.) *Taking Stock 2.0: Transforming Teaching and Learning in Higher Education* (pp. 5–345).
- Universities Canada. (2020). Strengthening campuses and communities to build a prosperous Canada: Regional perspectives on the social impact of Canadian universities, pp. 1-17. https://www.univcan.ca/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/Regional-perspectives-on-social-impact-of-Canadian-universities-report-accessible.pdf



# SESSION 1.3 EXPERIENCES IN (INTER)NATIONAL UNIVERSITY COLLABORATION

# Models of International Service-Learning Collaborations

Chambers, Donna<sup>1</sup>, Rodríguez Mourelo, Belén<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Penn State Berks.

Conference track: Collaboration & alliances for service-learning

**Keywords:** Practical experience, service-learning, collaborations

# Abstract:

Penn State University has collaborated with international institutions to establish experiential learning centers as well as ongoing service-learning projects that sustain an agenda of collaboration and community engagement. The relationships created between Penn State and other institutions are key to the development of impactful learning experiences or HIPs for faculty and students, and testament to ongoing Service-Learning best practices and projects (Chambers & Rodriguez Mourelo, 2020). The purpose of this presentation is to share and reflect upon the implementation, expectations, and outcomes of how the authors created international service-learning projects through establishing collaborations between Penn State University, the University of Split in Croatia, and the Fundación Interconectados in Venezuela. Chambers and Rodríguez-Mourelo will share the aftermath of the projects' inception at these institutions and describe the rewards and challenges of how international service-learning projects create footprints for additional collaborations with community partners.

Presenters Dr. Donna Chambers and Dr. Belén Rodríguez Mourelo are both academics and professors at Penn State. With years of experience in service-learning and community engagement behind them, the presenters will share their experience of implementing service-learning projects in five different Non-Governmental Organizations in Europe and another project in Latin America. They will discuss the methods used to meet the specific needs of each organization and reflect upon where the projects may have fallen short. They will also explain how they converted community requests into service-learning courses and how they plan to fashion these programs, and others like it, into sustainable programs that are mutually beneficial to both community and university.

Following the service-learning model used with the Faculty of Economics in Split, Croatia, Chambers and Rodríguez Mourelo recently established an International Service-Learning Project with the Fundación Interconectados in Venezuela. This partnership generates mutual expertise for the development of Virtual Collaborative Multidisciplinary Teams (VCMT) in Venezuelan communities. An "initial collaborative multidisciplinary group" (ICMG) composed of academics from Venezuelan universities and Penn State Berks, identifies teachers and students that will participate in the project; trains the participants; addresses the problems and challenges in each community; evaluates the results; and establishes a permanent organizational structure for subsequent programs. These examples, among others, affirm that international collaborations



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Penn State Berks.

create a framework for high impact learning practices and lasting relationships between international institutions of higher learning. They underscore the invaluable experience attained when faculty, staff, and students share and exchange research, participate in conferences, and publish together worldwide.

- Billig, S. H. (2018, July 15). Why Service Learning is Such a Good Idea. https://scholarworks.gvsu.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=1019&context=colleagues
- Bringle, R. G., & Hatcher, J. A. (2000). Institutionalization of Service Learning in Higher Education. *The Journal of Higher Education*, 71(3), 273–290. https://doi.org/10.1080/00221546.2000.11780823
- Chambers, D., & Rodriguez Mourelo, B. (2020). International Collaboration A Case Study in Institutionalizing Service Learning in Higher Education. In Pilar Aramburuzabala, Carlos Ballesteros, Juan García-Gutiérrez y Paula Lázaro (Eds.), El papel del aprendizaje-servicio en la construcción de una ciudadanía global/ The Role of Service-Learning in the Construction of a Global Citizenship" (pp.961-967). Madrid: UNED.
- Conway, J. M., Amel, E. L. & Gerwien, D. P. (2009). Teaching and Learning in the Social Context: A Meta-Analysis of Service Learning's Effects on Academic, Personal, Social, and Citizenship Outcomes. *Teaching of Psychology 36(4)*, 233–245.
- Enos, S. (2016, August 22). Independent, Coexisting, Collaborating? How Institutions Are Organizing Their Efforts for Social Impact. https://www.aacu.org/diversitydemocracy/2016/summer/enos
- Furco, A., & Holland, B. (2004). Institutionalizing service-learning in higher education: Issues and strategies for chief academic officers. In M. Langseth & S. Dillon (Eds.), *Public work and the academy*. Bolton, MA: Anker Publishing Company.
- Jacoby, B. (2003). Building partnerships for service-learning. San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass.
- Kezar, A., & Rhoads, R. A. (2001). The Dynamic Tensions of Service Learning in Higher Education: A Philosophical Perspective. *The Journal of Higher Education, 72(2),* 148. doi: 10.2307/2649320



# SESSION 1.3 EXPERIENCES IN (INTER)NATIONAL UNIVERSITY COLLABORATION

# Service-Learning in Spain: The Role of Networks, Associations and Alliances

Paz-Lourido, Berta<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> University of the Balearic Islands.

# Conference track: Collaboration & alliances for service-learning

**Keywords:** Service-Learning, Spanish Higher Education, Collaboration, Alliances, European Higher Education Area.

### **Abstract:**

Service-learning requieres the development of partnerships. Without alliances, the development of this pedagogy would face many barriers in becoming a viable path to cultivate democratic citizens with an eco-centric vision of social justice. Still, it has been referred to that networking is fundamental to exchanging, deepening theories, exploring opportunities, and keeping servicelearning in the agenda of higher education. The importance of these and other associative and organizational strategies are of utmost importance to give visibility, promote and institutionalize service-learning. Among these organisational practices for the development of service-learning in higher education, the literature highlights that, while it is more common to read about networking, the heuristic density is more accentuated in the case of partnerships. Alliances in the pedagogical context of service-learning need to be further glossed over but we find a commitment to this type of collaboration from the local to the European and transregional context. The Spanish University System has 89 universities, 50 public and 39 private. From 2010, different non-formal and formal networks were created at national and regional level, some including academics, researchers in diverse disciplines, or students, while others involved service-learning university units, research groups or representatives at the national and regional level with the purpose of promoting the institutionalization of service-learning. At regional level, the Catalonian university service-learning network was created in 2015 followed by other regions as Madrid, Andalucia or more recently, Castilla y León. That coexists with a national association (Asociación de Aprendizaje Servicio Universitario, ApSU) created in 2017 as a formal structure that follows closely the Ministry political agenda for issues such as teaching, research, social responsibility and community engagement in higher education. This association has close ties with other associations and networks in higher education such as EASLHE at European level and REDIBAS at Iberoamerican level.

Besides that, service-learning is also included in the agenda of Spanish transregional university organizations that function as alliances such as the CRUE or Grupo9Universidades. It is worth mentioning that 46 Spanish universities are members in European University Alliances, some of those with a well-known involvement in service-learning.

There are several factors for educational managers to create successful service-learning partnerships, networks and alliances. They should be supported to produce a long-term strategy and a demanding educative vision, driven by the need for educative and situational innovation, coordinate service delivery or open up new educative environments. They should stay focused on



educational quality rather than on size or profit agendas, expand upon opportunities beyond their original mission statement, build strong alliances and value managerial tension, plasticity and self-criticism. At the same time, there are some key questions for the sustainability of service-learning partnerships, networks and alliances. This presentation will focus in some of these. The benefits, but also the risks, involved in having multiple organizations for service-learning in higher education will be stated, recalling the meanings of diverse types of collaboration to understand how an organization can move from one to another type of organization to better fit their purposes.

- Aramburuzabala, P., Opazo, H., & García-Gutiérrez, J. (Eds.). (2015). EL Aprendizaje-servicio en las universidades De la iniciativa individual al apoyo institucional. UNED. https://hdl.handle.net/20.500.14468/20681
- Bringle, R., Clayton, P., & Price, M. (2009). Partnerships in Service Learning and Civic Engagement Partnerships. A Journal of Service Learning & Civic Engagement. Vol. 1, No. 1, Summer. https://scholarworks.indianapolis.iu.edu/server/api/core/bitstreams/27f0dc7e-cee1-4e27-817b-f0a0126c3628/content
- Climent, T. (2022). *The beginnings of service learning in Catalonia*. RIDAS, Revista Iberoamericana de Aprendizaje-Servicio, 14, 36-60. DOI 10.1344/RIDAS2022.14.3
- Opazo, H., Aramburuzabala, P., & Cerrillo, P. (2016). A review of the situation of service-learning in higher education in Spain. *Asia-Pacific Journal of Cooperative Education*, 17(1), 75-91. https://files.eric.ed.gov/fulltext/EJ1114040.pdf.
- Paz-Lourido, B. (2023). Redes, partenariado y alianzas en el aprendizaje-servicio. Asociación de Aprendizaje-Servicio Universitario. DOI: https://doi.org/10.61005/APSUREDES2023
- Strait, J.R., & Lima, M. (Eds.). (2009). The Future of Service-Learning: New Solutions for Sustaining and Improving Practice (1st ed.). Routledge. https://doi.org/10.4324/9781003447825



# SESSION 1.4 EXAMPLES OF SERVICE-LEARNING INSTITUTIONALIZATION

S-L i3 lab, Institutionalization of Service-Learning (S-L) at the University of the Basque Country (UPV/EHU), steps taken and challenges ahead

López-Vélez, Ana Luisa<sup>1</sup>, Gezuraga, Monike<sup>2</sup>, Cruz, Esther<sup>3</sup>, Arriaga, Cristina<sup>4</sup>, Amiano, Iratxe<sup>5</sup>, Alonso, Israel<sup>6</sup>

- <sup>1</sup> University of the Basque Country (UPV/EHU).
- <sup>2</sup>University of the Basque Country (UPV/EHU).
- <sup>3</sup> University of the Basque Country (UPV/EHU).
- <sup>4</sup>University of the Basque Country (UPV/EHU).
- <sup>5</sup>University of the Basque Country (UPV/EHU).
- <sup>6</sup> University of the Basque Country (UPV/EHU).

Conference track: Processes of service-learning institutionalization

Keywords: Service-Learning, Institutionalization, University

### **Abstract:**

At a European level, the European Association of Service-Learning in Higher Education EASLHE (2021: 1) proposes "the institutionalization of Service-Learning in European Higher Education to promote civic engagement, contribute to the development of a fairer society and improve academic and social learning that favors the development of the students' competences". The European Observatory of Service-Learning in Higher Education (Ribeiro et al., 2021) indicates that European universities assume different roles in engaging with the social actors in their context and there is still a need to promote service-learning (S-L) as a pedagogical approach and methodology at the European level. In Spain, university policy compels us to rethink our work dynamics and move towards more inclusive, more responsible models, capable of responding to the great global challenges There are several documentary references that endorse the need to institutionalize S-L as a teaching methodology (Comisión de Sostenibilidad de la CRUE, 2015; Ministerio de Educación, 2011). As a result, the Organic Law of the University System (BOE, 22/03/2023) stresses that higher education institutions must encourage the participation of the university community in activities and projects related to the promotion of democracy, equality, social justice, peace and inclusion, as well as the Sustainable Development Goals.

In response to all this regulatory change, the National Service-Learning University Network (APS(U) network) presented the Canary Islands Declaration on Service-Learning in Higher 7th European Conference on Service-Learning in Higher Education "Transforming Europe through University Collaboration" Palma de Mallorca, 25 & 26 September 2024 Education at the 10th National and 4th International Congress on Service-Learning (Las Palmas, 2021), where all Spanish universities were invited to adhere to and make it public.

Within the University of the Basque Country (UPV/EHU), over the last 12 years various colleagues have been taking steps in teaching, research and in various management areas. But it is in the academic year 2022-2023 when the S-L i3 lab has been created within the scope of the Educational



Counselling Service (SAE/HELAZ), belonging to the Vice-Rectorate for Undergraduate Studies and Educational Innovation, in line with the UPV/EHU's Strategic Plan 2022-2025 and the University Plan 2023-2026. The S-L i3 lab presents as an organizational unit aimed at developing and consolidating priority teaching-learning methodologies and strategies for the UPV/EHU. The S-L i3 lab is managed by a team made up of teaching and research staff with extensive experience. The creation of this lab, and the provision of its meaning, content and functionality, has involved intense work from February to October 2023. It was formalized by resolution of the Vice-Rector for Undergraduate Studies and Educational Innovation, Ms. Laura Vozmediano, on 10 November 2023.

The steps taken at institutional level are as follows:

- Drafting of the framework document for the institutionalization of S-L;
- Mapping of S-L in the UPV/EHU;
- Infographics for the dissemination of S-L at the UPV/EHU;
- Participation of the laboratory in the I3 jendartea;
- Specific conference on S-L at the UPV/EHU led by the laboratory;
- Web page within the institutional site of the UPV/EHU with information about the Lab, the activities offered, useful documentation about Service-Learning in Higher Education, and a contact address.
- Response to queries received by the laboratory's e-mail from members of the university community.

The lines of work for the future focus on providing the UPV/EHU with a regulatory framework that contemplates the proposals of S-L within the university regulations; awareness-raising and training for teaching staff; establishment of a stable network of collaboration with institutions and civil society organizations. Lines of networking are also being established by participating in the G9 and in national and international congresses on S-L.

- Billig, S. H. (2018, July 15). Why Service Learning is Such a Good Idea. https://scholarworks.gvsu.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=1019&context=colleagues
- Bringle, R. G., & Hatcher, J. A. (2000). Institutionalization of Service Learning in Higher Education. *The Journal of Higher Education*, 71(3), 273–290. https://doi.org/10.1080/002215 46.2000.11780823
- Comisión de Sostenibilidad de la CRUE (2015). El Aprendizaje-Servicio como estrategia docente dentro del marco de la Responsabilidad Social Universitaria para la promoción de la Sostenibilidad en la Universidad. Documento aprobado por el Plenario. Jornadas de la Comisión de Sostenibilidad de la Conferencia de Rectores de las Universidades Españolas, 27 y 29 de mayo, León.
- European Association of Service-Learning in Higher Education. (2021). Policy Brief. A European Framework for the Institutionalization of Service-Learning in Higher Education. EASHLE-Policy-brief\_SL-in-European-Higher-Education\_web.pdf (easlhe.eu)
- Ley Orgánica 2/2023, de 22 de marzo, del Sistema Universitario (BOE núm. 70, de 23/03/2023) Ministerio de Educación, Secretaría General de Universidades. (2011). La responsabilidad social de la universidad y el desarrollo sostenible. Secretaría General Técnica
- Ribeiro, A., Aramburuzabala, P., & Paz-Lourido, B. (2021). Research Report on the institutionalisation of service-learning in European Higher Education. Research procedures and main findings. European Association of Service-Learning in Higher Education. Madrid. https://www.eoslhe.eu/



# SESSION 1.4 EXAMPLES OF SERVICE-LEARNING INSTITUTIONALIZATION

Service Learning as a lever for a learning pathway towards Cocreation: how our vision on education intertwines with institutionalization

Soens, Aaron<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Odisee University of Applied Sciences.

Conference track: Processes of service-learning in institutionalization

**Keywords:** Institutionalization, cocreation, curriculum development, soft skills, learning pathway

### **Abstract:**

This presentation aims to present a good practice centered around the institutionalization process at Odisee University of Applied Sciences. In the academic year 2023-2024 we had the opportunity to work on a project called "Learning pathway towards cocreation realized in international and intercultural contexts." This project focuses on curriculum development and is a means to support our programs in realizing our vision on education. This vision consists of four principles of which "active learning in authentic and cocreative contexts" is the major principle connected to Service Learning. Our goal is that every student has at least once experience a 'true' and authentic cocreation experience at the end of their programme.

Cocreation is defined as "a process that happens between professionals, researchers, actors from the field and/or society that is aimed at jointly tackling a 'complex problem'. A complex problem is a problem that cannot be easily solved from classical procedures or a single discipline because it contains multiple aspects or perspectives and uncertainties and depends on context factors and involved actors. All actors influence the process and its result, contribute and strengthen each other from their own expertise, experience and talents. Cocreation serves a common ambition, a common result and win-win in collaboration. The result of the cocreation is that the participants have learned from each other (e.g. trough reflection) and have taken a new step in tackling the problem whereas the university of applied sciences acts as a social actor catalyzing public service".

The first objective in our project was the enhancement of this definition with Service Learning elements as a way of institutionalizing this pedagogy. This results in the fact that every programme will implement some kind of service learning experience. We therefore had to define what we see as minimal requirements for the label 'service learning' and help teams reflect upon this elements. The second part of the project was aimed at the learning pathway towards this Service Learning project, ensuring that the experience is not an isolated gesture, but a well thought-out and integrated activity in the curriculum. Therefore we have a visual toolkit to help 7th European Conference on Service-Learning in Higher Education "Transforming Europe through University Collaboration" Palma de Mallorca, 25 & 26 September 2024 define the 'cocreation-skills' necessary in the 'learning' aspect of Service Learning. With this toolkit we also aim at maximizing the use of different (international/intercultural) contexts where students are confronted with. The third part of the project consisted in the formation of a community of practice. During this presentation we hope to inspire the audience with our approach to institutionalization (process) but also to provide some insight into the curriculum design tools we developed (content).



# SESSION 1.4 EXAMPLES OF SERVICE-LEARNING INSTITUTIONALIZATION

Position Service-Learning within the broader university knowledge production mission to expand the social justice discourse

Xypaki, Marie<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>SOAS University London, Head of Learning and Teaching.

Conference track: Processes of service-learning in institutionalization

**Keywords:** Service-Learning, knowledge production, decolonization, social justice

### **Abstract:**

The existing educational scholarship on Service-Learning's social justice mission primarily focuses on assessing the mutuality of relationships between universities and communities, whilst the ambition of equipping students with the capabilities and the critical awareness to address injustices has recently entered the social justice discourse. However, there is a missing link between these ambitions and the pedagogical application of service-learning for achieving social justice objectives, leaving critical queries unanswered such as: Are mutually beneficial relationships between the university and the community sufficient to address social justice, or should the engagement process consider who interacts with students to prevent perpetuating power imbalances and oppression?

Positioning Service-Learning within academia's main mission, that is the production of knowledge (Ball 2014), is the first step to restoring the missing link and reconceptualising more tangible ways that students and communities can transform by co-designing knowledge outcomes. The next step to restore the missing link is to understand the characteristics of knowledge in academia. Racism, patriarchy and capitalism (Auerbach et al 2022) are the legacy of coloniality that underpin knowledge production in universities. By centring diverse underrepresented communities in education and their diverse epistemologies (Mohanty 2003 p98), the potential of Service-Learning is unleashed as students can collaborate with diverse underrepresented communities and become agents of change through the co-construction of knowledge and capabilities. Decolonising knowledge production through the engagement of diverse underrepresented communities can also contribute to the calls to decolonise higher education in the UK (Andrews 2019 p702-704).

This presentation will share the findings of a qualitative study conducted in 2023. The study aims to conceptualise and operationalise a systematic Community Engagement Framework (CEF) within urban planning curricula, particularly focusing on diverse underrepresented communities, aiming for social justice outcomes. This encompasses both the theoretical curriculum content and the pertinent pedagogical approaches. The urban planning school of a Russell Group University served as the exploratory case study. The study draws on critical and decolonial knowledge theories and adopts an inclusive approach by capturing the voices of the three participants of a university-community partnership in teaching: students, communities and educators. The study enriches urban planning education literature by contributing a conceptual and operational understanding of 7th European Conference on Service-Learning in Higher Education "Transforming Europe through University Collaboration" Palma de Mallorca, 25 & 26 September 2024 2 how to engage diverse underrepresented communities using the principles of Praxis-Critical Reflection,



Co-design Pedagogy and Knowledge Democracy. The study also contributes a deeper understanding of the challenges such as limited institutional commitment by universities to grassroots partnerships, lacklustre quality assurance requirements regarding community engagement, and power imbalances between representative and participatory democracy. Nonetheless, this study provides educators with a systematic guide for designing socially just curricula, empowering communities with technical expertise, and fostering students' collaborative, co-design, and decolonial comprehension and capabilities in the face of sustainability challenges.

- Andrews, K. (2019). Blackness, empire and migration: How black studies transforms the curriculum. Area.
- Auerbach, Muñoz, S., Affiah, U., Barrera de la Torre, G., Börner, S., Cho, H., Cofield, R., DiEnno, C. M., Graddy-Lovelace, G., Klassen, S., Limeberry, V., Morse, A., Natarajan, L., & Walsh, E. A. (2022). Displacement of the Scholar? Participatory Action Research Under COVID-19. Frontiers in Sustainable Food Systems, 6.
- Ball, B. (2014). Knowledge democracy, higher education and engagement: Renegotiating the social contract. In M. Kariwo, T. Gounko, & M. Nungu (Eds.), A Comparative Analysis of Higher Education Systems.
- Mohanty, C. T. (2003). Feminism Without Borders: Decolonizing Theory, Practicing Solidarity. Duke University Press.



# SESSION 2.1 SERVICE-LEARNING IMPACT FROM MULTIPLE PERSPECTIVES

# The many Dimensions of Service-Learning Impact: a Systematic Literature Review

van Overbeke, Philine S.M.<sup>1</sup>, Meijs, Lucas<sup>2</sup>, Alade, Taslim<sup>3</sup>

- <sup>1</sup> Rotterdam School of Management, Erasmus University.
- <sup>2</sup> Rotterdam School of Management, Erasmus University.

Conference track: Empirical research on service-learning & service-learning impact

Keywords: Service-Learning, Volunteering, Impact, Systematic Literature Review

### **Abstract:**

Service-Learning courses are used to activate students' civic responsibility, provide the opportunity to apply knowledge and skills learnt from school, and can be incorporated in almost all academic disciplines. While addressing the needs of the community, it gives students a chance to develop a better understanding of course materials, a broader appreciation of their discipline and personal and social responsibility (Bringle & Hatcher, 2002). The current discourse about Service-Learning mostly focuses on the "learning" part. For students, Service-Learning courses are a "unique opportunity to grow both professionally and personally" (Lester et al., 2005, p.279). Service-Learning courses create value for students as they gain relevant experience, knowledge, and skills for their future careers (van der Voort et al., 2007). Moreover, students learn about important communication, interpersonal skills, and ethical and citizenship behaviours (Giles & Eyler, 1999).

Some studies also research the impact of Service-Learning on other actors, such as community organizations, their beneficiaries, higher education institutions, and society at large Cruz and Giles (2000) created an overview of literature focussing on community value of Service-Learning courses. They categorize three main value areas: Contributions to community development (e.g. social capital development), bridging town-gown gaps (e.g. university more accessible), and benefits for community partners (e.g. budgetary savings). Higher education institution also create value when offering Service-Learning courses. Service-Learning courses bring new life to the classroom, make overall teaching more enjoyable and result in more positive course evaluations (Bringle & Hatcher, 1996). The higher education institutes notice the value as Service-Learning programmes result in positive public relations because faculty and students are more involved in outreach activities within the community (van der Voort et al., 2007).

This systematic literature review explores and synthesizes the impact of Service-Learning for different stakeholders. We use a Boolean search string including the words "Service-Learning" and multiple terms representing "impact" in the Web of Science database. The review is limited to articles available in English, published between 2001 (the international year of the volunteer) and the present time. Both empirical and conceptual paper were included. This research contributes to the Service-Learning and volunteer management literature as it identifies and synthesises relevant studies in the field. With this paper we aim to reveal the importance of Service-Learning for



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Rotterdam School of Management, Erasmus University.

different stakeholders. The review will affirm our current knowledge and expose the gaps leading to a research agenda for the future, which includes a significant aspect on the "service" part, to complement the current discourse on Service-Learning which mostly focuses on the "learning" part.

- Bowen, G. A., Burke, D. D., Little, B. L., & Jacques, P. H. (2009). A comparison of service-learning and employee volunteering programs. *Academy of Educational Leadership Journal*, 13(3), 1-16.
- Bringle, R. G., & Clayton, P. H. (2002). Civic education through Service Learning: What, how, and why?. In *Higher education and civic engagement* (pp. 101-124). Palgrave Macmillan, New York.
- Bringle, R. G., & Hatcher, J. A. (1996). Implementing service learning in higher education. *The Journal of Higher Education*, 67(2), 221-239.
- Cruz, N., & Giles, Jr, D.E. (2000). Where's the Community in Service-Learning Research? *Michigan Journal of Community Service Learning, Fall 2000*, 28-34.
- Eyler, J., & Giles, D. (1999), Where is the learning in service learning? San Francisco, CA: Jossey-Bass.



# SESSION 2.1 SERVICE-LEARNING IMPACT FROM MULTIPLE PERSPECTIVES

Virtuous Professionals and the Third Mission of Universities: Findings from a study on staff experiences of Community-engaged Learning at a Scottish University

Coleman-Chan, Anthea<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Centre for Open Learning, University of Edinburgh.

Conference track: Empirical research on service-learning and service-learning impact

**Keywords:** Virtue ethics, staff experiences, institution

### **Abstract:**

Community-engaged Learning (CEL) is an intentional and structured pedagogical approach, which links learning objectives with community needs. Most of the existing literature is centred on Service-learning (SL) practice in the United States. While CEL and SL are inexorably linked, they are not necessarily interchangeable terms. CEL is a term often conflated with the concept of service-learning (SL) however, the literature suggests that CEL incorporates a broader range of learning activity than what has been defined as Service-learning (Aramburuzabala et al., 2019; Deeley, 2014, 2022; Hatcher & Bringle, 2012).

To date, there have been no in-depth studies on the experiences and perspectives of practitioners who engage with CEL (including SL) in a UK or more specifically, a Scottish Higher Education context. The thesis presents data collected from a qualitative study utilising documentary analysis of government and institutional literature and 23 in-depth interviews with University practitioners, managers and leaders. I explored factors which influence the perspectives and experiences of CEL practitioners at one Scottish, research-intensive Russell Group university.

I analysed the data using Reflexive Thematic Analysis (Braun & Clarke, 2006) using research methodology influenced by Margaret Archer's Morphogenetic (Archer, 1982), critical realist approach. According to Archer's theory of Morphogenesis, agents (individual people), culture and social structures experience change which is linked to the passage of time in complex ways. This study focusses on the experiences of academic staff and what this tells us about the underlying forces that influence them: the culture of their institution and social structures. At the same time, I examine ways in which these individuals take action to try to change the status quo and transform their cultural context.

The theoretical framework of my thesis is informed by Neo-Aristotelian virtue ethics (Hursthouse, 1999; MacIntyre, 2007), an approach which puts an emphasis on virtues of character. I argue that the ultimate purpose of universities should be to promote individual flourishing and emancipatory critical thinking (Kreber, 2016) for the common good. CEL contributes to the Third Mission of a university which is important to realising its ultimate purpose. The findings suggest that there are important discrepancies between how the university presents itself in public-facing literature and the level of support that CEL practitioners actually receive.



Through this study, findings confirm that academic staff see the ultimate purpose of universities as more than just generating income, preparing students for employment, or enhancing the national economy. They believe universities should also address community needs, promote individual flourishing and emancipatory critical thinking for the common good. I also identified how government policies can negatively impact the experiences of academic staff involved in CEL. These policies influence institutional priorities and create a culture where practitioners feel pressured to prioritise their job duties over their moral principles. Recommendations include suggestions for future research, making and maintaining a strategic, institutionally supported commitment to CEL and consultation on whether a normative ethical framework would be more appropriate than an institutional statement on values.

- Aramburuzabala, P., McIlrath, L., & Opazo, H. (2019). Embedding service-learning in European higher education. Routledge.
- Archer, M. S. (1982). Morphogenesis versus Structuration: On Combining Structure and Action. The British Journal of Sociology, 33(4), 455-483.
- Braun, V., & Clarke, V. (2006). Using thematic analysis in psychology. Qualitative research in psychology, 3(2), 77-101. https://doi.org/10.1191/1478088706qp063oa
- Deeley, S. J. (2014). Critical perspectives on service-learning in higher education. Palgrave Macmillan.
  - http://www.ezproxy.is.ed.ac.uk/login?url=http://www.palgraveconnect.com/doifinder/10.1057/9781137383259 Click here for full text
- Deeley, S. J. (2022). Assessment and service-learning in higher education: critical reflective journals as praxis / Susan J. Deeley. Springer.
- Hatcher, J. A., & Bringle, R. G. (2012). Understanding service-learning and community engagement crossing boundaries through research / edited by Julie A. Hatcher and Robert G. Bringle. Information Age Pub.
- Hursthouse, R. (1999). On virtue ethics / Rosalind Hursthouse. Oxford University Press.
- Kreber, C. (2016). Educating for civic-mindedness: nurturing authentic professional identities through transformative higher education. London; New York: Routledge, Taylor & Francis Group.
- MacIntyre, A. (2007). After virtue: a study in moral theory (3 ed.). University of Notre Dame Press.



# SESSION 2.1 SERVICE-LEARNING IMPACT FROM MULTIPLE PERSPECTIVES

# Evaluation of a Service-Learning Programme in Physiotherapy: Impact on Service Recipients

Jiménez-Sánchez, Carolina<sup>1</sup>, Calvo, Sandra<sup>2</sup>, Lafuente-Ureta, Raquel<sup>3</sup>

- <sup>1</sup> Departamento de Fisioterapia, Facultad de Ciencias de la Salud, Universidad San Jorge, Villanueva de Gállego, Zaragoza, Aragón. Instituto de Investigación Sanitaria de Aragón.
- <sup>2</sup> Departamento de Fisiatría y Enfermería, Facultad de Ciencias de la Salud, Universidad de Zaragoza, Aragón. Instituto de Investigación Sanitaria de Aragón.
- <sup>3</sup> Departamento de Fisioterapia, Facultad de Ciencias de la Salud, Universidad San Jorge, Villanueva de Gállego, Zaragoza, Aragón.

### Conference track: Empirical research on service-learning and service-learning impact

**Keywords:** Service-Learning, Physiotherapy, Education, Impact, Qualitative

#### Abstract:

Service Learning (SL) is a teaching method that combines the provision of a service to society with the acquisition of academic skills. The Final Degree Project (FDP) is an ideal subject for the development of SL projects, as it approaches students to their profession and provides them with experiential learning. In the Bachelor of Physiotherapy (PT) programme, the TDP focuses on the development of a final academic project that deepens theoretical and practical knowledge.

The SL-FDP programme of the PT Degree at Universidad San Jorge has been developed since the 2016-2017 academic year and has involved more than 2,400 people from the university and institutions during these years. The participants are students and teachers, as well as institutions, associations, and non-profit organisations, mainly from Zaragoza (Spain), but also from other national and international locations. Most of the participating institutions are non-profit organisations (NPO) for people with disabilities, but also underserved groups such as homeless people, international NPO or institutions that need a service that physiotherapy can provide and that contributes to improving the quality of life of its users.

Therefore, the aim of this research is to evaluate the impact of the SL-FDP programme of the PT Degree of the Universidad San Jorge on the people receiving the service. An evaluative research methodology using the content analysis technique was proposed. In addition, data triangulation was performed to improve the quality and reliability of the data. The qualitative study was conducted in accordance with the Consolidated Criteria for Reporting Qualitative Studies (COREQ). The informants were students, organizational leaders, and service recipients, all of whom participated in the SL projects. The qualitative data collection strategies were videos and reflective notebooks for the students and semi-structured interviews and focus groups for the organizational leaders and service recipients. The sample analysed consisted of 132 informants, including 39 students, 15 organisational leaders, and 78 service recipients.

Two categories were identified for the impact of the SL programme on the beneficiaries, each one is composed of several subcategories. The first category was "Usefulness of the service".



This category included several subcategories: "Awareness raising", where informants spoke of health workers becoming more human, being closer to the population and stimulating discussion and reflection; "Health promotion and prevention", where informants emphasised aspects such as adherence to medication, prevention of injuries and quality of care received; and "Learning about health", where informants reported learning about the body, exercise, and pathologies. The second category was "Changes in service users". Its subcategories were: "Emotional well-being", where patients talked about their mood, change in outlook and self-confidence; "Physical health", where participants reported changes in measured variables and a decrease in pain; and "Adherence to treatment', where informants emphasised adherence to physical activity and treatment.

In summary, the impact of the programme on users was multifaceted, with a focus on health integration and health-related learning. Future research is needed to assess whether this effect persists over time and whether the results can be extrapolated to other SL programmes.

- Bringle, R. G., & Hatcher, J. A. J. T. J. o. H. E. (1996). Implementing service learning in higher education. 67(2), 221-239.
- Hayward, L. M., & Li, L. (2017). Sustaining and improving an international servicelearning partnership: Evaluation of an evidence-based service delivery model. Physiother Theory Pract, 33(6), 475-489. doi:10.1080/09593985.2017.1318425
- Mejia Castillo, H. (2017). La metodología de investigación evaluativa una alternativa para la valoración de proyectos. Revista Iberoamericana de Bioeconomía y Cambio Climático, 3, 734. doi:10.5377/ribcc.v3i5.5945
- Nordon-Craft, A., Schwarz, B., Kowalewski, V., Hartos, J., Jurado Severance, J., & Bugnariu, N. (2017). Service-Learning Enhances Physical Therapy Students' Ability to Examine Fall Risk in Older Adults. J Allied Health, 46(3), e51-e58.
- Reichardt, C. S. (1986). Métodos cualitativos y cuantitativos en investigación evaluativa: Ediciones
- Rodríguez García, M., & Medina Moya, J. L. (2014). Entre la complejidad y el arte: el análisis de datos en cualitativa %J Index de Enfermería. 23, 157-161. Roper, E. A., & Santiago, J. (2014). Influence of service-learning on kinesiology students' attitudes toward P-12 students with disabilities. Adapt Phys Activ Q, 31(2), 162-180. doi:10.1123/apaq.2013-0086
- Sabariego Puig, M., Vilà Baños, R., & Sandín Esteban, M. d. l. P. J. R. r. d. i. i. r. e. e. (2014). El análisis cualitativo de datos con ATLAS. ti.
- Tejedor, F. J. T. J. R. d. i. e. (2000). El diseño y los diseños en la evaluación de programas. 18(2), 319-339.
- Tong, A., Sainsbury, P., & Craig, J. (2007). Consolidated criteria for reporting qualitative research (COREQ): a 32-item checklist for interviews and focus groups. International Journal for Quality in Health Care, 19(6), 349-357. doi:10.1093/intqhc/mzm042



## SESSION 2.1 SERVICE-LEARNING IMPACT FROM MULTIPLE PERSPECTIVES

# Benefits of Service-Learning and Motivation to engage in it – Community Perspective

Modić Stanke, Koraljka<sup>1</sup>, Vrtarić, Bernarda<sup>2</sup>

Conference track: Empirical research on service-learning and service-learning impact

Keywords: community partners, benefits, motivation, engagement, service-learning

#### **Abstract:**

Motivation for Service-Learning, along with the benefits of engaging in this pedagogical method has been extensively studied from the academic perspective (more students than teachers), while the community perspective is significantly less explored, especially related to strategic efforts of ensuring high-quality, reciprocal and sustainable partnerships. Therefore, a joint study was conducted by researchers from the Social Work Study Centre (Faculty of Law, University of Zagreb) and Ministry of Labour, Pension System, Family and Social Policy (Republic of Croatia) to examine (potential) community partners' perceived benefits of Service-Learning and their motivation to engage in it throughout Croatia. Specifically, the study aimed to determine the correlation between expected benefits of Service-Learning and motivation for engaging in Service-Learning, examine potential effect of previous experience with similar activities (volunteering, internship) on expected benefits and motivation for Service-Learning, to and to identify the main benefits and reasons (potential) community partners reflect on regarding their interest in Service-Learning.

The study used a combined quantitative and qualitative approach which included N=228 participants filling out an online survey. Each participant was a representative of an NGO experienced with conducting social service projects and/or programs, specifically instructed to fill out the survey from the NGO's (instead of personal) point of view. Participants categorised experience with first volunteering than practice as non-existing, occasional or regular. Due to extremely small number of NGO's without experience of volunteering, differences in benefits and motivation considering experience of volunteering included only two instead of categories.

To answer the first three problems, appropriate statistical procedures (analysis of variance, t-test, correlation coefficient) of quantitative data processing were used. Results confirmed the expected high correlation between perceived benefits and motivation to engage in Service-Learning (r=0.67), however, they did not provide support for the expected (increased) levels of perceived benefits and motivation related to NGOs with more extensive experience in volunteering (tb<sub>enefits</sub>(162)=1.33, p>0.05;  $t_{motivation}(161)=0.35$ , p>0.05) and internship (F<sub>benefits</sub>(1,161)=0.04, p>0.05; F<sub>motivation</sub>(160)=0.001, p>0.05). Instead, results suggest that in Croatia NGOs included in social service activities, regardless their experience, are quite perceptive of numerous benefits of Service-Learning and are (therefore) quite motivated to engage in it. To answer the last two problems and



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>University of Zagreb Faculty of Law, Zagreb.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Prison in Zagreb, Zagreb.

analyse the textual responses in the web survey, a qualitative content analysis was performed. Results demonstrated the main reasons for engaging in ServiceLearning were predominantly in line with identified perceived benefits i.e. popularisation of volunteerism, advancement in human resources and development of cooperation between academic and civic community, with the addition of enhancement of students' competencies. Additional benefits of engaging in Service-Learning from an NGO perspective include enhancement of social services, increasing visibility and advancement in networking and attracting donors.

The conducted research contributes to a better understanding of the community perspective regarding Service-Learning, identifies factors relevant not only for the establishment of new partnerships but also for the improvement of existing ones, and enables strategic planning of promotion activities, matching academic and community partners, and evaluation of Service-Learning impact.

- Abes, E.S., Jackson, G., & Jones, S.R. (2002). Factors That Motivate and Deter Faculty Use of Service-Learning. Michigan Journal of Community Service Learning, 9, 5-17.
- Basinger, N., & Bartholomew, K. (2006). Service-Learning in Nonprofit Organizations: Motivations, Expecations, and Outcomes. Michigan Journal of Community Service Learning, 12, 15-26.
- Compagnucci, L., & Spigarelli, F. (2020). The Third Mission of the University: A systemic literature review on potentials and constraints. Tehnological Forecasting & Social Change, 161, 12284.
- Celio, C. I., Durlak, J., & Dymnicki, A. (2011). A meta-analysis of the impact of service-learning on students. Journal of Experiential Education, 34 (2), 164-181.
- Chupp, M.G., & Joseph, M.L. (2010). Getting the Most Out of Service Learning: Maximizing Student, University and Community Impact. Journal Of Community Practice, 18, 190-212.
- Europe Engage Croatia National Report (2016). Retrieved from https://ec.europa.eu/programmes/erasmus-plus/project-result-content/7e5f06eb-ea25-4bb4-b8f1-9b351bc3848d/FULL%20UPLOAD%20OK%20OK.pdf
- Eyler, J. S., Giles, Jr. D.E., Stenson, C. M., & Gray, C. J. (2001). At A Glance: What We Know about The Effects of Service-Learning on College Students, Faculty, Institutions and Communities, 1993-2000. Vanderbilt University.
- Felder, J. P. (2022). The Role of Motivation in Community Partner Perceptions of Service Learning (Publication No. 2373) [Master's thesis, Georgia Southern University]. Electronic Theses and Dissertations.
- Ferrari, J.R., & Woeeall, L. (2000). Assessments by Community Agencies: How "the Other Side" Sees Service-Learning. Michigan Journal of Community Service Learning 7, 35-40.
- Furco, A. (1996). Service-Learning: A balanced Approach to experiential Education. Michigan Journal of Community Service Learning 7, 35-40.
- Geller, J.D., Zuckerman, N., & Seidel, A. (2016). Service-Learning as a catalyst for Community Development: How Do Community Partners Benefit From Service-Learning?. Education and Urban Society 48 (2), 151-175.
- Heffernan, K. (2001). Service Learning in Higher Education. National Campus Compact Brown University. 13. Lau, K. H., Chan, M.Y.L., Yeung, C.L.S., & Snell, R.S. (2021). An Exploratory Study of the Community Impacts of Service-Learning. Metropolitan Universities, 33 (1), 106-128.
- Mount, J. (16). Why donors give. Nonprofit Managment and Leadership, 7, 3-14.
- Modić Stanke, K., & Putarek, V. (2016). Odrednice interesa studenata za društveno korisno učenje [Determinants of students' interest in service learning]. In: M. Orel (Ed.), International



- Conference EDUvision 2016, Modern Approaches to Teaching the Coming Generations (pp. 1105-1117). EDUvision.
- Modić Stanke, K., & Mikelić Preradović, N. (2023). Service Learning Tackling Educational Inequality. In: R. Baikady, M. Sajid, J. Przeperski, V. Nadesan, R. Islam, & J. Gao (Eds.), The Palgrave Handbook of Global Social Problems (pp. 1-28). Springer International Publishing.
- Modić Stanke, K., Tomurad, I., & Majdak, M. (2021). Benefits and Implications of a hybrid Service-learning model. In: L. Gómez Chova, A. López Martínez, & I. Candel Torres (Eds.), Proceedings of the 14th International Conference of Education, Research and Innovation (pp. 740-748). International Academy of Technology, Education and Development.
- Paschal G. L., Hawkins, A., & Graybeal, L. (2019). Investigating the overlapping Experiences and Impacts of Service-Learning. Michigan Journal of Community service Learning 25 (2), 43-61.
- Petri, A. (2015). Service-Learning from the Perspective of Community Organizations. Journal of Public Scholarship in higher Education 5, 93-110. 7th European Conference on Service-Learning in Higher Education "Transforming Europe through University Collaboration" Palma de Mallorca, 25 & 26 September 2024
- Pribbenov, D. A. (2005). The Impact of Service-Learning Pedagogy on Faculty Teaching and Learning. Michigan Journal of Community Service Learning 11, 25-38. 21. Sandy, M., & Holland, B. A. (2006). Different Worlds and Common Ground: Community Partner Perspectives on Campus-Community Partnerships. Michigan Journal of Community Service Learning, 13 (1), 30-43.
- Vizenor, N., Souza, J.T., & Ertmer, J. J. (2017). Benefits of Participating in Service-Learning, Business-related Classes: assessing the Impact on the Community Partners. The Journal of Research in Bussines Education, 58 (1), 1-9.
- Vernon, A., & Ward, K. (1999). Campus and Community Partnerships: Assessing Impacts & Strengthening Connections. Michigan Journal of Community Service Learning 6, 30-37.
- Yorio, P. L., & Ye, F. (2012). A meta-analysis on the effect of fservice-learning on the social, personal, and cognitive outcomes of learning. Academy of management learning and education, 11 (1), 9-27.



### SESSION 2.2 CO-CREATION WITH THE COMMUNUTY

### Teaching and Learning in the face of Eco-Anxiety

Thomas-Hughes, Helen<sup>1</sup>, Barke, Jenny<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Cabot Institute for the Environment, University of Bristol.

### Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service-learning

Keywords: Eco-anxiety, co-research, participatory, pedagogy, higher-education

### **Abstract:**

There is a growing body of literature which points to the mental health implications for those studying, researching, and teaching environmental and sustainability related topics (Kelly, 2017; Pihkala, 2022). Young people are the most likely to report experiences of eco-anxiety (Clayton & Karazsia, 2020) and these feelings of anxiety can be particularly acute for young people who are studying and researching environmental issues (Pihkala, 2020a). Focusing on this is particularly important in the context of UK Higher Education which has been described as facing its own crisis of mental health and wellbeing (Lewis & Bolton, 2023).

In this session we will share insights and reflections from a collaborative research project which adopted a participatory approach, recognising that research is enhanced through experiential expertise (Collins & Evans, 2002). The project trained and supported 6 postgraduate students to carry out research with academic and student communities as co-researchers. To enable this, we designed and delivered bespoke research training and supported the group to develop, conduct and analyse research data. The project aimed to better understand how students experience environmental education and to develop improved practices for the delivery of sensitive and robust pedagogy in environmental education, including community-engaged projects.

We will outline the background to this project, share an account of how we facilitated the collaborative research process and worked with students, reflecting on how this approach supported the development of findings and recommendations. We suggest that training students as co-researchers needs careful thought, planning and flexibility, it involves facilitating a space where collaborators can share their skills and interests, interrogate the aims of the research, address pragmatic considerations, and develop shared plans. Research takes place within and across relationships and we recognise that creating these relationships involves developing shared understandings in an open dialogic space which requires both 'care-ful ethical planning' and the embracing of 'mess' (Manchester & Barke, 2020; Thomas-Hughes, 2018).

This paper concludes with consideration for how our findings and recommendations can shape best practice in community-engaged or service-learning pedagogy when projects are focused in areas relating to environmental change or sustainability. Highlighting how working with students as co-researchers can go beyond evaluation work and move into the realm of co-creating pedagogical content and insight that contributes to our understanding of teaching and learning in a more equal and less provider-receiver model.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>University of Exeter.

- Clayton, S., & Karazsia, B. T. (2020). Development and validation of a measure of climate change anxiety. *Journal of Environmental Psychology*, 69, 101434. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jenvp.2020.101434
- Collins, H. M., & Evans, R. (2002). The third wave of science studies: Studies of expertise and experience. *Social Studies of Science*, 32(2), 235–296.
- Kelly, A. (2017). Eco-anxiety at university: Student experiences and academic perspectives on cultivating healthy emotional responses to the climate crisis. *Independent Study Project (ISP) Collection*.
- Lewis, J., & Bolton, P. (2023). Student mental health in England: Statistics, policy, and guidance. https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/research-briefings/cbp-8593/
- Manchester, H., & Barke, J. (2020). Regulating for 'care-ful' knowledge production: researching older people, isolation and loneliness. In *Imagining Regulation Differently* (pp. 67–84). Policy Press.
- Pihkala, P. (2020). Anxiety and the ecological crisis: An analysis of eco-anxiety and climate anxiety. Sustainability (Switzerland), 12(19). https://doi.org/10.3390/SU12197836
- Pihkala, P. (2022). The Process of Eco-Anxiety and Ecological Grief: A Narrative Review and a New Proposal. *Sustainability (Switzerland)*, 14(24). https://doi.org/10.3390/su142416628
- Thomas-Hughes, H. (2018). Ethical 'mess' in co-produced research: reflections from a U.K.-based case study. *International Journal of Social Research Methodology*, 21(2), 231–242. https://doi.org/10.1080/13645579.2017.1364065



## SESSION 2.2 CO-CREATION WITH THE COMMUNUTY

### Learning with the City: Sharing Knowledge in Leiden

Wirtz, Coen<sup>1</sup>, Van Haaren, Marieke<sup>2</sup>

### Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service learning

**Keywords:** transdisciplinary education; local issues; different educational institutions

### **Abstract:**

Learning with the City (Leren met de Stad) is a collaborative programme of Leiden University, University of Applied Sciences Leiden, MBO Rijnland (secondary vocational education), and the municipality of Leiden. This programme brings together students from different programmes and institutes, policy makers, (welfare) organizations, and residents to work on local challenges in the city of Leiden. In this presentation we will highlight two projects within this programme.

The first project, "Traces of 3 October," focuses on the cultural heritage of the relief of Leiden on 3 October 1574 from the Spanish besiegers. This event is celebrated annually with extensive festivities throughout the city. The municipality observed that many residents, particularly younger individuals, were unaware of the historical and cultural significance of these celebrations. Consequently, they collaborated with university students of History and Archaeology, who examined various sources (both written and physical) to gather more information about the events of the siege. This research was published in a monthly chronicle in the local newspaper and utilised by students in secondary vocational education to develop a social media campaign targeting adolescents and young adults. These students also designed an 'epic quest' for this demographic, centred around eight historical locations in the city, which was published on an online platform. Additionally, a group of Commercial Economy students from the University of Applied Sciences developed a marketing campaign to promote this quest and other related activities. This project exemplifies the collaboration between students of diverse educational backgrounds, Leiden residents, the municipality, and local media.

The second project is an honours college course within the Faculty of Social Sciences titled "Learning in the City," involving 70-80 international students who analyse one of four different problems in interdisciplinary teams. These problems are identified and proposed by welfare organisations or the municipality but are further defined in collaboration with the students. Welfare organisations are particularly valuable partners for Learning with the City due to their strong connections to neighbourhoods and residents, as well as their willingness to accommodate students who can assist with their activities while conducting their research. This year, students investigated social cohesion in a diverse neighbourhood, garbage accumulation next to waste containers, the utilisation of public space in a densely populated neighbourhood, and the promotion of outdoor play among children. The student teams employed mixed methods to analyse these issues and were encouraged to engage with stakeholders, such as local residents, to develop tentative recommendations that could help alleviate the identified problems.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Leiden University.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Leiden University.

In this talk, we want to share what works well in these projects to stimulate transdisciplinary education, but we will also discuss several challenges we encountered, such as large student numbers, language barriers, interdisciplinary education, and managing different expectations.



## SESSION 2.2 CO-CREATION WITH THE COMMUNUTY

# Challenges and opportunities: transforming a postgraduate module involving older adults in the community

Puntil, Donata<sup>1</sup>, Zunszain, Patricia<sup>2</sup>

### Conference track: Good practices & practical experiences in service-learning

Keywords: postgraduate, older adults, challenges, intergenerational, flexibility

### **Abstract:**

This presentation will discuss our practical experiences running our Service-learning module at King's College London. We have been delivering this module to postgraduate students enrolled in the MSc Mental Health Studies at the Institute of Psychiatry, Psychology & Neuroscience since 2021. Named 'Self-Identity, Intergenerational and Intercultural Learning' (SIIL), the module provides students with theoretical material covering Positive Psychology, Intercultural Studies, Language & Intercultural Awareness, Qualitative Research Methodologies and Ageism, along with engagement with a local community of older adults within a Pensioner Centre in a working-class area of London.

The module has significantly grown in terms of students' number starting from the first year with 9 students to the current year with 38 students enrolled. This increase in numbers is strictly connected to the module sitting within a compulsory pathway, which brings its own advantages and challenges. One of the main challenges is indeed the compulsory element that had been initially introduced to secure a healthy number of participants to the module, although it has also brought some resentment and unhappiness among the student population, since some students felt an obligation in choosing this module as part of their MSc pathway. During the current academic year, which is the 4th occurrence of the module, we encountered a series of other challenges that made the delivery of the module particularly complex. The Pensioner Centre we collaborated with for four years, presented some last-minute organizational changes in availability and new interactions needed to be designed with the older adults; the students presented limited flexibility in their timetable outside the module teaching hours to complete their Service-learning component and there were changes also in the teaching staff and in their availability, working simultaneously in different institutions. While during the past three years we had always received excellent feedback, the current academic year student evaluation has been mixed, with some negative comments that made us reflected on the value of delivering a Service-learning module as part of an academic pathway.

When asking ourselves whether this is worth, we reflected on the message that the director of the pensioner's centre received from one of the participants who said: 'I must say when I went to the students on King's college on Monday I enjoyed every moment of it, it was something that I really felt that I needed to talk to these people where they would understand me and I could understand what they was doing and what it was all about I absolutely had a fantastic time and I hope all the other people who go have the same thing I've got.' With this comment in mind, we think of the complexities we encountered throughout the current academic



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Institute of Psychiatry, Psychology & Neuroscience, King's College London

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Institute of Psychiatry, Psychology & Neuroscience, King's College London

year with a positive spirit and are at present reconsidering some of the structural and content elements of the module, to be able to transform the above challenges into transformative and generative developments of the module, continuing fostering a collaboration between academia and the community.



# SESSION 2.3 CRITICAL PERSPECTIVES ON SERVICE-LEARNING PRACTICES

# Effects and best practices related to a Service Learning experience and Integrity-based Model

Daher, Marianne<sup>1</sup>, Rosati, Antonia<sup>2</sup>

### Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service learning

**Keywords:** Service Learning experience, cultural community intervention, integrity-based best practices, effects on students, effects on communities

### **Abstract:**

This presentation reports effects and best practices related to a Service Learning experience and Integrity-based Model (Daher et al., 2024a), promoting an engaged scholarship. The experience of a cultural community intervention done by academics from the Psychology Department and the Music Institute is discussed, were students doing their professional practice and a research internship course participated. This was based on an applied research project focused on integral human development (VRI Interdisciplina II202201), and a teaching improvement project centered on Service Learning (Uniservitate Award). These projects aimed to foster the university's contribution to social challenges (Irarrázaval, 2020) related to cultural and community development (Hodge et al., 2024) of nearby neighborhoods in poverty situation, while also enhancing students' transformative education (Jouannet et al., 2013), promoting lasting changes. These projects were grounded in principles of public and civic commitment (Ardoin et al., 2023; Marino et al., 2019), equity and social justice (Santiago-Ortiz, 2018), as well as university social responsibility (Bahena et al., 2022), to advance towards integral education and social contribution. For this, strategic partnerships and institutional alliances (Akhurst et al., 2022) were stablished with the local government and neighborhood leaders, thanks to a university intermediary agency (between the faculties and community partners).

The Integrity-based Service Learning Model entails, on the one hand, ensuring meaningful learning through relevant actions and a connected pedagogical style on the part of the teaching teams, as well as the integral involvement of the students in their educational process, and a facilitating role of the community partners. On the other hand, it implies offering a quality service, carried out in a rigorous and systematic way, fulfilling commitments and products, being a contribution to community partners and communities (Daher et al., 2024a). The Model offers best practices for preparation, implementation, supervision, evaluation and return, in order to safeguard the quality of services and learnings. Each step of the Model will be explained with concrete examples from this intervention.

The main effects over students (Daher et al., 2024b) were to engaged on real-world activities, activating a more robust professional attitude, and acquiring competences related to the social intervention cycle (familiarization, diagnosis, design, implementation, evaluation), as well as skills to manage artistic and musical strategies (such as storytelling through collage co-creation



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Pontificia Universidad Católica de Chile.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Pontificia Universidad Católica de Chile.

and interactive musical encounters). Overall, the Service Learning experience, as pedagogical approach, was highly valued by the students for its opportunity to apply knowledges and make a social contribution.

The main effects over communities (Daher et al., 2024b) were at the community and cultural levels. At the community level, effects on intergenerational proximity, neighborhood integration and the strengthening of community identity were recognized. Emerging results were also identified in the short term, and in the medium and long term. At the cultural level, results were generated in intergenerational proximity in terms of approaching culture and strengthening historical-cultural identity, as well as emerging effects on emotional and spiritual well-being. Likewise, effects on integral human development stand out.

- Ardoin, N., Bowers, A. & Gaillard, E. (2023). A systematic mixed studies review of civic engagement outcomes in environmental education. *Environmental Education Research*, 29(1), 1-26.
- Akhurst, J., & Msomi, N. (2022). Building partnerships for community-based service-learning in poverty-stricken and systemically disadvantaged communities. In S. Reich, M. Riemer, E. Prilleltensky, & M. Montero (Eds.), *The Routledge International Handbook of Community Psychology* (pp. 246-255). Routledge.
- Bahena, O., Lugo, E. & Saenger, C.B. (2022). La formación para el compromiso social como trayectoria vital y liberadora. Configuración y alcances del modelo educativo de una universidad jesuita mexicana. RLEE Nueva Época, 52(3), 133-162.
- Daher, M., Rosati, A. & Campero, M.J. (2024a). Integrity-based Service Learning (ISL) Model: Overcoming the lack of integrity in Service Learning and academic social tourism. *Journal of College Student Development*, under review
- Daher, M., De la Cuadra, P., Rosati, A., Enrione, V., Cordeu, C., Dorochesi, R., Monje, M., Sandoval, C., & Fritz, E. (2024b). "NarrArte y Música con Sentido": Intervención cultural comunitaria y desarrollo humano integral. Iniciativa de responsabilidad social universitaria y formación transformadora. In preparation.
- Hodge, C., Daher, M., Rosati, A. & López, R. (2024). La ciudadanía vinculante como puente entre comunidades e instituciones: Diálogos entre ética cristiana, filosofía política y ciencias sociales. *International Journal of Public Theology*, under review.
- Irarrázaval, I. (2020). La vinculación universitaria con el medio y los mecanismos de reconocimiento académico. *Calidad en la Educación, 52*(1), 296-323.
- Jouannet, C., Salas, M.H. & Contreras, M.A. (2013). Modelo de implementación de Aprendizaje Servicio (A+S) en la UC. Una experiencia que impacta positivamente en la formación profesional integral. *Calidad en la Educación*, 39(1), 198-212.
- Marino, V., Lo Presti, L. & Pellicano, M. (2019). Rediscovering public engagement in higher education: A bridge between university community and publics. *African Journal of Business Management*, 13(2), 71-81.
- Santiago-Ortiz, A. (2018). From Critical to Decolonizing Service-Learning: Limits and Possibilities of Social Justice—Based Approaches to Community Service-Learning. *Michigan Journal of Community Service Learning*, 24(2), 43-54.



# SESSION 2.3 CRITICAL PERSPECTIVES ON SERVICE-LEARNING PRACTICES

# Exploring the Challenges of Service Learning in Contemporary Higher Education

Brady, Abbe<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>St Mary's University, UK.

Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service learning

**Keywords:** ethical considerations, inequities, critical thinking

### **Abstract:**

Whilst there are many definitions of service Learning (SL), there is broad consensus that SL is an experiential pedagogy linking the curriculum and community service through which students take part in meaningful real-world activities designed collaboratively to respond to a genuine community need. Advocates of SL view it as a transformative pedagogy and systematic reviews and meta-analyses provide substantial evidence of its positive impact for all parties involved. However, to better enable the realisation of its considerable potential, academics intending to adopt SL need to be mindful of its challenges and ethical issues as well as its many strengths and potentialities.

Unchecked assumptions about SL's ethical provenance and beneficence can, if not recognised, have undesirable consequences which may diminish its value for all concerned. Assumptions can play out in the narratives we use to frame, plan, design, conduct and evaluate SL. Examples of such assumptions may include: 1, viewing SL as students providing assistance to others (so more like charity than a mutual exchange), 2, framing SL as a pragmatic professional skills development opportunity (rather than acknowledging the contested socio-political nature of the SL context/activity in the curriculum), and 3, expecting SL will generate desirable outcomes for all involved (rather than also recognising how we frame SL may limit such outcomes). Assumptions such as these overlook the negotiated, mutually beneficial and ideally, equitable-relationships central to contemporary SL in HE.

Ethical issues in SL are varied though many criticisms relate to ideals implicit within traditional SL arising from inequitable power and privilege among participants (Butin, 2006 & 2015, Mitchell, 2008, Vincent et al., 2021). In turn, these issues may limit benefits and, in some cases, lead to poorer outcomes for those involved such as reinforcing biases, stereotypes and social beliefs (e.g. Connor & Erickson, 2017; Grobbelaar et al., 2017). To realise the considerable potential of SL, it's important to appreciate what may enhance and what may diminish its positive and sustainable impact. Thus, as advocates of SL in HE, we can be guardians to ensure that SL moves away from well-intended but naïve practice which may lead to undesirable outcomes and seek instead to adopt a more critically informed position through which we can be better prepared to acknowledge and address potential issues.

This presentation provides an overview of selected issues associated with inequitable power and privilege among participants in service learning and the undesirable consequences which can arise



when SL is presented as an uncontested, apolitical and charitable activity. The presentation concludes with suggestions for how those involved in HE-based SL and particularly HE staff, can contribute to the impact of SL by raising awareness and reflexivity around the selected issues of power and privilege within the particular context.

- Butin, D. W. (2006). The Limits of Service-Learning in Higher Education. *The Review of Higher Education*, 29, (4), 473-498.
- Butin, D. W. (2015). Dreaming of Justice: Critical Service learning and the need to wake up. Theory into Practice 54: 5 -10.
- Conner, J., & Erickson, J. (2017). When Does Service-Learning Work? Contact Theory and Service-Learning Courses in Higher Education. Michigan Journal of Community Service Learning, 23(2), 53-65
- Grobbelaar, H., Napier, C., & Maistry, S. (2017). Reinforcing paternalism? The need for a social justice approach to prepare students for community engagement at universities of technology. *Journal for New Generation Sciences*, 15(1), 74-93.
- Mitchell, T. D. (2008). Traditional vs. Critical Service-Learning: Engaging the Literature to Differentiate Two Models. *Michigan Journal of Community Service*, Spring: 50-65.
- Vincent, C.S., Awkward, R.J., Lefker, J., Lynch, C., & Moore, S.B. (2021). Critically engaged civic learning: A comprehensive restructuring of service-learning approaches. *Michigan Journal of Community Service Learning*, 27(2).



### SESSION 2.4 CROSS-UNIVERSITY PARTNERSHIPS

### Community Service-Learning in Tourism Higher Education Institutions

Pavlakovič Farrell, Barbara<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>University of Maribor, Faculty of Tourism.

### Conference track: Collaboration & alliances for service-learning

Keywords: tourism development, territory stakeholders, public engagement, guidelines for students

#### **Abstract:**

Community service-learning is a pedagogical approach that can be used in many different fields of Higher Education. Organisations and community associations are very keen on using students' knowledge of the digital world (designing apps, web content, etc.) or marketing approaches (communicating through video and audio materials). However, communities can also benefit from the special knowledge tourism students have about developing territories into tourism destinations. Students can collaborate with local authorities, associations, NGOs, public and private organisations, and locals. Their learning experience is therefore extended to communication with different stakeholders, resulting in an overall development strategy for the territory. Strategic directions can be used by many entities, and their impact on society is consequently larger.

Moreover, the collaboration between students and a tourism destination is even better if it is a long-lasting process. Even if a certain group of students visit a territory only once, the teachers can continue working on the territory for many years, bringing new and new groups of students, developing the ideas further, upgrading or taking into consideration specific elements of the destination.

Several years of using the community service-learning approach in tourism studies showed that local entities are happy to welcome students and get an outsider approach to their challenges. They are willing to participate in discussions, interviews, personal communication and sightseeing around their territory. They appreciate students' work and listen to their suggestions. Moreover, they are especially pleased with some tangible materials students can provide for the entities. Therefore, students and teachers wrote and designed books about the destinations, where they described the characteristics of the territory, their work, and their proposed solutions. Local entities were happy to receive a printed book since they used it not only for their development process but also for promoting their destination.

For a successful collaboration between tourism students and different stakeholders, it is important that certain guidelines direct their work. Therefore, we gathered these principles in the textbook "Introducing Public Participation Methods into the Pedagogical Process", which highlights the importance of the involvement of different communities in tourism development planning processes. The textbook presents and explains the concept of public participation in tourism planning processes and the reasons and levels of public involvement in development processes. The textbook also presents examples of good practices of cooperation with the local community from different countries. The textbook then focuses on the public involvement process itself,



where the individual steps of participation are described. Next, advice is given regarding organising events where the public is involved. In particular, public participation techniques, which can be used in cooperation with various stakeholders, are highlighted. Finally, the textbook presents examples of the inclusion of local participation in the study process at the Faculty of Tourism of the University of Maribor. It provides a draft work plan for future examples of community service-learning inclusion in the study process.

- Akmentina, L. (2023). E-participation and engagement in urban planning: experiences from the Baltic cities. *Urban Research & Practice*, 16(4), 624-657. https://doi.org/10.1080/17535069.2022.2068965
- Garrod, B. (2003). Local Participation in the Planning and Management of Ecotourism: A Revised Model Approach. *Journal of Ecotourism*, 2(1), 33-53. https://doi.org/10.1080/14724040308668132
- Kantsperger, M., Thees, H. & Eckert, C. (2019). Local Participation in Tourism Development— Roles of Non-Tourism Related Residents of the Alpine Destination Bad Reichenhall. *Sustainability*, 11, 6947, 1–23. https://doi.org/10.3390/su11246947
- Koščak, M. & O'Rourke, T. (Eds.) (2023). Ethical & Responsible Tourism Managing sustainability in local tourism destinations (2nd ed.). Routledge.
- Mueller, E. & Dooling, S. (2011). Sustainability and Vulnerability: Integrating Equity into Plans for Central City Redevelopment. *Journal of Urbanism: International Research on Placemaking and Urban Sustainability*, 4(3), 201–222. https://doi.org/10.1080/17549175.2011.633346
- Slocum, S. L., Aidoo, A. & McMahon, K. (2020). The Business of Sustainable Tourism Development and Management. Routledge.
- Teladia, A. & van der Windt, H. (2022). A new framework for analysing local participation in community energy initiatives. *IOP Conference Series: Earth and Environmental Science*, 1085, 012034, 1–17. https://doi.org/10.1088/1755-1315/1085/1/012034
- Tvrdonova, J. & Budzich-Szukala, U. (Eds.) (2008). *Animating Local Partnership in Rural Areas a practical guide*. TEPA Training of European Partnership Animators. Wanted design.
- Van Heck, B. (2003). Participatory development (2nd ed.). FAO.
- World Travel & Tourism Council [WTTC]. (2024, March 29). New Action Plan Towards Achieving Climate Neutrality in Travel and Tourism by 2050. https://unfccc.int/news/new-action-plantowards-achieving-climate-neutrality-in-travel-and-tourism-by-2050



### SESSION 2.4 CROSS-UNIVERSITY PARTNERSHIPS

# ServU Project unveils: Guide for Service-Learning in Higher Education for Ukraine's Recovery

Culcasi, Irene<sup>1</sup>, Matiychuk, Olha<sup>2</sup>, Reynders, Kathia<sup>3</sup>, Mykhailyshyn, Olha<sup>4</sup>, Hoth de Olano, Christiane<sup>5</sup>, Zagrean, Ioana<sup>6</sup>, Mirra, Angelo<sup>7</sup>, Do Nascimento Rocha, Maristela<sup>8</sup>, Cinque, Maria<sup>9</sup>

- <sup>4</sup> Catholic University of Eichstätt-Ingolstadt.
- <sup>5</sup> Catholic University of Eichstätt-Ingolstadt.
- <sup>6</sup> LUMSA University.
- <sup>7</sup> LUMSA University.
- <sup>8</sup> KU Leuven.
- <sup>9</sup> LUMSA University.

### Conference track: Collaboration & alliances for service-learning

Keywords: Service-Learning, Higher Education, Wartime, Ukrainian recovery, Guidelines.

### **Abstract:**

In times of complexity such as war, when the scale of priorities is drastically redefined, teachers are required to question how what they teach can be useful to society, to help create a positive impact in relation to the urgent needs, care and well-being of people and the community in which they live. Building community partnerships during wartime and post-war recovery is crucial and, at the same time, is a multifaceted endeavor requiring meticulous planning, trust-building, and sustained collaboration (Ruffolo et al., 2023).

The Erasmus+ project "Service-learning in Higher Education for Ukraine's Recovery" (ServU, 2023-2026) is built on the overarching priority of the European Commission, "Governance, peace, security, and human development", which aims to strengthen active citizenship and build specific expertise in democracy, human rights, and multilateralism. The project starts from the current war scenario that has presented Ukrainian universities with new and urgent challenges, including maintaining the academic process, ensuring that students acquire relevant skills in a disrupted environment, and helping society rebuild. International collaboration among universities is crucial in navigating these challenges effectively. Indeed, ServU promotes an active collaboration between the European Union, Ukrainian HEIs, and local territorial communities in their efforts to recover Ukraine through Service-Learning (SL). SL is an incredibly powerful learning and teaching tool that enables teachers to cultivate needed connection, purpose, and engagement for her/himself and her/him students, also during wartime (Kenworthy & Opatska, 2023).

The purpose of this contribution is to provide insights into the multilevel process by which universities cooperated in defining how SL can be adapted for Ukraine's recovery and to discuss the first findings: guidelines for SL during wartime. The final objective is to open a debate on how to challenge key SL concepts and understand the new design requirements for addressing these disruptive challenges.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>LUMSA University.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Ukrainian Catholic University.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>KU Leuven.

- Erasmus+ project "Service-learning in Higher Education for Ukraine's Recovery" (ServU, 2023-2026). <a href="https://ucufoundation.org/universities-are-centers-of-best-practices-for-community-service-ucu-starts-servu-project/">https://ucufoundation.org/universities-are-centers-of-best-practices-for-community-service-ucu-starts-servu-project/</a>
- Kenworthy, A. L., & Opatska, S. (2023). Teaching During War in Ukraine: Service-Learning as a Tool for Facilitating Student Learning and Engagement During Times of Uncertainty and Crisis. *Journal of Management Education*, 47(4), 417-439. <a href="https://doi.org/10.1177/10525629231166695">https://doi.org/10.1177/10525629231166695</a>. <a href="https://journals.sagepub.com/doi/full/10.1177/10525629231166695">https://journals.sagepub.com/doi/full/10.1177/10525629231166695</a>
- Ruffolo, M., Price, D., & Smith, A. (2023). Building a community–academic partnership to expand workforce development in underserved, high-need/high-demand areas. *Public Health Reports*, 138, 9-15. https://doi.org/10.1177/00333549221138852



### SESSION 2.4 CROSS-UNIVERSITY PARTNERSHIPS

# Empowering Service-Learning in the Southern European Region: The Uniservitate Project, an example of Networked Learning

María García-Feijoo<sup>1</sup>, Ariane Díaz Iso<sup>2</sup>, Almudena Eizaguirre<sup>3</sup>, Luísa Mota Ribeiro<sup>4</sup>, Carmo Themudo<sup>5</sup>, Rita Paiva e Pona<sup>6</sup>, Elena Marta<sup>7</sup>, Domenico Simeone<sup>8</sup>, Livia Cadei<sup>9</sup>, Joanna Marie Oliva<sup>10</sup>

### Conference track: Collaboration & alliances for service-learning

Keywords: Service-learning, Higher Education, Networking

### **Abstract:**

Service-learning emerges as a powerful educational approach that merges knowledge acquisition and competence development with solidarity action, generating a positive impact on both the community and the students (Cadei & Serrelli, 2023; Cadei & Simeone, 2021). As described by Eyler and Giles (1999), service-learning 'combines learning with community service in such a way that each enhances and strengthens the other'. According to Furco (2010), service-learning 'focuses on achieving clear academic goals through community service'. Service-learning 'promotes the development of leadership skills, active citizenship and critical thinking' (Aláez et al., 2022; Bringle and Hatcher, 1996; Mota Ribeiro et al., 2023).

In the context of higher education, the Uniservitate project stands as a beacon of innovation and social engagement in the Southern European region. Inspired by the values of Christian humanism, Uniservitate is a global programme that seeks to promote solidarity-based service-learning (AYSS) in Catholic Institutions of Higher Education (ICES). Its aim is to generate systemic change through the institutionalisation of AYSS as a tool, to fulfil its mission of offering a holistic education to new generations and engaging them in an active commitment to the challenges of our time. It is a global programme in constant expansion, which firmly believes in networking and in the potential of bringing together the experience, know-how, lights and shadows in the institutionalisation processes of more than 31 universities involved.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Universidad de Deusto, Deusto Business School.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Universidad de Deusto, Facultad de Educación.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Universidad de Deusto, Deusto Business School.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Universidade Católica Portuguesa, Faculty of Education and Psychology, Research Centre for Human Development.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> Universidade Católica Portuguesa, Unit for the Integral Development of the Person.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> Universidade Católica Portuguesa, Social Responsibility Office.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> Università Cattolica del Sacro Cuore.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> Università Cattolica del Sacro Cuore.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup>Università Cattolica del Sacro Cuore.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> St. Mary's University, Twickenham.

Uniservitate brings together several international research teams and institutional support schemes implemented from 7 regional nodes, strategically distributed all over the world: 5 continents, 26 countries, 15 languages, 405,271 students, 44,706 teachers, integrated in 31 universities and educational institutions. (For more information about the Uniservitate project please visit Uniservitate).



Uniservitate adopts a holistic approach ranging from awareness-raising and teacher training, to the design of curricula that integrate the social dimension into academic education. In the culturally rich and diverse region of Southern Europe, the Universitate project has been of fundamental relevance for universities. Through concrete experiences in universities, the transformative potential of service-learning to address local social challenges is evidenced, since, as Astin et al. (2000) assert, service-learning 'promotes deeper and more enduring civic engagement among students'.

This paper presents a synthesis of the experiences of institutionalisation and how networking has favoured these experiences. The achievements will be presented, highlighting their contribution to strengthening the social fabric and the integral formation of university students, as well as the difficulties encountered. We invite the academic community to explore and collaborate in this exciting journey towards a more committed and supportive higher education.

- Aláez, M., Díaz-Iso, A., Eizaguirre, A., & García-Feijoo, M. (2022, February). Bridging generation gaps through service-learning in higher education: A systematic review. In *Frontiers in Education* (Vol. 7, p. 841482). Frontiers Media SA.
- Astin, A. W., Vogelgesang, L. J., Ikeda, E. K., & Yee, J. A. (2000). How service learning affects students. *Higher education research institute, University of California, Los Angeles*, 1-24.
- Bringle, R. G., & Hatcher, J. A. (1996). Implementing service learning in higher education. *The Journal of Higher Education*, 67(2), 221-239.
- Butin, D. W. (2010). Service-learning in theory and practice: The future of community engagement in higher education. *Palgrave Macmillan*.
- Cadei, L., & Serrelli, E. (2023). The transformative potential of university service-learning: a multi-level analysis. Form@re Open Journal Per La Formazione in Rete, 23(2), 244–255. https://doi.org/10.36253/form-14799



- Cadei, L., & Simeone, D. (2021). Il Service Learning a scuola: un'esperienza di apprendimento e di partecipazione sociale. *Pedagogia e Vita*, 79(3), 104-112.
- Eyler, J., & Giles Jr, D. E. (1999). Where's the learning in service-learning?. Jossey-Bass.
- Eyler, J., Giles Jr, D. E., & Schmiede, A. (1996). A practitioner's guide to reflection in service-learning: Student voices & reflections. *Campus Compact*.
- Furco, A. (2010). The Engaged Campus: Toward a Comprehensive Approach to Public Engagement. *Campus Compact*.
- García-Peñalvo, F. J., Fidalgo-Blanco, Á., Sein-Echaluce, M. L., & Conde-González, M. Á. (2013). A methodology for the social network analysis of informal learning in online communities. The International Review of Research in Open and Distributed Learning, 14(3), 305-326.
- Giles Jr, D. E., & Eyler, J. (1994). The impact of a college community service laboratory on students' personal, social, and cognitive outcomes. *Journal of Adolescence*, 17(4), 327-339.
- Mota Ribeiro, L., Miranda, F., Themudo, C., Gonçalves, H., Bringle, R. G., Rosário, P., & Aramburuzabala, P. (2023). Educating for the sustainable development goals through service-learning: University students' perspectives about the competences developed. Frontiers in Education, 8. 1144134.
- Scales, T. L., & Terry, D. R. (2005). Community service experiences and commitment to volunteering. *Journal of Adolescent Research*, 20(5), 528-544.
- Strage, A. A., & Bailis, L. N. (2015). The Effects of Service Learning on Students' Attitudes and Behaviors Concerning the Elderly. *Educational Gerontology*, 41(6), 443-455.
- Zlotkowski, E. (1996). Does service-learning have a future?. Michigan Journal of Community Service Learning, 3(1), 123-133.



## SESSION 3.1 SERVICE-LEARNING IMPACT ON STUDENTS' ATTITUDES

Measuring Service-Learning Effects on Quality of Participation and Citizenship Education Dimensions: Learning from Unexpected Results

Compare, Christian<sup>1</sup>, Albanesi, Cinzia<sup>2</sup>

### Conference track: Empirical research on service-learning and service-learning impact

Keywords: social justice, empowerment, sense of community, civic engagement, quality of participation

**Abstract:** Service-learning is a widely adopted approach in higher education institutions globally, integrating civic engagement experiences into academic curricula while being responsive to the development of local communities (Compare et al., 2023). This study aimed to assess the impact on students in participating in voluntary semester-long service-learning labs and courses in comparison to traditional labs and courses. A quantitative online survey was administered to 110 students at the beginning and end of the lectures, investigating four psychosocial variables of citizenship: social justice attitude, cognitive empowerment, sense of community responsibility, and civic engagement. The post-survey also collected data on the participants' quality of participation experiences. Analyses performed on data revealed no statistically significant group differences over time in all examined variables, except for the quality of participation experiences, where servicelearning students scored significantly higher than other students. Factors potentially influencing these results include the students' perception of their competence, the duration of the servicelearning program, and relying on self-reported measures (see Zucchero & Gibson, 2019). This study contributes to the advancement of experiential learning knowledge emphasizing the significance of methodological rigor, underpinning a narrative that leverages failure to foster understanding. Future research could further explore the role of quality of participation experiences in service-learning.

### **References:**

Compare, C., Brozmanová Gregorová, A., Culcasi, I., Aramburuzabala, P., & Albanesi, C. (2023). "The farmer, the guide, and the bridge": The voice of community partners within European service-learning. *Pedagogy, Culture & Society*, 1–23. https://doi.org/10.1080/14681366.2023. 2271896

Zucchero, R. A., & Gibson, J. E. (2019). A comparison of intergenerational service-learning and traditional pedagogy among undergraduate psychology students. *Psychology Learning & Teaching*, 18(2), 179–196. https://doi.org/10.1177/1475725718823970



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Department of Psychology, University of Bologna, Italy.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Department of Psychology, University of Bologna, Italy.

## SESSION 3.1 SERVICE-LEARNING IMPACT ON STUDENTS' ATTITUDES

# Fostering Civic-Mindedness: The Role of Service-Learning in Social Work Education

Alžbeta Brozmanová Gregorová<sup>1</sup>, Zuzana Heinzová<sup>2</sup>, Tatiana Matualyová<sup>3</sup>

### Conference track: Empirical research on service-learning and service-learning impact

**Keywords:** civic-mindedness, service-learning, social work

### **Abstract:**

This study's findings offer significant insights into the correlation between service-learning and the cultivation of civic-mindedness in social work graduates. Civic-mindedness, a robust sense of social responsibility and advocacy, is crucial for social work practitioners. The research underscores the importance of integrating service-learning experiences into social work education to foster this civic-mindedness.

While the university's historical origins are somewhat detached from the community, social work's beginnings are deeply rooted in community involvement, particularly university-educated women played pivotal roles in social advocacy and service provision (Trattner, 1999). However, over time, it has moved away from focusing on social change towards models focusing more on clinical and psychotherapeutic interventions (Specht & Courtney, 1994). Nonetheless, social workers remain dedicated to community-based practices, bound by ethical self-determination and social justice principles. Global Definition of the Social Work Profession (IFSW, 2014) defines social work as a practice-based profession and an academic discipline that promotes social change and development, social cohesion, and the empowerment and liberation of people. Hylton (2015) states that civic engagement is pivotal to the social work profession's survival and our historic role in shaping the social contract.

A modified civic-minded questionnaire (Steinberg et al., 2011; Slovak translation Brozmanová, Heinzová, 2018) was chosen for its comprehensive assessment of civic-mindedness. The research group consisted of 320 respondents, who were social work graduates at Slovak and Czech universities (AMage= 29.33; SDage= 10.03; 86.3% of women). The research results demonstrated statistically significant differences in the overall civic-minded graduate scale and several subscales between students who participated in service-learning during their studies and those who engaged in other practices, such as studying or practicing abroad, attending courses about civil society and nonprofit organisations, and problem-based learning. In all cases, graduates who participated in service-learning obtained higher scores.

These findings shed light on the potential impact of service learning on civic-mindedness in social work graduates. It is evident from the results that service-learning experiences during undergraduate studies positively influence various dimensions of civic-mindedness, including



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Matej Bel University, Faculty of Education, Slovakia.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Matej Bel University, Faculty of Education, Slovakia.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Silesian University in Opava, Czech Republic.

advocacy, client empowerment, and a commitment to social change and social justice. These outcomes underscore the potential of service-learning to instill a deeper understanding of the social issues and inequalities that social work aims to address. The study's implications extend beyond the academic setting, offering valuable insights for educators, policymakers, and practitioners in promoting democratic values and social responsibility through service-learning. The findings underscore the importance of integrating service-learning initiatives into social work curricula to prepare graduates as active and socially conscious professionals.

Acknowledgement: The paper was prepared as part of the Erasmus + project SLIDE (www.slide.eu) and the project Volunteering in Slovakia in Time of Crisis.

#### References:

Hylton, M. (2015, September 18). Civic Engagement and Civic Literacy Among Social Work Students: Where Do We Stand? *Journal of Teaching in Social Work*. https://doi.org/10.1080/15588742.2015.1004396

International Federation of Social Workers. (2014). Global definition of social work.

Specht, H., & Courtney, M. E. (1994). *Unfaithful angels: How social work has abandoned its mission*. Free Press.

Trattner, W. I. (1999). From poor law to welfare state: A history of social welfare in America (6th ed.). Free Press.



## SESSION 3.1 SERVICE-LEARNING IMPACT ON STUDENTS' ATTITUDES

# Unbundling the Impacts of a Student-Led Service-Learning Course on Volunteering after School

Alade, Taslim<sup>1</sup>, Meijs, Lucas<sup>2</sup>, van Overbeeke, Philine<sup>3</sup>

- <sup>1</sup> Rotterdam School of Management, Erasmus University.
- <sup>2</sup> Rotterdam School of Management, Erasmus University.
- <sup>3</sup> Rotterdam School of Management, Erasmus University.

### Conference track: Empirical research on service-learning and service-learning

Keywords: Service-learning, Student-led, Impact, Volunteering, Alums

### **Abstract:**

Service-learning provides students with the opportunity to combine learning with real-world experiences, potentially leading to more effective preparation for future life, both professionally and privately. Student volunteering provides a deeper understanding of volunteering and the influence of life transitions in volunteer behavior (Lancee & Radl, 2014). Sax et al. (1999) and Rosenthal et al. (1998) provide valuable insights into the enduring nature of volunteerism. Hart et al. (2007) suggests that service-learning experiences lead to a sense of civic duty and community involvement. Moorfoot et al. (2015) support this by demonstrating a positive correlation between adolescent volunteering and adult community participation. They particularly highlight the role of volunteering in fostering social responsibility and community awareness. Furthermore, Sax et al. (1999) broadens this analysis to the college environment, indicating that volunteer activities during undergraduate years significantly contribute to a heightened sense of community responsibility and an increased likelihood of choosing public service careers. All are illustrating that early engagement with volunteering activities lead to continued community involvement and political activity.

The relation between service-learning and continued community involvement indicates the significance of our longitudinal study design as our research investigates the effects on future volunteering activities of a student-led service-learning course which involves consulting and supporting the headquarters of small private international development organizations at a major business school (Husseinifard et al., 2022). The aim of the research is to investigate whether business school alums who have participated in this service-learning course are volunteering alongside their regular jobs, are working for non-profit organizations (NPOs), or at least have a commitment to continue community service. Next to confirming the general positive effect of service learning on future volunteering, the research sets out to investigate the relation with future sector of volunteering and volunteering activities. In this case, given the content of this specific service-learning course, we expect alums to volunteer for international development in leadership roles.

Thus, this paper will focus on two research questions, namely: 1) To what extent do alums practice volunteering after graduating from a one year of service-learning curriculum from a business school? 2) What types of volunteering sectors and activities do the alums practice? The current



research presents the first batch of a broader study. The research follows a quantitative approach, using survey methodology, involving students (n=75) who have participated in the service-learning course in the past two to three years and have now started their careers. As a theoretical contribution, this research will contribute to the literature on volunteering patterns of school graduates with earlier knowledge on service-learning. While as a practical contribution, it would provide a feed-forward derived from its findings, and useful in redesigning the curriculum for service-learning in higher education.

- Hylton, M. (2015, September 18). Civic Engagement and Civic Literacy Among Social Work Students: Where Do We Stand? *Journal of Teaching in Social Work*. https://doi.org/10.1080/15588742.2015.1004396
- Cohen, R. (2014). Job Corps: Success, Failure, or in Need of Reinvention and Reinvigoration. Nonprofit Quarterly. https://nonprofitquarterly.org/job-corps-success-failure-or-in-need-ofreinvention-and-reinvigoration/
- Hart, D., Donnelly, T. M., Youniss, J., & Atkins, R. (2007). High school community service as a predictor of adult voting and volunteering. American Educational Research Journal, 44(1), 197-219. https://doi.org/10.3102/0002831206298173
- Husseinifard, S., Corleissen, L., & Meijs, L. (2022). The I DO project: Using experiential service learning to increase the impact of PIS. Journal of Global Responsibility, 13(1), 21-28.
- Lancee, B., & Radl, J. (2014). Volunteering over the life course. Social Forces, 93(2), 833-862.
- Moorfoot, N., Leung, R. K., Toumbourou, J. W., & Catalano, R. F. (2015). The longitudinal effects of adolescent volunteering on secondary school completion and adult volunteering. International Journal of Developmental Science, 9(3-4), 115-123. https://doi.org/10.3233/DEV-140148
- Rosenthal, S., Feiring, C., & Lewis, M. (1998). Political volunteering from late adolescence to young adulthood: Patterns and predictors. Journal of Social Issues, 54(3), 477-493. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1540-4560.1998.tb01231.x
- Sax, L. J., Astin, A. W., & Avalos, J. (1999). Long-term effects of volunteerism during the undergraduate years. The Review of Higher Education, 22(2), 187-202. https://doi.org/10.1353/rhe.1999.0005



### SESSION 3.2 SERVICE-LEARNING IN TEACHER EDUCATION

# Democratic Engagement in Post-Democracy: Facilitating Mutual Societal Learning

Fuchs, Anna-Maria<sup>1</sup>, Schmidt, Sophia<sup>2</sup>, Müller, Tabea<sup>3</sup>

### Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service learning

**Keywords:** peer-to-peer education, vocational school, empowerment, democracy, civic education & engagement

#### **Abstract:**

With this paper, we would like to apply for a brief presentation at the 7th Edition of the European Conference on Service Learning in Higher Education. Our project is currently in the conceptualization phase and will commence in collaboration with dedicated students in the current summer semester. The planned launch at a vocational school will take place in the fall, coinciding with the start of the winter semester.

The innovative teaching project aims to educate students and vocational school pupils together in political education, followed by implementing projects developed by them in political education at the cooperation school. During a one-semester training phase, students and pupils are introduced to the principles of political education, current discourses, and basic elements of project management. Participants benefit from getting to know each other's life realities and perspectives during the project development. Projects can be freely designed by the participants. Examples include project days for promoting democracy and societal participation or cooperative games to demonstrate empowerment possibilities. Eventually, the formed project tandems also benefit the pupils by providing them with various role models who can convey the contents of political education from different perspectives. Initially conceived as extracurricular in the university context, the project can be integrated into an interdisciplinary module in the medium term. Implementation follows a low-threshold approach in the form of "peer-to-peer formats" and thus fulfills the principles of applied sciences at our university. This ensures a professional knowledge transfer from both the practice of school and science. The project team at Frankfurt UAS provides method kits, materials, input, tools, and support services for an idea workshop for profile group instruction. Topics can be tailored to the school and coordinated in advance with the school management or responsible teacher. At the same time, there should be the possibility of involving the students and pupils in the topic selection and focus (examples...).

Overarching goals can include:



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Frankfurt University of Applied Sciences, School of Personal Development and Education

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Frankfurt University of Applied Sciences, School of Personal Development and Education

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Frankfurt University of Applied Sciences, School of Personal Development and Education

- Resource-oriented promotion of young people (strengthening self-confidence, thinking outside the box, identity promotion, empowerment)
- Promotion of democracy
- Teambuilding, initiating reflection processes
- Strengthening social skills and self-efficacy
- Ambiguity tolerance
- Getting to know other life worlds (students and pupils, peer-to-peer)
- Getting to know other language systems (scientific references)
- Self-management Organizational Points: Limited personnel resources from the school, as implementation is carried out by students. Space and a fixed group

### Times:

- Training through project days once a month from October to winter break, then implementation and reflection between January and March
- Training program with weekly sessions from October to winter break.

### Illustrative contents of the one-semester training phase:

- Introduction to the fundamentals of political education
- Current political discourses and developments
- Basics of project management
- Interactive workshops to promote teamwork and cooperation
- Practical exercises for the development and implementation of educational projects
- Reflection processes for continuous improvement and adaptation of projects
- Inclusion of expert lectures and guest speakers from relevant fields
- Peer-to-peer learning approaches to promote mutual exchange and learning

The training phase is structured through regular meetings, workshops, and practical exercises to provide participants with a holistic and practice-oriented education.



### SESSION 3.2 SERVICE-LEARNING IN TEACHER EDUCATION

# "To read or not to read... That's the question." Service-Learning in Initial Teaching Training

Martínez Odría, Arantzazu<sup>1</sup>, González Fernández, María José<sup>2</sup>

### Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service learning

Keywords: Service-learning, reading habits, initial teacher training, infant education, primary education

### **Abstract:**

The development of service-learning projects in initial teacher education contributes to the development of academic competencies specific to the regulated profession, while also incorporating, as part of the shaping of teachers' identity, the social commitment of future educators to improving the education system (Fergurson, Hanreddy, & Draxton, 2011; García & Cotrina, 2015; Gil-Gómez et al., 2016; Álvarez-Álvarez & Pascual-Díez, 2020). Furthermore, collaboration among diverse educational stakeholders responds to recommendations from international organizations (UNESCO, 2021a y 2021b), urging the establishment of connections with the environment as an essential element for educational and social transformation. The need for institutions of higher education to serve the community is also emphasized. The development of service-learning projects emerges as a highly suitable tool to make this possible.

The service-learning project 'To Read or Not to Read... That's the Question' is an educational innovation project that arises from the collaboration between the Bachelor's degrees in Early Childhood Education and Primary Education at the Universidad San Jorge and Bajo Aragó-Marianistas School (Zaragoza). It stems from the identified need, both within the school and among university students, to promote the development of reading habits as a necessary skill to foster quality education (Colomer & Munita, 2013; Trigo, 2021; Juárez, 2019; Cerrillo & Yubero, 2013). Starting from the identified need, the University aims to contribute to the development of the school's Reading Plan. Following the phases and stages of service-learning project development (Puig et al., 2008), the participation involves a total of 4 subjects from the curricula of the Bachelor's degrees in Education at Universidad San Jorge, along with the involvement of students and teachers from the early childhood and primary stages of both the school and the university. The total number of benefiting students amounts to 160, along with their respective teaching teams.

Phase I, Project Preparation, needs identification, and work plan establishment was collaboratively conducted with the school to define the service through which the need to promote reading habits in the center would be addressed. A preliminary questionnaire was administered to university students to assess their level of knowledge regarding the promotion of reading habits in early childhood and primary education, as well as children's literature. Phase II, Project Implementation, takes place between March and November 2024, through the implementation of various actions both at the school and on the campus, complemented by the design and implementation of



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Universidad San Jorge.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Universidad San Jorge.

teaching resources developed by university students. Phase III, Project Evaluation, is scheduled from May to December 2024. Initial results have already been gathered from the first implementation sessions. A comprehensive evaluation involved schoolteachers, university students, and lecturers. School teachers and university students completed a post-questionnaire to assess student performance, book selection, activity suitability, and other aspects related to their perception of the service and learning objectives acquisition. The results are highly positive. In addition, university lecturers have reflected on these findings to identify areas for improvement.

The project has been awarded in the 8th Call for Service-Learning Awards in centers of the San Valero Group for the year 2024. It was presented at San Valero Group Centers' Service-Learning Awards Gala in May 2024. The results were disseminated on social media.

- Álvarez-Álvarez, C., & Pascual-Díez J. (2020). Formación inicial de maestros en promoción de la lectura y la literatura en España desde la perspectiva del profesorado universitario. Revista Iberoamericana de Educación Superior (RIES), vol. XI(30), 57-75, https://doi.org/10.22201/iisue.20072872e.2020.30.588
- Cerrillo, P. C., & Yubero, S. (Coords.). (2003). La formación de mediadores para la promoción de la lectura. CEPLI/UCLM.
- Colomer, T., & Munita, F. (2013). La experiencia lectora de los alumnos de magisterio: nuevos desafíos para la formación docente. Lenguaje y Textos, 38, 37-45
- Ferguson, D., Hanreddy, A., & Draxton, S. (2011). Giving students voice as a strategy for improving teacher practice. London Review of Education, 9(1), 55-70. https://doi.org/10.1080/1474 8460.2011.550435
- García, M., & Cotrina, M. (2015). Aprendizaje y servicio (ApS) en la formación del profesorado: Haciendo efectiva la responsabilidad social y el compromiso ético. Profesorado. Revista de Currículum y Formación, 19(1), 1-3.
- Gil-Gómez, J., Moliner-García, O., Chiva-Bartoll, O., & García López, R. (2016). Una experiencia de aprendizaje-servicio en futuros docentes: Desarrollo de la competencia social y ciudadana. Revista Complutense de Educación, 27(1), 53-73. https://doi.org/10.5209/rev RCED.2016.v27.n1.45071
- Juárez Calvillo, M. (2019). Influencia de la formación inicial del profesorado en los hábitos lectores y en el concepto de educación literaria. Investigaciones Sobre Lectura, 12, 99-115. DOI 10.37132/isl.v0i12.287
- Puig, J. M., Batlle, R., Bosch, C., & Palos, J. (2007). Aprendizaje Servicio. Educar para la ciudadanía. Octaedro Puig, J. M., Martín, X. y Batlle, R. (2008) Guía zerbikas 1: cómo iniciar un proyecto de aprendizaje y servicio solidario. Fundación Zerbikas.
- Trigo Ibáñez, E. (2021). El papel de la formación inicial y permanente del profesorado para forjar lectores. Revista De Estudios Socioeducativos. ReSed, 1(4). https://revistas.uca.es/index.php/ReSed/article/view/7936
- UNESCO (2021a). Reimagining Our Futures Together: A new social contract for education. UNESCO.
- UNESCO. (2021b). Caminos hacia 2050 y más allá: Resultados de una consulta pública sobre los futuros de la educación superior. UNESCO-IESALC.



### SESSION 4.1 CRITICAL REFLECTIONS IN SERVICE-LEARNING RESEARCH

The very same but different – Distinguishing different types of service-learning

Altenschmidt, Karsten<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Universität Duisburg-Essen.

Conference track: Empirical research on service-learning and service-learning impact

Keywords: research, typology, actor constellation model, application, implementation

### Abstract:

Though driven by shared principles and ideas, Service-Learning comes in many variations. It is differently shaped by the respective purposes, contexts, and conditions it is applied in (Furco 2020: 27). E.g., Service-Learning can be taught disciplinary or interdisciplinary; it can focus on personal and/or academic student development (Kreikebaum 2009); community service can be operationalized as a project or an individual engagement (Altenschmidt & Peres da Silva 2019); it can focus on the whole range of Sustainable Development Goals (http://sdgs.un.org); it can obviously be taught digitally and/or face-to-face; it can vary in the quality of service, learning, and their interconnectedness (Sigmon 1994); and many more. This variety holds serious implications for matters of Service-Learning research and definition, but also for the practical application and implementation: it implies that, by looking at different-Service Learning practices, we do not necessarily look at the same thing. Any comparison – institutionally, regionally, nationally, internationally – is thus severely limited. Any assumption, theory, result or conclusion about Service-Learning in general has to be aware of this complex and multi-dimensional variety. However, it seems we lack the tools for that so far, as Service-Learning literature seems void of a systematic and multi-dimensional typology.

This conceptual paper presentation contributes to a service-learning typology. Based on an analytical conceptual actors' framework introduced to German Service-Learning discourse recently (Altenschmidt 2023) and on the deliberations by Reinders (2016), the talk explores different constellations and relations between four essential actors in Service-Learning: teachers, students, community organizations and clients. Drawing on the four types of service in Service-Learning as described in literature (Jacoby 2015; Berger-Kaye 2010; Morton 1995), the talk uses the *constellation model* to specify the distinct differences between the types. The model is then applied to clarify connections between Service-Learning and Social Entrepreneurship Education/Design Thinking (Brown 2008).



- Altenschmidt, K. (2023): Die Idee von Lernen und Engagement. Theoretische und empirische Differenz(ierung)en im Service Learning. In: Becker et al. (Ed.): Engagierter Campus und Gesellschaft Service Learning an deutschsprachigen Hochschulen. Bern.
- Berger-Kaye, C. (2010): The Complete Guide to Service Learning. Minneapolis, MN. Brown, T. (2008): Design Thinking. Harvard Business Review Vol. 86 (6), 84-141.
- Furco, A. (2020). International Perspectives on Service-Learning Research. In Rosenkranz et al. .(Ed.), Service Learning an Hochschulen. Konzeptionelle Überlegungen und innovative Beispiele, Weinheim Basel, 25-41.
- Jacoby, B. (2015): Service Learning Essentials. Questions, Answers, and Lessons Learned. San Francisco, CA: Kreikebaum, Marcus (2009): Ansätze des Service Learning an deutschen Hochschulen. In: Altenschmidt et al. (Ed.)(2009): Raus aus dem Elfenbeinturm. Entwicklungen in Service Learning und bürgerschaftlichem Engagement an deutschen Hochschulen. Weinheim u. Basel. 40-46.
- Morton, (1995): The irony of service: charity, project, and social change in service-learning. Michigan Journal of Community Service Learning, 2, 19-32.
- Reinders, H. (2016): Service Learning Theoretische Überlegungen und empirische Studien zu Lernen durch Engagement. Weinheim.
- Sigmon, R. L. (1994): Serving to learn, learning to serve. Linking service with learning. Washington, D.C.



## SESSION 4.1 CRITICAL REFLECTIONS IN SERVICE-LEARNING RESEARCH

# A systematic review of published qualitative research on service-learning in physiotherapy

Lafuente-Ureta, Raquel<sup>1</sup>, Folgueiras-Bertomeu, Pilar<sup>2</sup>, Jiménez-Sánchez, Carolina<sup>3</sup>

### Conference track: Empirical research on service-learning and service-learning impact

**Keywords:** Service-learning, physical therapy, physiotherapy, qualitative research, systematic review.

#### **Abstract:**

Service-learning (SL) is an educational methodology that provides students with experiential learning in a community-based setting. SL is a very interesting tool to develop in academic physical therapy (PT) degree programs because it gives students the opportunity to provide a service to the community while working on key content of PT theory and practice. In addition, SL projects have an impact on the recipient community: they receive a service, they become a teaching space, and they change their role in society. As mentioned above, these SL projects have a human dimension and impact both the students and the recipient community. Qualitative research (QR) encompasses a wide range of methods and theoretical frameworks that explore people's experiences, perspectives, beliefs, and behaviours and has been used in many areas of education and health care. Studies have explored SL in PT qualitatively, but a comprehensive overview is lacking.

The aim of this review was to examine the qualitative evidence on SL in PT. A systematic review of qualitative studies was conducted. Four databases (Scopus, Web of Science, MEDLINE and ERIC) were systematically searched. The PRISMA guideline was used to document the literature search at the different stages, and the Critical Appraisal Skills Program (CASP), a checklist for qualitative research, was used to assess the studies that met the inclusion criteria. Articles published between January 2013 and August 2023 were included. The following data were extracted: main aims of the publication, population studied, methodology, intervention and evaluation details. A content analysis approach for qualitative research was used for data synthesis.

A total of 16 articles met the inclusion criteria, population studied in 15 of them were students. The instruments used for data collection were written reflections (n=10), questionnaires (n=2), focus groups (n=2) and interviews (n=4). Five analytical categories emerged in relation to SL projects in physical therapy: 'work and relationship with others', 'awareness of professional and personal change', 'communication', 'application and learning of professional skills' and 'enhancing



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Departamento de Fisioterapia, Facultad de Ciencias de la Salud, Universidad San Jorge, Villanueva de Gállego, Zaragoza, Aragón.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Departamento de Métodos de Investigación y Diagnóstico en Educación. Universidad de Barcelona

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Departamento de Fisioterapia, Facultad de Ciencias de la Salud, Universidad San Jorge, Villanueva de Gállego, Zaragoza, Aragón. Instituto de Investigación Sanitaria de Aragón.

personal and interpersonal values and qualities'. Most items reported (n=12) scored 7/10 or above on the CASP quality checklist.

The qualitative review of the selected articles leads us to conclude that PT students as well as recipients obtain both educational and non-educational benefits from their participation and performance in SL activities, they also consider such interventions to be positive. We found an adequate reporting of qualitative methods and their relationship to the study findings, and a wide range of qualitative data collection tools. Service recipients could benefit from further primary research as most of the published studies examine students' experiences of SL projects.

- Adams, J. S., Nelson, H. M., Strong, E., Wisco, J. J., & Klappa, S. G. (2020). Mentors' Experience in Teaching Basic Science Concepts in the Community Outreach Program, Anatomy Academy: A Phenomenological Study. HAPS Educator, 24(2), 27–35.
- Borstad, A., Deubler, D. C., Appling, S., Spangler, L., & Kloos, A. D. (2018). Professional values are implicit in written reflections by DPT students in a short-term international service learning course. Journal of Allied Health, 47(3), 183–189a. Scopus.
- Crawford, E., Caine, A.-M., Hunter, L., Hill, A. E., Mandrusiak, A., Anemaat, L., Dunwoodie, R., Fagan, A., & Quinlan, T. (2017). Service learning in developing countries: Student outcomes including personal successes, seeing the world in new ways, and developing as health professionals. Journal of Interprofessional Education and Practice, 9, 74–81. Scopus. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.xjep.2017.08.006
- Donlan, P., & Golub-Victor, A. (2022). Virtual Service Learning: An Exploration into How Physical Therapy Students Make Meaning of Professional Skill Development Online. Journal of Community Engagement and Higher Education, 14(3), 4–17.
- Hou, Y.-J., Liu, W.-Y., Lin, Y.-H., Lien, H.-Y., Wong, A. M. K., & Chen, C.-M. (2018). A Pediatric Service-Learning Program in Physical Therapy Education. Pediatric Physical Therapy, 30(2), 149–154. Scopus. https://doi.org/10.1097/PEP.00000000000000498
- Johnson, A. M., & Howell, D. M. (2017). International service learning and interprofessional education in Ecuador: Findings from a phenomenology study with students from four professions. Journal of Interprofessional Care, 31(2), 245–254. Scopus. https://doi.org/10.1080/13561820.2016.1262337
- Karyczak, S., Murphy, A., Zechner, M., Anderson, E., & Zazzarino, A. (2020). Service learning experiences of doctor of physical therapy students with a severe mental illness population. Journal of Education and Health Promotion, 9(1). Scopus. https://doi.org/10.4103/jehp.jehp\_298\_20
- Lemmonds, T., Adam, J., Espiritu, E. W., & Wyant, D. K. (2021). Short-term Service-Learning: Implications for Preparing Health Science Students for Practice. INTERNET JOURNAL OF ALLIED HEALTH SCIENCES AND PRACTICE, 19(4), 3.
- Nesbit, K. C., Jensen, G. M., & Delany, C. (2018). The active engagement model of applied ethics as a structure for ethical reflection in the context of course-based service learning. Physiotherapy Theory and Practice, 34(1), 1–12. Scopus. https://doi.org/10.1080/09593985.2017.1368759
- Noonan, C. D., Scow, S., Sheagley, B. A., & Bunn, J. (2018). Shifting perspectives on pain management after an interprofessional international service learning experience: A qualitative assessment of pilot data. Journal of Interprofessional Care, 32(5), 645–647. Scopus. https://doi.org/10.1080/13561820.2018.1471053



- Noonan, C., Tudini, F., & Sawyer, S. (2020). Redefining Rural Health: Student Perceptions After Participation in A Migrant Farmworker Clinic. Journal of Physical Therapy Education, 34(1), 51–58. Scopus. https://doi.org/10.1097/JTE.0000000000000118
- Rodríguez-Costa, I., González-Rivera, M. D., Ortega, C., Llabrés-Mateu, J.-M., Blanco-Morales, M., Abuín-Porras, V., & Díaz-Pulido, B. (2020). Professional and personal physical therapist development through service learning in collaboration with a prisoner reinsertion program: A qualitative study. International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health, 17(24), 1–11. Scopus. https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph17249311
- Tapley, S., Tapley, H., Idlewine, T., & Kiesel, J. (2019). Service Learning in Physical Therapy Professional Education: Student Reflections of the Special Olympics FUNfitness Program. Journal of Community Engagement and Higher Education, 11(3), 33–47.
- Vincenzo, J. L., & Patton, S. K. (2021). Older Adults' Experience With Fall Prevention Recommendations Derived From the STEADI. Health Promotion Practice, 22(2), 236–247. Scopus. https://doi.org/10.1177/1524839919861967
- Zechner, M., Anderson, E., Murphy, A., Zazzarino, A., & Karyczak, S. (2022). Physical therapy students' perceptions for working with persons with mental illness in the USA. Journal of Education and Health Promotion, 11(1), 367. Scopus. https://doi.org/10.4103/jehp.jehp\_1543\_21



# SESSION 4.1 CRITICAL REFLECTIONS IN SERVICE-LEARNING RESEARCH

# Mapping Service-Learning Practice & Research in Europe: Challenges in an Evolving Context

Paz-Lourido, Berta<sup>1</sup>, Ribeiro, Álvaro<sup>2</sup>

#### Conference track: Empirical research on service-learning and service-learning impact

**Keywords:** European Higher Education Institutions, Service-Learning, European Observatory of Service-Learning in Higher Education, Complementary knowledge dimensions.

#### **Abstract:**

The European Observatory of Service-Learning in Higher Education (EOSLHE) was created in January 2019 aiming to allow cooperation and exchange among the members of the European Higher Education Area by mapping, collecting data and evidence regarding the level of development of service-learning (S-L) as well as its institutionalization. By 2022, EOSLHE had mapped 154 S-L experiences, 36 S-L COVID-19 experiences, and collected 50 S-L responses to a survey on institutionalization of S-L in the European context (20 European countries). Since then, besides further mapping this, it also collected data about S-L EU-funded projects and alliances.

From the beginning, the administrative processes linked to mapping S-L faced with challenges concerning four complementary knowledge dimensions: declarative, procedural, contextual, and methodological.

- A) Declarative level: The absence of an EU S-L knowledge structure containing categories of transdisciplinary information made it difficult to define and conceptualize S-L and its institutionalization in Europe, the direction of that pedagogy and practice. Such a knowledge structure would help stakeholders to define what would be S-L in the EU and what would not, as well as S-L institutionalization. Proposals were made to assess if the essential elements of S-L practice were present in the variability of community engaged experiences in EU higher education.
- B) Procedural level: It was noted the difficulty to find practical solutions to S-L management problems, particularly at the student level. The lack of EU principles of good practice to allow projects sustainability or effective community campus partnerships highlighted the need of a well-defined development of vertical (top-down, bottom-up) and lateral (among disciplines) communication. The transfer of knowledge and (sub)abilities remains key to build more complete responses to complex daily problems.
- C) Contextual level: The lack of facilitating ways to upgrade or transform the curriculum as a result from reflective processes on the S-L experiences is a barrier to overcome. Opportunities for a long-term impact could occur at local level but also influence other allied universities. It was challenging for EOSLHE to identify or give visibility to European alternative narratives regarding SL to



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>University of the Balearic Islands, Spain.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> European Observatory for Service-Learning in Higher Education (EOSLHE).

promote the development of research instruments, quality assessment protocols as well as analytical models for interpreting European reality.

D) Methodological level. The limitations of time, costs, and/or transparence to facilitate the identification of S-L practitioners in higher education led EOSLHE to resort to forms qualitative recruitment processes (snowballing) to survey key informants that were not very accessible or difficult to find. The lack of contextual knowledge of what may be happening in the various European countries that are practicing S-L makes difficult to construct, implement, analyze and discuss instruments and data that would allow EOSLHE to obtain a kaleidoscope of images closer to reality.

Today, relevant EU projects are being developed, so the challenge remains in mapping them, develop an in-depth analysis and foster transferability to diverse European contexts. That illustrates the need to strengthen EASLHE to promote S-L in collaboration with other EU structures and therefore, facilitate EOSHLE' crucial role including to map out sequential progressions of S-L projects and levels of institutionalization.

- Ribeiro, A., Aramburuzabala, P., & Paz-Lourido, B. (2021). Research Report on the institutionalization of service-learning in European higher education. Research procedures and main findings. EASLHE
- Ribeiro A., Aramburuzabala P., Paz-Lourido B. (2021) (Coords.). 2021 Annual Report of European Association of Service-Learning in Higher Education. EASLHE
- Ribeiro, A., Aramburuzabala, P., & Paz-Lourido, B. (2021). Guidelines for the Institutionalization of service-learning in European higher education. European Association of Service-Learning in Higher Education. EASLHE
- Ribeiro, A., Aramburuzabala, P., & Paz, B. (2021). Reflections on service-learning in European higher education. RIDAS, Revista Iberoamericana de Aprendizaje Servicio, 12, 3-12. DOI:10.1344/RIDAS2021.12.2
- Ribeiro, A., Aramburuzabala, P., & Paz-Lourido, B. (2023). European service-learning experiences in higher education and the Freirean concept of seminar. *Saber E Educar*, *31*(2). https://doi.org/10.25767/se.v30i2.29374
- Paz-Lourido, B, Ribeiro, A, Aramburuzabala, P, Calero, A., & the EASLHE Policymaking Group (2023). European Service-Learning Public Declaration on Civic Responsibility of Higher Education. EASLHE.



## SESSION 4.2 SERVICE-LEARNING IN AN INTERNATIONAL CONTEXT

# Challenges and recommendations of an International Service-Learning Trajectory

Van Moer, Eva<sup>1</sup>, Verbist, Gerlinde<sup>2</sup>

Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service learning

**Keywords:** international service-learning, educational design, cross-cultural, case-study

#### **Abstract:**

Service-learning is the pedagogy par excellence for promoting societal learning and for implementing global, social, intercultural and civic issues during international study experiences (Hovey & Weinberg, 2009). Students learn through direct interaction and cross-cultural dialogue with others. The intention is for students to effectively contribute to the local community of a host country through their engagement. During this direct interaction, they experience cultural differences and learn how to navigate them.

In practice, we rightly see a growth in international service-learning journeys and increased attention to social engagement and service-learning project in European collaborations (e.g., Young Universities of the Future of Europe Alliance). An international service-learning project can take various forms. It can involve a service-learning experience within Europe or beyond (North-South dimension). Additionally, international service-learning can entail complete immersion in another environment (physical mobility), online/virtual mobility, or a mix of both (blended mobility) (Albanesi e.a., 2022). Each form has its own advantages and difficulties. Through a concrete case study, namely the Community Service Learning-Challenge - a course created within the framework of the Young Universities of the Future of Europe Alliance at the University of Antwerp (Belgium)-we focus on an example of international service-learning from a European perspective with physical mobility. This means that students from European universities are completely immersed in the Antwerp community.

During the presentation, we outline the setup of this challenge using several specific questions:

- How is collaboration with societal partners carried out? Here, we emphasize the importance of reciprocity, where collaboration and knowledge exchange occur with mutual respect among all involved parties. We also focus on the preparation of the international service-learning project.
- What is aimed for during the semester? In this part, we explore the design of the trajectory. We focus on how intercultural insights and perspectives on societal engagement are shared among students and between students and community members (Crabtree, 2008, 2011).
- What works well? What is still challenging? In response to these questions, strengths, challenges, and pitfalls are explained. Specifically, we focus on the concept of the 'tourist gaze' (Urry, 2002) and finding the right match between students and community partners.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> University of Antwerp.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> University of Antwerp.

Finally, we provide some conclusions and recommendations for developing an international service-learning project.

- Albanesi, C., Compare, C., Guarino, A., & Pollack, S. (2022). University Community Learning (UNICORN): Staff Training Handbook. Erasmus+ Programme of the European Union, Project Reference N.2019-1- IT02-KA203-063122, https://site.unibo.it/unicorn-eu/en
- Crabtree, R.D. (2008). Theoretical foundations for international service learning. Michigan Journal of Community Service Learning, 14(3), 18-36.
- Crabtree, R.D. (2011). Review essay: Progress and promise for international service learning. Michigan Journal of Community Service Learning, spring, 78-82.
- Hovey, R., & Weinberg, A. (2009). Global learning and the making of citizen diplomats. In R. Lewin (Ed.), The handbook of practice and research in study abroad: Higher education and the quest for global citizenship (pp. 33-48). Routledge.
- Urry, J. (2002). The Tourist Gaze (2nd ed.). Sage. (Original work published 1990)



## SESSION 4.2 SERVICE-LEARNING IN AN INTERNATIONAL CONTEXT

MicroMundo: Bridging Citizen Science and Service-Learning to promote Antibiotic Resistance Awareness in the Community

Cid, Víctor<sup>1</sup>, Amaro Torres, Francisco<sup>2</sup>, Ayllón Santiago, Tania<sup>2</sup>, Ballestero García, Luna<sup>3</sup>, Barbero Herranz, Raquel<sup>3</sup>, Barbero Úriz, Óscar<sup>1</sup>, Blesa Esteban, Alba<sup>1</sup>, Borrajo López, Ana<sup>1</sup>, Borrero del Pino, Juan<sup>4</sup>, Bravo Vázquez, Daniel<sup>2</sup>, Cortés Prieto, Isabel<sup>1</sup>, Crespo Roche, Diego<sup>5</sup>, del Campo Moreno, Rosa<sup>3</sup>, Díaz del Toro, Silvia<sup>2</sup>, Díaz Formoso, Lara<sup>4</sup>, Domenech Lucas, Mirian<sup>2</sup>, Escudero García-Calderón, Jose Antonio<sup>4</sup>, Fernández Favieres, Francisco Javier<sup>4</sup>, Fernández-Acero, Teresa<sup>1</sup>, Fernández-Vega Granado, Alejandro<sup>1</sup>, García Benzaquén, Nerea<sup>4</sup>, García García, Aina<sup>4</sup>, García Pastor, Lucía<sup>1</sup>, Gómez Albarrán, Carolina<sup>2</sup>, González de Figueras, Carolina<sup>6</sup>, González Rubio, Gema<sup>1</sup>, González Zorn, Bruno<sup>4</sup>, Hipólito Carrillo de Albornoz, Alberto<sup>4</sup>, Kieffer, Nicolás<sup>4</sup>, Lavilla García, Beatriz<sup>1</sup>, López Montesino, Sara<sup>1</sup>, Maestro García-Donas, Beatriz<sup>2</sup>, Martínez López, Raquel<sup>1</sup>, Mascaraque Martín, Victoria<sup>1</sup>, Molina Martín, María<sup>1</sup>, Muñoz Atienza, Estefanía<sup>4</sup>, Parra Giraldo, Claudia Marcela<sup>1</sup>, Patiño Álvarez, Belén<sup>2</sup>, Prieto Orzanco, Alicia<sup>5</sup>, Pulido Vadillo, Mario<sup>4</sup>, Rodríguez Escudero, Isabel<sup>1</sup>, Rodríguez Fernández, Carmina<sup>1</sup>, Rodríguez Pires, Silvia<sup>2</sup>, Román González, Elvira<sup>1</sup>, Romero Martínez, Beatriz<sup>4</sup>, Romero Rivera, Mario Herbert<sup>3</sup>, Moreno Blanco, Ana<sup>3</sup>, Rubio Lozano, Alba<sup>1</sup>, Sanz Santamaría, Belén<sup>1</sup>, Sempere García, Julio<sup>2</sup>, Serna Bernaldo, Carlos<sup>4</sup>, Suárez Rodríguez, Mónica<sup>4</sup>, Vázquez Estévez, Covadonga<sup>2</sup>, Vozmediano Peraita, Laura<sup>1</sup>, Gil Serna, Jéssica<sup>2</sup>

#### Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service learning

Keywords: Service-Learning. One Health, Antibiotic Resistance, Citizen Science, STEM

#### **Abstract:**

The threat of antimicrobial resistance has been set by the World Health Organization into its priorities for immediate action (WHO, 2014). Antibiotics are our therapeutic arsenal against infectious diseases, saving millions of lives every year worldwide. However, a misuse of these valuable drugs in environmental, animal and human health over the last decades has led to the expansion of multi-resistant bacteria, responsible for over 1.000.000 deaths yearly. As prominent keys to fight antibiotic resistance stand: (i) to promote awareness of the problem in the population, leading to a rational and effective use of antibiotics, and (ii) to boost research in this field for the development of future antibiotics.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Department of Microbiology and Parasitology. School of Pharmacy. Universidad Complutense de Madrid

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Department of Physiology, Microbiology & Genetics. School of Biology. Univeridad Complutense de Madrid.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Ramón y Cajal Institute for Health Research (IRyCIS).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Dept. of Animal Health and VISAVET. School of Veterinary Sciences. Univeridad Complutense de Madrid.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> Centro de Investigaciones Biológicas "Margarita Salas". CSIC.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> Centro de Astrobiología (INTA-CSIC).

MicroMundo is the partner strategy in Spain and Portugal of the Tiny Earth initiative in the USA. Following a Service-Learning (SL) program at 30 Universities, Undergraduate Students lead off-campus research teams at Secondary and High Schools following a Citizen Science experimental program to isolate new antimicrobial activities from environmental soil samples. At each School, the experiments are coordinated by a MicroMundo team, usually five university students led and tutored by a Faculty member. In four or five two-hour laboratory sessions and an additional final celebration session, teenager researchers are trained in microbiological techniques to similar to those used by pharmaceutical companies in the past to isolate antibiotic-producing microorganisms (Valderrama et al., 2018).

The team at the Complutense University of Madrid (UCM) was pioneer worldwide in implementing this student-sourcing research project by Service-Learning in 2016. With the aid of the Spanish National Plan for Antibiotic Resistance (PRAN) and the Spanish Society for Microbiology (SEM), the program successfully spread to many other Universities in Spain and Portugal. Here we present the MicroMundo experience at UCM as a successful strategy to create scientific culture in One Health and antimicrobial resistance in the community. Every year, we involve an average of 40 Faculty Researchers and over 150 University Students in a SL program that works on 30-40 Secondary or High Schools in the Madrid area. The MicroMundo@UCM teams engage every year over 600 young researchers in the project, thus integrating various educational levels and inspiring vocations for STEM higher education in teenagers. Besides collecting putative new antibiotic producers of interest for the scientific community, the MicroMundo teams work on two main objectives: (i) to create scientific culture on preventive action to fight the spread of antibiotic resistance in society, thus contributing to scientific literacy; (ii) to inspire vocations in young students for research and development in the STEM areas, with emphasis in women and populations with limited opportunities.

Beyond these service results, our experience over the years proves a very efficient outcome of the SL strategy on efficient learning of specific and transversal competencies for University students, as well as on boosting motivation to shift their curriculum towards research profiles.

#### **References:**

Valderrama, M. J., González-Zorn, B., de Pablo, P. C., Díez-Orejas, R., Fernández-Acero, T., Gil-Serna, J., de Juan, L., Martín, H., Molina, M., Navarro-García, F., Patiño, B., Pla, J., Prieto, D., Rodríguez, C., Román, E., Sanz-Santamaría, A. B., de Silóniz, M. I., Suárez, M., Vázquez, C., Cid, V. J. (2018). Educating in antimicrobial resistance awareness: adaptation of the Small World Initiative program to service -learning. FEMS Microbiology Letters. 365(17), 1-9. http://doi: 10.1093/femsle/fny161

World Health Organization. (2014). Antimicrobial Resistance: Global Report on Surveillance. http://apps.who.int/iris/bitstream/handle/10665/112642/9789241564748\_eng.pdf?seq uence=1



## SESSION 4.2 SERVICE-LEARNING IN AN INTERNATIONAL CONTEXT

ICU2 Foundation Vision Care Service Learning Projects: Student Volunteers' Impact on the Delivery of Vision Care to the Underserved

Hunter, Chrsitopher<sup>1</sup>, Hunter Maja<sup>2</sup>

www.icu2foundation.org

#### Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service learning

**Keywords:** experiential service-learning, partnerships, community engagement, transformative leadership, sustainability

#### Abstract:

The ICU2 Foundation's vision care service learning project emerged through visits within the slums of Mumbai (India). These revealed a profound lack of optometric care to underserved populations, specifically children, in the schools surrounding the slums of Malad West. Working closely with colleges of optometry in Mumbai and in Paris and with eye care professionals, it became apparent that, with the help of trained student volunteers in the screening process, optometrists and ophthalmologists could proceed to do a far greater number of refractions and other eye exams. In this way, it became possible to screen effectively many thousands of children and adults with a small number of eye care professionals. By incorporating the latest technology in the field of refraction, it became possible to help the work of eye care professionals even further. The direct result to beneficiaries includes an eye exam, refracted lenses, choice of frames, referrals for further care and cataract operations.

Typical ICU2 Vision Care Projects take place over a period of 5 working days and are held in places that can safely accommodate large numbers of people of all ages along with the volunteers. Volunteers are drawn from schools, colleges of optometry, hospitals, medical centers and local optometrists. The student volunteers are responding to offers to participate in experiential service learning which constitute formal educational experiences within their overall academic preparation. A well-designed SLP must incorporate the links between the service conducted and the school's curriculum. Various fields of study, such as economics, geography, social sciences, physics, biology and medicine come readily into play during the conduct of the camp. An inseparable part of the design or structure of the project is the element of reflection that guarantees transformative effects and outcomes for the student participants.

Throughout the project, students are afforded opportunities to witness and experience human predicaments while participating in their resolution. This exposure to human dilemmas, accompanied by the effective guidance of service learning leaders, often provokes deep personal questioning of attitudes and knowledge of poverty, inequality, suffering and related issues which can then can be explored and impacted. The direct engagement with others through the delivery of vision care can lead to enhanced empathy, thus combatting indifference and ignorance.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> ICU2 Foundation.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> ICU2 Foundation.

Ensuring that service learning participants take away a deeper sense of community and understanding and that they have gone beyond biases and prejudices often associated with populations of different socio-economic, religious and/or cultural backgrounds, is equally necessary for the project to be considered successful. This is facilitated through the practice of end-of-day reflective discussion groups and is grounded in Mezirov's transformative learning theory.

This model, practiced principally in India, can be readily replicated within European areas to reach underserved populations, such as farm workers, migrants and asylum seekers, the homeless and those suffering from poverty. Working in conjunction with municipal offices and university service learning advisors, it would be possible to identify populations in need of vision care and to organize its delivery through the coming together of student volunteers and vision specialists.

#### **References:**

Mezirow, J. (1997). Transformative Learning: From Theory to Practice. New Directions for Adult and Continuing Education. 74, Summer, pp. 5-12.

Mezrow, J. (1990). How critical reflection triggers transformative learning. In: J. Mezirow and Associates. Fostering critical reflection in adulthood: a guide to transformative and emancipatory learning. San Francisco: Jossey-Bass, pp. 1-20. ISBN 1555422071.



## SESSION 4.2 SERVICE-LEARNING IN AN INTERNATIONAL CONTEXT

Development of inclusion and social justice by University Service-Learning with migrants in Europe's land border with Africa

Hooli, Eeva-Maria<sup>1</sup>, Ruiz-Montero, Pedro Jesús<sup>2</sup>

#### Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service learning

**Keywords:** migrants, social inclusion, university education, teaching English as a foreign language, physical education

#### **Abstract:**

Melilla (Spain) is an Autonomous City on the North African coast, and one of the two places in the world where you can find a land border between an EU country and an African country. The demographic pressure of Melilla (86 000 habitants) is increasing because of the flow of irregular migrants, which annual number equates to six percent of the population. That percentage is 50 times bigger than in Spanish cities on average (BOME, 2019). In view of this fact, the society requires university institutions to have a higher involvement in the social challenges of this multicultural city (Ruiz-Montero et al., 2023). If the university wants to meet these requirements, it must redefine its role (Chiva-Bartoll et al., 2021).

In this context, a group of professors and investigators of the University of Granada, together with professors of the partner universities, planned a project, and it got a grant from the Ministry of Sciences, Innovations and Universities of Spain. In this project, the University ServiceLearning (USL) is seen as a pedagogical model, which could answer to the needs of the main participant groups: university students, professors and lecturers, and migrants. The first one can learn transversal competences, while the professors act as intermediary in the change, and migrant groups are obtaining a higher importance in the society. Additionally, it is necessary to highlight the cooperation with community organizations focused on migrant groups: Melilla Acoge, Gota de Leche and CETI.

The ongoing project, which started at the end of the year 2023, works on three areas: Language Teaching (LT), Physical Activity (PA) and Intercultural Education (IE). The project aims to answer the following questions: How to examine the impact of USL projects on social inclusion of migrant communities? What is the effect of the project on the competencies of university students? Would it be possible to develop USL guidelines focused on migrant communities?

Methodologically, the mixed evaluation study design (Stage n°1= Descriptive, Cross-sectional and Observational study; Stage n°2= Analytical, Longitudinal and Experimental study) is used to respond to the defined aims. Regarding the research context, it focuses on university students of Campus of Melilla, University of Granada, and migrant community from different origins. The techniques used in gathering of information are the questionnaire, reflexive diary, group interview, record sheet, and focus group. The theoretical approach is based on socio-emotional learning. Qualitative data analysis strategy will be performed by the Statistical Package for Social Science



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> University of Granada, Department of Didactics of Languages and Literature.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>University of Granada, Department of Physical Education and Sports.

(IBM SPSS Statistics for Windows 21.0. Armonk, NY, USA) and the N-Vivo qualitative analysis software (version 12) for categorizing and coding data. This study is conducted in accordance with the ethical principles of the Declaration of Helsinki, and it was approved by the Ethical Committee (no. 3212/CEIH/2023). Finally, the objective of the present research is to emphasize the inclusive potential of SL programs, on LT, PA, and IE, along with their academic, social, cultural, and political implications, to achieve a more equitable society.

This presentation is part of grant PID2022-141644OB-I00 funded by MICIU/AEI/10.13039/501100011033 and by "ERDF/EU".

- Boletín Oficial de la Ciudad Autónoma de Melilla (BOME) número 5638 (2019). https://www.melilla.es/melillaportal/RecursosWeb/DOCUMENTOS/1/0\_21123\_1.pd f
- Chiva-Bartoll, O., Ruiz-Montero, P.J., Leiva-Olivencia, J.J., & Grönlund, H. (2021). The effects of service-learning on physical education teacher education: A case study on the border between Africa and Europe, 27(4), 1014-1031.
- Ruiz-Montero, P.J., Corral-Robles, S., García- Carmona, M. & Leiva-Olivencia, J.J. (2023) Development of prosocial competencies in PETE and Sport Science students. Social justice, Service Learning and Physical Activity in cultural diversity contexts, Physical Education and Sport Pedagogy, 28:3, 244-258, DOI: 10.1080/17408989.2021.1976740



# SESSION 4.3 PROCESSES OF SERVICE-LEARNING INSTITUTIONALIZATION

Hasselt University as a Civic University: How do we integrate our civic mission in our education?

Martens, Miete<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Hasselt University.

Conference track: Processes of service-learning institutionalization

**Keywords:** Civic university, mission statement, civic activity, civic course, educational policy

#### **Abstract:**

Regional engagement has been a core part of the Hasselt University identity since its establishment. Our fundamental purpose lies in addressing the low participation of youth in higher education in the province of Limburg. Our civic mission and vision, shaped in 2018, aim to enhance Limburg as a vibrant region for studying, entrepreneurship, employment, residency, and overall quality of life. Through encouraging student involvement in civic engagement, we seek to empower students to recognize the positive impact they can have on society, particularly within the region.

To integrate this approach into our education, we've taken various actions. For example, we organized an institution-wide education day with community service learning as the central theme. Through financing innovative educational development projects from 2019-2021, focusing on civic engagement and community service learning, we also invested more than €464.000 in the implementation of 9 projects within 6 faculties. In the academic year 2025-2026 civic will be the focal point of the innovative educational development projects again. Additionally, civic has been included as a central theme in the educational policy plan 22-29. Under this theme, we strive to offer all students the opportunity to engage in civic actions during their education. Strengthening the Limburgish community and addressing regional societal needs are central to this approach, with the definition of civic education at Hasselt University emphasizing mutually beneficial collaboration with the community on societal needs/challenges (Farnell, 2020).

With this in mind, the civic theme in the educational policy plan 22-29 was further concretized into operational objectives and related actions. Firstly, at an institutional level, Hasselt University aims to provide a diverse range of civic actions, including the establishment of an institution-wide civic course. While many programs currently involve civic actions, regular reflection on the civic nature of this action is often lacking. Yet, reflection is crucial for the success of civic courses, prompting us to develop an institution-wide civic reflection module to support programs in reaching the goals of the educational policy plan. Secondly, at the program level, each program should offer a civic course and develop at least one civic activity. For both initiatives, specific criteria were developed.

These initiatives are built on broad engagement from the institution, faculties, educational support staff, students and society, alongside a sustainable collaboration with external partners such as the European University EURECA-PRO and the Flemish Network of Service-Learning in Higher Education, who serve as critical friends to assess and strengthen our initiatives while also fostering



knowledge exchange and mutual inspiration. At the ECSLHE, we'll elaborate on translating our civic mission and vision in academic programs. Examples of civic actions/courses will be showcased, along with initiatives on the institutional level (e.g., professionalization sessions, the innovative educational development projects, etc.) to embed the civic mission and vision institutionally and support academic programs in implementing the civic ideology.

#### **References:**

Farnell, T. (2020). Community engagement in higher education: Trends, practices and policies. NESET. https://nesetweb.eu/en/resources/library/community-engagement-in-higher-education-trends-practices-and-policies



# SESSION 4.3 PROCESSES OF SERVICE-LEARNING INSTITUTIONALIZATION

An opportunity to reinforce service-learning in higher education: a Code of Ethics and Conduct for Service-Learning Projects

Garcia-Gutierrez, Juan<sup>1</sup>, Lotti, Patrizia<sup>2</sup>, Ruiz-Corbella, Marta<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup>UNED.

<sup>2</sup>UNED.

<sup>3</sup>UNED.

#### Conference track: Processes of service-learning institutionalization

**Keywords:** Ethical issues, Code of ethics, Inter-institutional dialogue, Training and education, Research and innovation

#### **Abstract:**

The presentation aims to share knowledge on education ethics through the proposal of 'Code of Ethics and Conduct for Service-Learning Projects in Higher Education' and discuses on that, its necessity (or not), its components, etc. Both the vacuum on this topic in the recent literature on Service Learning (S-L) (Ruiz-Corbella & García-Gutiérrez, 2023) and the generalization of institution-building processes in European universities (Ribeiro et al., 2021) moving us to offer this contribution as a compass for it develops in the Universities. This Code of Ethics is an ongoing and open proposal, which may welcome further reflection for its improvement. The Code was an outcome of the research project: 'Ethical implications of the implementation and development of service-learning: ethical responsibility in research and innovation through service-learning projects in higher education (#eticaps) driven by the COETIC Innovation Group and support by the Faculty of Education's research founds.

In the last few years, S-L has become mainstream in most of European universities as an approach that facilitates his responsibility both training excellent professionals but also citizens committed to the service of the common good. For this reason, and in view of this growth in many disciplines in the universities, we consider necessary to reflect specifically and particularly on the ethical or normative dimension of it develop not only in a governance level but also in the practice of the teachers and students.

It is well known that students ask for information or advice on sensitive or sensible subjects in their academic courses (Lotti et al., 2023). The international appreciation of S-L sees it mentioned in the policies of various countries, for example in Spain it is included in the framework law of the University System Act (LOSU, 2023) as well as in the student statute Act (2010). Its dissemination also thanks to national and international networks and the institutionalisation process in the various universities requires us to commit to a normative dimension so that the proposal of the Code of Ethics and Conduct that guides both the projects and the actions of the participants within them. This open proposal of the Code presents a set of values, principles and guidelines for action and driven correctly the own conduct. It's important to understand these ethical implications also for a correct relations ship between the agent who participates in the SL projects in its different



modalities face-to-face, virtual, international, etc. We have articulated the proposal in the four areas of reference:

- Identity;
- Values and general principles;
- Activities of teachers and students;
  - Commitments of managers and leaders.

The proposal has been developed from the point of view of the academy both, its relate to the community and for improve of teaching and learning in the dialogue between the various actors that make these experiences possible. The proposal also allows us and facilitates the understanding of the limits that an experiential learning approach such as SL needs, to improve this interinstitutional dialogue and between actors with different purposes (educational, social, cultural, economic, etc.).

- Mezirow, J. (1997). Transformative Learning: From Theory to Practice. *New Directions for Adult and Continuing Education.* **74**, Summer, pp. 5-12.
- Mezrow, J. (1990). How critical reflection triggers transformative learning. In: J. Mezirow and Associates. Fostering critical reflection in adulthood: a guide to transformative and emancipatory learning. San Francisco: Jossey-Bass, pp. 1-20. ISBN 1555422071.
- Código ético y de conducta para proyectos de aprendizaje-servicio (ApS) en la educación superior (propuesta abierta). https://blogs.uned.es/aps/wp-content/uploads/sites/175/2023/11/CODIGO \_etico\_PDF-4.pdf
- García-Gutiérrez; J., & Ruiz-Corbella, M. (Eds.) (2023). Aprendizaje-Servicio. Escenarios de aprendizajes éticos y cívicos. Narcea.
- Lotti, P., García-Gutiérrez J., & Alonso-Sainz, T. (2023). Horizontes pedagógicos para la elaboración de un código ético para el desarrollo del ApS en Educación Superior. In Juan García-Gutiérrez e Marta Ruiz-Corbella (Eds), Aprendizaje-Servicio. Escenarios de aprendizajes éticos y cívicos, Madrid: Narcea.
- Ribeiro A., Aramburuzabala P., & Paz-Lourido, B. (2021). Institutionalization of Service-Learning in European higher education. Research report. EASLHE, Madrid. https://www.eoslhe.eu/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Research-report\_2021\_web.pdf
- Ruiz-Corbella, M. & García-Gutiérrez, J. (2023). Aprendizaje-Servicio. Escenarios de aprendizajes éticos y cívicos. Madrid: Narcea.



# SESSION 4.3 PROCESSES OF SERVICE-LEARNING INSTITUTIONALIZATION

# Investing in Service-Learning Student Leaders to promote Institutional Cultural Change

Nance, Agnieszka<sup>1</sup>, Smith, Bridget<sup>2</sup>

#### Conference track: Processes of service-learning institutionalization

Keywords: Student leadership, service learning, cohort experience

#### **Abstract:**

In our current global climate, the influence of student leadership in driving institutional and local change is increasingly recognized. Tulane University's decision to implement a curricular service-learning requirement initially faced skepticism but has, over the past 18 years, catalyzed a significant cultural shift on campus. This transformation was significantly propelled by student leadership cohort programs, which not only informed programming but also spearheaded culture change across campus in ways inaccessible to staff alone.

This presentation will spotlight two exemplary cohort-based student leadership initiatives—Service Learning Assistants (SLA) and Community Engagement Advocates (CEA)—originally designed to bridge the gap between faculty capacity and best practices in service learning. However, these programs evolved into transformative experiences for all stakeholders. SLA and CEA programs provided crucial peer-driven logistical support, mentorship, and facilitation, enriching the student experience while bolstering institutional mandates. The inception of these cohorts was a response to the top-down challenge of elevating service learning from the periphery to the forefront of Tulane's educational mission.

Participants will depart with actionable insights into how student-driven programs can serve as potent agents of cultural change within academic institutions. This will include:

- Understanding the pivotal role of student programs in driving cultural shifts.
- Best practices for managing such programs with limited resources.
- Sustainable models of program implementation, emphasizing self-leadership and resilience.
  - Strategies for operating these programs on modest resources, including tips on grant application and leveraging job creation opportunities to nurture pre-career experiences and develop transferable skills amidst challenging economic conditions.

Moreover, attendees will gain insights into the power of peer education and its instrumental role in institutionalizing cultural change within academic settings.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Tulane University, New Orleans, USA.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Tulane University, New Orleans, USA.

# SESSION 4.3 PROCESSES OF SERVICE-LEARNING INSTITUTIONALIZATION

# Building a Catholic university community marked by a commitment to Service Learning

Lydon, John<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>St Mary's University, Twickenham, LONDON TW1 4SX.

Conference track: Processes of service-learning institutionalization

**Keywords:** Service-learning, Holistic, Community, Dignity, Values

#### Abstract:

This paper begins by defining the concept of service learning, citing, for example, the definition of Shane Lavery and Chris Hackett:

"Service-learning is a teaching method which combines community service with academic instruction as it focuses on critical, reflective thinking and civic responsibility. Service-learning programs involve students in organised community service that addresses local needs, whilst developing their academic skills, sense of civic responsibility and commitment to the community (Lavery & Hackett, 2008)."

By insisting that service and learning goals are of equal importance, this definition encapsulates the concept of a holistic perspective, canonised in Catholic education tradition. It is important to note, therefore, that service-learning should also help students grow as persons – it is not just aimed at "contributing to the community" or developing skills that are assessed in the degree programme. Recognising this notion of "helping students to grow as persons", this paper will proceed to discuss the key concepts implicit in a holistic perspective, including the classical statement by St John Bosco (1815-1888) that his education vision was underpinned by his seminal aim that all students became "honest citizens and good Christians". In the author's view, service-learning originates in this Salesian vision in the modern period. A brief conspectus of this holistic perspective will be retrieved, underpinned by scholarly and ecclesian sources, including a series of documents published by the Congregation for Catholic Education (now the Dicastery for Culture and Education) alongside scholarship relating to Catholic Social Teaching.

More recently, Cardinal Tollentino, Prefect of the Dicastery of Education and Culture, in a recent address to the International Federation of Catholic Universities, stated:

We have to strive for Catholic Universities to be good universities. But we must also bear in mind that this is not enough. In Pope Francis's mind, Catholic Universities shouldn't just deliver quality degrees and ensure the pursuit of ambitious careers for their students. As the Pope said in his World Day of Peace message of 2021, the Church wishes our institutions of higher learning to shine as world universities that, by offering their educational services, are in a capacity to "pass on a system of values based on the recognition of the dignity of each person (Tolentino, 1999)."



Catholic Universities are convinced that Service Learning makes a significant contribution to the "passing on a system of values". This paper will explore the extent to which this is realised in practice, for example in the work of the Marist Brothers in the Marist Pontifical University of Curitba where service learning forms a constituent part of the undergraduate degree programme for *all* students. In a Salesian context, the Vice-Rector of the Salesian Pontifical University stated recently that

"... if this does not occur in daily activity and there are no standards, structures and resources for accompaniment (young people at the centre of educational attention) or student participatory organizations (young people at the centre of educational activity), the project is contradicted by reality and becomes analogous to a secular institution (Vojtáš, 2021)."

The paper will conclude with a description and analysis of how one Catholic University in the UK is developing and promoting "student participatory organisations" underpinned by a service-learning pedagogy.

#### References:

Lavery, S., & Hackett, C. (2008), Christian Service Learning in Catholic Schools, Fremantle, University of Notre Dame Australia.

Tolentino, Cardinal J., (1999), What the Church expects from Catholic Universities, Rome, Dicastery for Culture & Education.

Vojtáš, M. SDB, (2021), *Journal of Salesian Studies*, July-December 2021, Volume 19 No.2, Berkeley CA, Institute of Salesian Studies.



# SESSION 5.1 SERVICE-LEARNING RESEARCH IN PRIMARY & SECONDARY SCHOOLS

Service-Learning and In-service Teachers. Analysis of Results and Evaluation of Tools in a Case Study

Kulberg Taub, Mikol<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>University of Florence, PhD Student.

Conference track: Empirical Research in Service-Learning and Service-Learning impact

**Keywords:** service-learning, case study, research-training, monitoring tools, teacher competencies

#### **Abstract:**

Within a broader doctoral research, carried out with an exploratory design with sequential phases (Trinchero, Robasto, 2019, p.72) with a mixed QUAL-Quant methodology, aimed at grasping the transformative possibilities of Service-Learning (SL) as educational approach (Fiorin, 2016; Orlandini, Chipa, & Giunti 2020), a confirmatory case study was carried out, on a training-research aimed at a group of teachers of a comprehensive institute of an Italian school. The teachers belonging to Kindergarten, Primary and Secondary school grades were involved by convenience (n=10) among those who had participated in the first phase of the research. The training, which lasted seven months, was organized by scheduling five meetings every two months. Among the tools used to stimulate reflective and self-assessment processes, a logbook, a planning form, organized on the basis of the findings of previous studies, and a questionnaire-form based on a reflection on the professional and personal skills developed were proposed. In addition to the research-training meetings, specific actions related to qualitative research were planned, through a focus group and individual in-depth interviews. The data provided by the case study were analyzed through a qualitative computer-assisted thematic survey using Atlas T Software (Clarke& Braun 2013) and confirmed the transformative capacities of the SL, which emerged during the research.

#### **References:**

Clarke, V., & Braun, V. (2013). Teaching thematic analysis: Overcoming challenges and developing strategies for effective learning. *The psychologist*, 26(2), 120-123.

Corbetta, P. (2014). Metodologia e tecniche della ricerca sociale (pp. 283-316). Bologna: il Mulino.

Creswell, J. W. (2012). Educational research: Planning, conducting, and evaluating quantitative and qualitative research. Pearson Education, Inc.

Fiorin I., (a cura di), (2016), Oltre l'aula. La proposta pedagogica del Service Learning, Mondadori, Milano. Frison, D., & De Maria, F. (2023). Il ruolo delle esperienze lavorative come fattore orientativo dello sviluppo professionale. Esiti da un programma di tirocinio digitale all'università. *Q-TIMES WEBMAGAZINE*, 0-0.

Lotti P. (2021), Apprendimento Servizio solidale, Franco Angeli, Milano.

Lotti, P., & Orlandini, L. (2023). L'istituzionalizzazione del Service Learning a supporto della formazione docente. *Lifelong Lifewide Learning*, 19(42), 296-331.



Orlandini, L., Chipa, S., & Giunti, C. (2020). Il Service Learning per l'innovazione scolastica. Le proposte del Movimento delle Avanguardie educative. Roma: Carocci Editore. Search in.

Trinchero R., Robasto D. (2019), I Mixed Methods nella ricerca educativa. Mondadori, Milano.

Viganò R., (1995), *Pedagogia e sperimentazione. Metodi e strumenti per la ricerca educativa*, Vita e Pensiero, Milano, ed. 2014.

Wolcott, H. F., (2008), Writing up qualitative research. Sage publications.



# SESSION 5.1 SERVICE-LEARNING RESEARCH IN PRIMARY & SECONDARY SCHOOLS

Erasmus@school: The value of Reflective Practices in a Service-Learning project with Erasmus Students

Aquario, Debora<sup>1</sup>, Di Masi, Diego<sup>2</sup>

Conference track: Empirical research on service-learning and service-learning impact

**Keywords:** Alums Critical Incident, Reflection, Erasmus

#### **Abstract:**

This research focuses on use of Critical Incident as a technique to promote reflection in a service-learning project. In recent years, the Critical Incident Technique (CIT) has been used in a variety of contexts to promote reflective practices (Gremler, 2004). According to Chell (1998) the critical incident technique is "a qualitative interview procedure which facilitates the investigation of significant occurrences (events, incidents, processes, or issues) identified by the respondent, the way they are managed, and the outcomes in terms of perceived effects. The objective is to gain understanding of the incident from the perspective of the individual, taking into account cognitive, affective, and behavioral elements" (p. 56).

Critical incidents are common events that are part of a classroom routine. Their criticality is based on the way in which they are perceived by participants and the meaning they ascribe to them through interpretation and evaluation (Halquist & Musanti, 2010). The research was conducted as part of a service-learning project (Erasmus@school), which was co-designed with the International Mobility Office of the University of Padua and the IV District School of Padua. The project aimed to: a) improve students' linguistic competences; b) facilitate the integration of Erasmus students into the local community. Eight Erasmus students, coming from Spain, France, Germany, and the United States, were engaged in four projects conducted in a primary school (with students aged between 8 and 10 years) and a middle school (with students aged between 11 and 13 years). The S-L projects were integrated with the school's curricular activities (English, Sciences, History, Biology) planned for the second semester of the 2023-2024 academic year.

The study presents the critical incidents collected by Erasmus students and teachers during the service-learning activities and the analysis conducted with the researchers during supervision. The aim of this analysis is to reflect on the lived experience in the light of the Erasmus@school learning object (Bringle and Hatcher, 1995). The initial findings indicate that the Critical Incident technique facilitates the acquisition of knowledge and make visible crucial elements of the practices under examination. Furthermore, it creates a secure environment for both the individuals who recount the incident and those who listen to them (Lithoxoidou and Papadopoulou, 2024). The discussion provided an opportunity for the formulation of hypotheses and the collective exploration of different interpretations.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Università di Padova

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Università di Torino

- Bringle, R.G., & Hatcher, J.A. (1995). A Service-Learning Curriculum for Faculty. Michigan Journal of Community Service-Learning, 2.
- Chell, E. (1998). Critical incident technique. In G. Symon & C. Cassell (Eds.), Qualitative methods and analysis in organizational research: A practical guide (pp. 51–72). Sage Publications Ltd.
- Gremler, D. D. (2004). The Critical Incident Technique in Service Research. Journal of Service Research, 7(1), 65-89.
- Halquist, D. & Musanti, S. (2010). Critical incidents and reflection: Turning points that challenge the researcher and create opportunities for knowing. International Journal of Qualitative Studies in Educa/on. 23. 449-461.
- Lithoxoidou A, Papadopoulou V. (2024). Critical incidents analysis in teacher education: Assessing student-teachers' critical thinking. Thinking skills and creativity. 51. doi:10.1016/j.tsc.2024.101476.



# SESSION 5.1 SERVICE-LEARNING RESEARCH IN PRIMARY & SECONDARY SCHOOLS

Empowering Schools in Socially Disadvantaged Areas and Tomorrow's Teachers: Experiences from a German Service-Learning Seminar

Yendell, Oscar<sup>1</sup>, Thielmann, Merle<sup>2</sup>, Derkau, Julia<sup>3</sup>

- <sup>1</sup>University of Mannheim.
- <sup>2</sup>University of Mannheim.
- <sup>3</sup>University of Mannheim.

#### Conference track: Empirical research on service-learning and service-learning impact

**Keywords:** Preservice Teachers, Teacher Training, Service-Learning, Schools, School Improvement

#### **Abstract:**

In service-learning, students apply theoretical knowledge in real-world contexts, aligning problem-solving with academic curriculum requirements (Bringle & Clayton, 2012). This combination promotes students' civic attitudes, critical thinking, and social responsibility while addressing societal challenges in collaboration with societal partners (Derkau & Gerholz, 2023). These objectives are particularly relevant to initial teacher education, so we developed a service-learning seminar on school improvement with schools in socially disadvantaged areas and preservice teachers. Successful improvement benefits schools in socially challenging locations, enabling them to meet various external challenges (e.g., High poverty rates or poor infrastructure) (Holtappels et al., 2021). Accordingly, preparing preservice teachers for their role in school improvement seems sensible, especially as the topic has hardly been addressed in teacher training to date. To fulfil these requirements, our service-learning seminar introduced preservice teachers to school improvement processes from a theoretical and practical perspective.

The preservice teachers were first introduced to academic discourses on diversity-oriented school improvement and the specific challenges for school improvement faced by schools in socially disadvantaged locations (Kaluza & Schimek, 2021). Various areas of diversity-orientated school development were discussed, such as lesson planning, diversity sensitivity among teaching staff, and cooperation with stakeholders in the school's social environment. At the same time, they were trained in designing posters using appropriate software.

Preservice teachers then visited schools in socially disadvantaged areas that had applied to participate with selected school improvement projects. During the visits, the students learned about those projects and created posters describing them and situating them in the academic discourse on school improvement. These posters were then presented to members of the university, members of the participating schools, and other students at a poster conference. The preservice teachers received feedback on their posters, which they then incorporated. The participating schools could also exchange information about their school improvement projects. The participating schools then received the revised posters, which they could use to promote their school to parents, future pupils, authorities, or cooperation partners. In the context of the seminar,



the students also discussed their experiences during school visits. They reflected on their experiences and discussed the significance of their experiences for their future roles in school improvement projects.

As part of the conference presentation, the seminar concept and first results of the students' reflection process will be shared. The focus will be on qualitative content analysis (Mayring & Fenzl, 2019) of written reports submitted by the preservice teachers. Additionally, the results of a discussion phase will be presented, during which teachers, university staff, and students debated how service-learning concepts can succeed at schools in socially disadvantaged areas. The combined results will be discussed in the context of how successful service-learning concepts can be developed for schools in socially disadvantaged areas and preservice teachers.

- Bringle, R. G., & Clayton, P. H. (2012). Civic Education through Service Learning: What, How, and Why? In L. McIlrath, A. Lyons, & R. Munck (Eds.), *Higher education and civic engagement: Comparative perspectives* (pp. 101–124). Palgrave Macmillan. https://doi.org/10.1057/978113 7074829 7
- Derkau, J., & Gerholz, K.-H. (2023). Service-Learning in Lehramtsstudiengängen. Welche Lernorte eignen sich? *Journal Für Lehrer Innenbildung*, 23(2), 16–35. https://doi.org/10.35468/jlb-02-2023-01
- Holtappels, H. G., van Ackeren, I., Bremm, N., & Rutter, N. (2021). Schulen in herausfordernden Lagen entwickeln und unterstützen Fazit und Empfehlungen aus dem Projekt "Potenziale entwickeln Schulen stärken". In I. van Ackeren, H. G. Holtappels, N. Bremm, & A. Hillebrand-Petri (Eds.), Schulen in herausfordernden Lagen Forschungsbefunde und Schulentwicklung in der Region Ruhr: Das Projekt »Potenziale entwickeln Schulen stärken« (pp. 333–344). Beltz.
- Kaluza, C., & Schimek, B. (2021). Diversität und Schulentwicklung. *Schule Verantworten* | Führungskultur\_innovation\_autonomie(2), 112–119. https://doi.org/10.53349/sv.2021.i2.a86
- Mayring, P. & Fenzl, T. (2019). Qualitative Inhaltsanalyse. In N. Baur & J. Blasius (Eds..), *Handbuch Methoden der empirischen Sozialforschung* (pp. 633–648). Springer VS. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-658-21308-4\_42



### SESSION 5.2 SERVICE-LEARNING & THE POWER OF STORIES

### Bridging Academia over Poverty: a Data Science Service-Learning Initiative

Beltrán-Penagos, María Alejandra<sup>1</sup>, Martori, Francesc<sup>2</sup>, Albacete-Maza, Juan<sup>3</sup>, Agulló Chaler, Núria<sup>4</sup>

- <sup>1</sup> IQS Universitat Ramon Lull.
- <sup>2</sup> IQS Universitat Ramon Lull.
- <sup>3</sup> IQS Universitat Ramon Lull.
- <sup>4</sup> IQS Universitat Ramon Lull.

#### Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service learning

Keywords: aporophobia, business, data science, poverty, service-learning

#### **Abstract:**

Within the framework of the course "Data Science for Business", part of the fourth-year curriculum of the bachelor's degree in Business Administration and Management at IQS School of Management, a service-learning project was conducted. Fifty-five students, organized into groups of four, engaged in analyzing the results of a survey administered by the Association ASSÍS among its beneficiaries, most of them people who live in a situation of homelessness. The objective of this service-learning experience was twofold: first, to allow students to apply the knowledge acquired in the classroom regarding data analysis and visualization using the statistical software R; and second, to expose them to data about social issues that often lie beyond the daily reality of IQS students. Specifically, the intention was to raise awareness about the phenomenon of aporophobia (Cortina, 2017) by contextualizing the students within the experiences and stories of homeless individuals. The association stands to benefit from this collaboration by receiving both a comprehensive report detailing the students' analysis and infographics highlighting key findings, which will aid in their outreach and volunteer recruitment efforts within the community.

The association (ASSÍS Centre d'Acollida, n.d.) operates in Barcelona as a support network for individuals experiencing homelessness, providing shelter, social assistance, advocacy, basic services, housing, job placement, healthcare, and recreational and educational activities. On the other hand, IQS is a Jesuit institution and a constituent part of Universitat Ramon Llull, it was founded in 1905 and comprises two faculties: IQS School of Engineering and IQS School of Management. Its pedagogical approach, rooted in the Ledesma-Kolvenbach paradigm, focuses on sustainability, human dignity, and social well-being. This approach was further institutionalized in 2022 with the establishment of the Universidades Jesuitas (UNIJES, n.d.) platform to promote Service-Learning activities, within which this project falls.

The project unfolded over five two-hour class sessions. Initially, the association's social coordinator delivered a lecture to the students, introducing the organization, its work with the homeless population, and the conducted survey. Subsequent sessions were dedicated to data analysis and report writing within student groups. In the final session, each group presented their infographics, followed by a discussion on their learning outcomes and the surprises encountered, as well as reflections on one's perceptions and possible prejudices towards homeless people.



An evaluation committee comprising the university's Service-Learning coordinator, the Association's social coordinator, the Association's head of communication, and a beneficiary selected a winning infographic, which was subsequently featured in the Association's communication campaign. Furthermore, students were invited to participate in a survey assessing their experience, with 40 out of 55 students responding. Overall, feedback was highly positive, indicating significant perceived learning gains both in course content and awareness of the social realities explored. As possible areas for future development or research, one might consider how interaction with data and stories from homeless individuals has influenced students' understanding of aporophobia and other social problems. It would also be interesting to measure the specific impact of this project on students' attitudes towards aporophobia and other forms of social exclusion.

#### References:

Associació ASSÍS Centre d'Acollida. (n.d.). L'Entitat. Retrieved March 10, 2024, from https://www.assis.cat/lentitat/

Cortina, A. (2017). Aporofobia: el rechazo al pobre. Un desafío para la democracia. Paidós. UNIJES. (n.d.). Aprendizaje-Servicio en UNIJES. Retrieved February 17, 2023, from https://unijes.net/aprendizaje-y-servicio/



## SESSION 5.2 SERVICE-LEARNING & THE POWER OF STORIES

# Stories and Memories: development of a Service-Learning project in Gerontology

Peixoto, Ricardo<sup>1</sup>, Dias, Paulo César<sup>2</sup>, Vieira da Silva, Catarina<sup>3</sup>

- <sup>1</sup> Universidade Católica Portuguesa.
- <sup>2</sup> Universidade Católica Portuguesa.
- <sup>3</sup> Universidade Católica Portuguesa.

#### Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service learning

**Keywords:** social generativity; family; elderly; Gerontology

#### **Abstract:**

The relationship between grandparents and grandchildren is different from all the other family relationships, since it mixes time and timelessness, reality and fantasy, youth and experience, present and past... At the same time, it's a safe harbor for the grandchildren and a place of challenges, as the grandparents present different perspectives on being and living from those of the parents'.

In the last few decades, we've been watching, in the western world, a lot of significative changes in families, caused by the entrance of women in the job market and the emergence of new forms of families, among others, which made a difference on family dynamics. The drop of birth rates, along with the increase of the average life expectancy, introduced us the so called "family verticalization", where families tend to have less children and where there is a higher probability of coexistence of different generations in the same family and of sharing intergenerational experiences (Knipscheer, 1988; Szinovacz, 1998). The relationship between grandchildren and grandparents is an intergenerational effect of the birth of a new generation and, symbolically, its emergence calls the new grandparents to a new form of non-narcissist generativity, towards to the development of others instead of directed towards oneself. This so called "social generativity" includes an affective and knowledge and memory transmission to the new generation (Scabini & Cigoli, 2000; Cigoli & Scabini, 2006). Although generativity is often connected to a biological event, should not only be acknowledged as such.

Developmentally speaking, it is expected that grandparents, in their relationship with grandchildren, are able to go from a parental generativity to social generativity, evolving 2 from a position where the educational practices are in centre, to a position of mentoring, aiming to create, renew, keep and transmit the culture's symbolic system to which we belong (Kotre, 1996). It means experiencing a symbolic generativity, that manifests itself by cultivating and transmitting the family, social and cultural heritage (Raguso, 2010). Although the social generativity is typical of the relationship between grandparents and grandchildren, it's not its exclusive and there are opportunities to establish it in other non-familial contexts, for instance, by establishing mentorships with younger generations. However, it must be acknowledged that this isn't customary in our country.



This paper has, as main purpose, to present Service-Learning projects created by groups pf students of the Applied Social Gerontology Master and applied in retirement homes, under a main project called "Estórias e Memórias" — Stories and Memories. The projects are designed in order to develop their social generativity capacity, by establishing mentorships with their grandchildren or other children or adolescents. These projects revolve around group dynamics, such as photo albums, that allow the elderly so orally remember different times and traditions; themed dialogues and knowledge sharing; group reading sessions, that may help to unblock other memories. It's mainly a theoretical paper, where the different development stages of a Service-Learning are presented and discussed, as well as the implications to the learning and development of the students.

- Cigoli, V. & Scabini, E. (2006). Family identity. Ties, symbols and transitions. Lawrence Erlbaum Associates, Publishers.
- Knipscheer, C. P. M. (1988). Temporal embeddedness and aging within the multigenerational family: the case of grandparenting. In J. E. Birren & V. Bengtson (Eds.), Emergent theories of aging (pp. 427–446). Springer.
- Kotre, J. N. (1996). Outliving the self: how we live on future generations. W. W. Norton & Company.
- Scabini, E. & Cigoli, V. (2000). Il famigliare. Legami, simboli e transizioni. Raffaelo Cortina Editore.
- Szinovacz, M. E. (1998). Grandparents today: a demographic profile. The Gerontologist, 38(1), 37–52. doi: 10.1093/geront/38.1.37



## SESSION 5.2 SERVICE-LEARNING & THE POWER OF STORIES

#### **Development of Storytelling to Enhance Executive Functions**

Hervás-Torres, Mirian<sup>1</sup>, Bellido-González, Mercedes<sup>2</sup>, Soto-Solier, Pilar Manuela<sup>3</sup>

#### Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service-learning

**Keywords:** E-Service-Learning, inclusive, digital competences, video-animations, executive functions.

#### **Abstract:**

The challenge of how to educate children for an inclusive and digital society is increasingly relevant. The university sector, through its third mission, must provide resources to support this goal. Therefore, Design-Based Learning (Anderson & Shattuck, 2012), E-Service-Learning (Malvey et al., 2006), along with collaborative audiovisual and digital storytelling design in the classroom (Del Moral et al., 2016) allow the interaction of complementary methods, promoting understanding of the different interactions in the teaching-learning processes. This has inspired a line of projects - FEJYLEN, FEJYLENVAL, FEJYFAM and Videoteca DIGIFELEN- aimed at creating a network of collaboration between university (enrolled in Early intervention in child development and Speech Therapy intervention in early intervention subject at the University of Granada), early childhood schools, early intervention centers and family. In this case, university students have created video-animations using Genial.ly platform to enhance the executive functions of Early Childhood Education students for subsequent implementation.

The objectives set for these experiences were as follows:

- 1. Improve the executive functions of Early Childhood Education students.
- 2. Increase the digital competences of university students.
- 3. Create synergies and cooperation networks between universities, early childhood schools, early intervention centers and family.

The methodology used for these studies was:

- 1. Design of audiovisual and digital materials.
- 2. Initial assessment of participating students.
- 3. Implementation of video-animations whit early childhood students.
- 4. Final evaluation of participating students.

A total of 360 video-animations have been created, selected according to Standards 71362 of the Standards Reports on Learning, Education and Training Technologies and Information Systems (Ministerio de Educación Cultura y Deporte, 2017). The video-animations that met these standards were included in the video library DIGIFELEN (https://digifelen.ugr.es/). It can be concluded that Early Intervention teachers and families have positively valued the educational and interactive, digital and audiovisual materials created by university students and supervised by university faculty.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>University of Granada.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>University of Granada.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>University of Granada.

- Anderson, T., & Shattuck, J. (2012). Design-based research: A decade of progress in education research? *Educational Researcher*, 41, 16-25. https://doi.org/10.3102/0013189X11428
- Del Moral, E., Villalustre, L., & Neira, R. (2016). Habilidades sociales y creativas promovidas con el diseño colaborativo de digital storytelling en el aula. *Digital Education Review*, 30. https://lab-movil-2222.pubpub.org/pub/60ihchvr
- Malvey, D. M., Hamby, E. F., & Fottler, M. D. (2006). E-service learning: A pedagogic innovation for healthcare management education. *Journal of Health Administration Education*, 33(2), 181-198.
- Ministerio de Educación, Cultura y Deporte (2017). Estándares sobre Tecnologías y Sistemas de la Información para el Aprendizaje, la Educación y la Formación (ITLET). INTEF.



# SESSION 5.3 SERVICE-LEARNING IN TEACHER EDUCATION

Narrating Development, Weaving Identity. An Experience of Service Learning within a Tailoring Workshop

Gerolin, Alessandra<sup>1</sup>

#### Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service learning

**Keywords:** identity, development, human flourishing, capabilities, narrative ethics

#### **Abstract:**

The Service Learning project "Narrating development, weaving identity" consists in accompanying women of different nationalities, who live a state of fragility (mainly victims of slave trading) and who are now involved in a project of Caritas ambrosiana named "Taivè' (which means 'thread'), to a full human development. Taivè is a small tailoring workshop based in Milan where women learn a job and carry out a path of empowerment. The students of the Faculty of Education taking part to this experience attend the workshop and work actively with women (sewing, meeting people, lialiasing with volunteers etc.). Many textiles used for producing manufacts are discarded fabrics to which women and students give 'a new life' for a sustainable and generative economy. Students help women to become aware of their human value and the value of their path of empowerment which aim is not only to learn a job and improve skills, but to flourish as human beings.

Through the practice of dialogue during moments of common work in the workshop, students interact with women of Taivè creating a path of narrative ethics which helps women to achieve self-awareness of their worth and their identity. Students also use conceptual frames deriving from the theory of Capability Approach: in order to flourish, human beings need to develop not only functionings (to be able to do something) but capabilities (substantial freedoms and the capacity to choose what is good for their flourishing). The project includes public events (in the city, at the University and also within prestigious exhibitions) in which women and students narrate the experience of working together, interacting and doing workshops with people and visitors. During the event which took place at the University, women told to the academic community the importance of being recognized by students for their value, which is more decisive than the wounds suffered. Students have not just the opportunity to put in practice what they have learned during the academic courses, but to live with the women an experience of real development.

This project provides the students with an olistic education which allows them to develop knowledge through a permanent interaction with civil society, in order to offer important contributions for serving people and for reaching common goods necessary for civil coexistence. In this experience students learn reciprocity and mutuality, within a network of 'giving and receiving' so important for democratic life: sharing time, knowledge and skills engenders an experience of gratuity and personal enrichment, necessary for human flourishing and for experiencing diversity as a richness (in particular, some of their perspectives have been reframed by the encounter with women). Students collaborate also to create a network of people interacting with the workshop of Taivè, in order to promote active citizenship and social inclusion, civic



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Università Cattolica del Sacro Cuore, Italy.

interplay, equality, to support female entrepreneurship, to pay attention to people who are in need at a local level, to educate each other to gratuitousness within civil society and the reality of the neighbourhood.

- Bonastre, C., García-Gil, D., & Cuervo, L. (2023). Aprendizaje-Servicio en Educación Musical ante los retos de la virtualización. In: A. Guillén-Riquelme (Ed.) International Handbook of Innovation and Assessment of the Quality of Higher Education and Research, vol. 1 [1<sup>a</sup> ed., junio 2022] (pp.29-34). Thomson Reuters-Civitas. ISBN: 978-84-1390-873-1
- Camilli, C., Cuervo, L., García-Gil, D., & Bonastre, C. (2021). Mixed Methods Research in Service-Learning: An Integrative Systematic Review. Quality & Quantity. International Journal of Methodology, 56, 2361-2386. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11135-021-01218-3
- MacIntyre, A. (2009). Dependent Rational Animals. Why Human Beings Need the Virtues. Bloombsbury. Nussbaum M. (2013), Creating Capabilities. The Human Development Approach. Harvard University Press.
- Sen, A. (1999). Development as Freedom. Anchor Books.
- Taylor, C., Nanz, P., Taylor M. B. (2020). How Citizens are Building from the Ground Up. Harvard University Press.



# SESSION 5.3 SERVICE-LEARNING IN TEACHER EDUCATION

Academics' reflections on the personal and professional impact of using service learning in undergraduate teaching

Brady, Abbe<sup>1</sup>, Davies, Laura<sup>2</sup>, Healy, Melina<sup>3</sup>, Daniels, Sara<sup>4</sup>

Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service learning

**Keywords:** academic staff, professional development, student development

#### **Abstract:**

Advocates of Service Learning (SL) across a wide range of disciplines view it as a transformative pedagogy. SL involves students taking part in meaningful real-world activities designed to respond to a community partner's needs which align with programme-related learning objectives. Systematic reviews and meta-analyses provide substantial evidence of the positive impact of SL for students and others involved i.e. HE staff, universities/HE colleges and community organisations and their members/users (Alaez et al., 2023; Culsacl & Paz Fontana Venegas, 2021; Salam et al., 2019, Yamamoto et al., 2023). Nevertheless, the majority of empirical accounts in SL report outcomes for students rather than other parties such as university teaching staff.

As SL is often initiated and overseen by university teaching staff who share an understanding and commitment to using SL as a teaching methodology, we propose that there is much to be gained from examining academics' experience of SL. Therefore, this presentation presents mini vignettes from four academics who each selected two themes of personal and/or professional significance arising from their experience of using SL in undergraduate teaching. Themes addressed in this presentation include: cultivating reciprocity in the university-community partnership, the changing nature of staff-student relationships, professional growth and identity for staff, meaningful experiences for staff and students, staff modelling of 'reflection in/on action', inclusive practice and behaviours, seeing students beyond the classroom and witnessing the developmental impact of students seeing themselves as professionals. Formally identifying these themes as part of a reflective research activity has added to our awareness of the breadth of impact associated with SL and how our own motivation as teachers and organisers of SL relates to our own experience of it. The themes identified in this session have critically informed our understanding and ongoing practice in SL and collectively, they provide an insight to the value of SL for an often overlooked population at the heart of higher education.

#### References:

Aláez, M., Díaz-Iso, A., Eizaguirre, A., & García-Feijoo, M. (2022). Bridging Generation Gaps Through Service-Learning in Higher Education: A Systematic Review. Frontiers in Education (Lausanne), 7.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> St Mary's University

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> St Mary's University

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> St Mary's University

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> St Mary's University

- Culcasi, I., & Paz Fontana Venegas, R. (2023). Service-Learning and soft skills in higher education: a systematic literature review. *Form@re, 23*(2), 24-43.
- Salam, M., Awang Iskandar, D. N., Ibrahim, D. H. A., & Farooq, M. S. (2019). Service learning in higher education: a systematic literature review. *Asia Pacific Education Review*, 20(4), 573-593.
- Yamamoto, F.R., Barker, L., & Voida, A. (2023). CISing Up Service Learning: A Systematic Review of Service Learning Experiences in Computer and Information Science. *ACM Transactions on Computing Education*, 23(3)37, 1-56.



# SESSION 5.3 SERVICE-LEARNING IN TEACHER EDUCATION

The impact of Service-Learning with TPR method on competences of EFL Teacher Education Students

Hooli, Eeva-Maria<sup>1</sup>, Ruiz-Montero, Pedro Jesus<sup>2</sup>

Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service learning

**Keywords:** university education, teaching English as a foreign language, intercultural competence, Total Physical Response, migrants

#### **Abstract:**

Service-Learning (SL) is an active methodology that is gaining ground across Spanish universities due to its experiential, community-based and reflective characteristics (Ruiz Montero et al., 2022). The present study aimed to provide an overview of the impact of Physical Activity (PA) based SL program on different competences of English as a foreign language (EFL) teacher education students. The Total Physical Response (TRP) method, which aims to develop listening comprehension and verbal communication skills of students at the beginning level through physical actions, was used as a main tool.

Fourteen students, who studied in the Degree Program in Primary Education in the Faculty of Education and Sports Sciences in the Campus of Melilla of the University of Granada, Spain, offered services to migrant groups in the Migrant Temporary Stay Centre in the autonomous city of Melilla. This Spanish city is located on the North Coast of Africa next to Morocco. Thus Melilla is a special place where a European Union country and an African country have land border. The intervention programme, which focused on teaching of EFL was carried out over four weeks and included eight sessions with 4–17 years old migrants. A qualitative study was designed to evaluate the achievement of linguistic competence and intercultural competence of the university students. A reflective diary was used as an instrument for data collection. As the former studies have shown, SL leads to improvements in students' academic and social skills (Hébert & Hauf, 2015).

The results of the present study support that showing that SL participation has an impact on linguistic competence. The most significant impact was shown in productive skills, that is to say writing and speaking in English. Furthermore, the results of the present study showed improvements in intercultural competence of the participant students. Intercultural competence refers to the ability to ensure a shared understanding by the people of different social identities and their ability to interact with people as complex human beings with multiple identities (Council of Europe).



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> University of Granada.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> University of Granada.

- Council of Europe. Common European Framework of Reference for Languages: learning, teaching, assessment Companion volume. Ministry of Education, and Professional Formation. Government of Spain: Madrid, Spain, 2020.
- Hébert, A., & Hauf, P. (2015). Student Learning Through Service Learning: Effects on academic development, civic responsibility, interpersonal skills and practical skills. Active Learning in Higher Education, 16(1), 37–49. https://doi.org/10.1177/1469787415573357
- Ruiz-Montero, P.J., Santos-Pastor, M.L., Martínez Muñoz, L. F. & Chiva-Bartoll, O. (2022). Influence of the university service-learning on professional skill of students from physical activity and sport degree. Educación XX1, 25(1), 119-141. https://doi.org/10.5944/educXX1.30533



# SESSION 6.1 SERVICE-LEARNING IMPACT ON STUDENTS' ATTITUDES

# Exploring the Impact of Service-Learning on University Students' Community Representations

Mota Ribeiro, Luísa<sup>1</sup>, Miranda, Francisca<sup>2</sup>, Silva, Ariane<sup>3</sup>, C. Dias, Paulo<sup>4</sup>, Themudo, Carmo<sup>5</sup>, Oliveira, Ana<sup>6</sup>, A. Pink, Matthew<sup>7</sup>, G. Bringle, Robert<sup>8</sup>

- <sup>1</sup> Universidade Católica Portuguesa, Faculty of Education and Psychology, Research Centre for Human Development.
- <sup>2</sup> Universidade Católica Portuguesa, Faculty of Education and Psychology, Research Centre for Human Development.
- <sup>3</sup> Universidade Católica Portuguesa, Faculty of Education and Psychology, Research Centre for Human Development.
- <sup>4</sup> Universidade Católica Portuguesa, Faculty of Philosophy and Social Sciences, Centre for Philosophical and Humanistic Studies.
- <sup>5</sup> Universidade Católica Portuguesa, Unit for the Integral Development of the Person.
- <sup>6</sup> Universidade Católica Portuguesa, Faculty of Human Sciences, Católica Research Centre for Psychological, Family and Social Wellbeing.
- <sup>7</sup> Australian Catholic University, ACU Engagement.
- <sup>8</sup> Indiana University Indianapolis, School of Science, Department of Psychology.

#### Conference track: Empirical research on service-learning and service-learning impact

Keywords: service-learning, university students, social representations, nonverbal data, community

#### **Abstract:**

SL integrates curricular content with service activities, fostering active engagement among university students and community members (Bringle & Clayton, 2021; Stark et al., 2016). Although the existing literature extensively discusses the impact of SL on university students (e.g., Allen et al., 2021; Fong et al., 2023; Samino Garcia, 2023), its influence on their perceptions of community remains unexplored. Supported by Moscovicci's theory of social representations, this study analyzed Psychology and Social Work university students' nonverbal representations of the community before and after engaging in SL. The focus on analyzing the community representations by these students aligned with the nature of their future professional roles because, as practitioners, they often engage in community-based interventions aimed at addressing community issues and mobilizing resources accordingly (Phillips, 2011). Hence, examining the social representations of the community held by these students is crucial, because they could influence future professional practices in community interventions.

This quasi-experimental study comprised an experimental group (EG) and a control group (CG), with pre- and post-test design. A total of 170 Psychology and Social Work students from Universidade Católica Portuguesa participated in this study, with 85 in the EG engaged in five SL courses, and 85 in the CG, from seven courses. These students, predominantly female, were attending the 1st and 2nd year of their degree in Social Work; the 3rd year of a Psychology degree; and the 1st year of a Master's degree in Psychology. The pre-test occurred before the students in



the EG started their SL projects, and at the beginning of the semester for the CG. All students (EG + CG) were asked to complete a questionnaire that included sociodemographic and academic information along with tasks to draw negative and positive characteristics of their community ("Please draw a picture of the negative characteristics/traits of the community you are part of"; and "Please draw a picture of the positive characteristics/traits of the community you are part of"). The post-test involved repeating these tasks post-SL projects completion (EG) and at the end of the semester (CG).

Sociodemographic and academic data were analyzed using IBM SPSS, while NVIVO facilitated content analysis of the drawings. The examination of the drawings was guided by the research by Silva et al. (2020) which underscores the importance of visual forms of representation in facilitating the exploration of multiple perspectives, opinions, and beliefs across several topics. The study hypothesized that post-test drawings would unveil more complex representations, reflecting the implication of individual actions within these communities and a greater awareness of their complexity due to engagement in SL experiences. The results will compare the community representations of the EG students with the CG students and the pre- and post-test community representations of each of the groups, to analyse any differences. The results will be discussed in the light of the literature. Practical implications will offer insights for enhancing future SL project design and implementation and for the training of future psychologists and social workers to improve students' perspectives on and understanding of communities.

- Allen, J. A., Fosler, K., & Prange, K. (2021). All Service-Learning Experiences Are NOT Created Equal! Effects of Service-Learning Quality on Self-Efficacy and Engagement. Journal of Higher Education Outreach and Engagement, 25(4), 41-58.
- Bringle, R. G., & Clayton, P. (2021). Civic Learning: A Sine Qua Non of Service Learning. Frontiers in Education, 6. https://doi.org/10.3389/feduc.2021.606443
- Fong, B. Y. F., Yee, H. H. L., Ng, T. K. C., & Chiu, W. (2023). Intergenerational Service-learning: An Experience in Health Promotion among Undergraduate Students in Hong Kong. Journal of Intergenerational Relationships. https://doi.org/10.1080/15350770.2023.21725
- Moscovici, S. (1961). La psychanalyse: son image et son public. [Psychoanalysis: its image and its public]. Paris: PUF. Phillips, A. (2011). Service-Learning and social work competency-based education: a 'Goodness of fit'? Advances in Social Work, 12(1), 1-20. https://doi.org/10.18 060/1318
- Samino García, R. (2023). A service-learning program assessment: Strengths, weakness and impacts on students. Intangible Capital, 19(1), 4-24. https://doi.org/10.3926/ic.2093
- Silva, A. F. L., Cohen, G., & Gaymard, S. (2020). Images and social representations of students' identity and university experience. Papers on Social Representations, 29(2), 12.1–12.23. https://psr.iscte-iul.pt/index.php/PSR/article/view/543
- Stark, W. (Coord.), Aramburuzabala, P., McIlrath, L., Opazo, H., Altenburger, R., De Bruyn, K., Grönlund., H., Maas, S., Mažeikiene, N., Meijs, L., Mikelic, N., Millican, J., Nortomaa, A., Tuytschaever, G., Vargas-Moniz, M., Zani, B., (2016). Europe engage developing a culture of civic engagement through service-learning within higher education in Europe. Quality standards for service learning activities. Europe Engage.



# SESSION 6.1 SERVICE-LEARNING IMPACT ON STUDENTS' ATTITUDES

# Understanding the impact of community service learning through the lenses of student agency and awareness

Ciska Ulug¹, Eldris Con Aguilar², Geertje Tijsma³, Eduardo Urias⁴, Marjolein Zweekhorst⁵

- <sup>1</sup> Athena Instituut, Vrije Universiteit.
- <sup>2</sup> Athena Instituut, Vrije Universiteit.
- <sup>3</sup> Athena Instituut, Vrije Universiteit.
- <sup>4</sup> Athena Instituut, Vrije Universiteit.
- <sup>5</sup> Athena Instituut, Vrije Universiteit.

# Conference track: Empirical research on service-learning and service-learning impact

**Keywords:** awareness, agency, community service learning, impact, student competencies

## **Abstract:**

This paper aims to explain how activities in a Community Service Learning (CSL) course foster capacities in students within the different dimensions of agency and awareness. By studying how CSL course activities enable student agency and awareness?

The service learning project was developed within the course the spring 2023 bachelor's course, Gezondheid in de Stad ("Health in the City"), at the Vrije Universiteit Amsterdam which served as a case study for this paper. This course counts a participation of approximately 60 students per year. The Spring 2023 course that we have selected for this study consisted of two commissioners (partnerships): Stadsboederij Osdorp, an urban farm in Amsterdam Nieuw West and the municipality of Amstelveen, a village just south of Amsterdam.

The Stadsboederij Osdorp commissioned students to explore the needs of young adults (18-25) in the neighborhood, and how the farm can better meet their needs. On the other hand, the municipality of Amstelveen is rolling out a health program called Welzijn op Recept (Wellbeing by Prescription), an alternative to traditional medicine where healthcare professionals instead refer people with psycho-social complaints to a welfare coach. Therefore the municipality commissioned the students to explore the question of the image residents have of this referral system – if they would use it and why (not).

The course followed a formative evaluation that weights significance to reflection as part of service learning. Therefore besides preparing a final report and presentation to the commissioner which took place in July 2023 at the Science with Society Festival in Amsterdam; students completed personal, and group work and research reflections throughout the course. This study followed a mixed-method approach. The sample for this study consisted of 35 students who completed student reflections and survey data. Student participation was voluntary. Data collected and analysed includes exclusively students that gave consent for the reading and analysis of their reflective exercises and their participation in the survey, via a signed informed consent form.



Students were informed that there were no risks to participating (e.g. their grades for the course would not be affected by their participation), they had the right to withdraw from the study at any stage, and that data was safely stored and anonymized. While the course coordinator is participating as a co-author in this manuscript, they were not involved in the data collection and analysis, both of which were done after grades for the course were submitted and finalized.

Moreover, the authors completed an online ethics Self-Check form offered by the host university, which confirmed that no further evaluation by the Research Ethics Review Committee was required. The results of this study point out service-learning course design factors that enable agency and awareness. We found that agency is much more present in the course elements than awareness. The implications of these findings contribute to reinforcing course elements that can enable in an equal manner students' agency and awareness in service-learning course design.



# SESSION 6.2 TRANSDISCIPLINARITY IN SERVICE-LEARNING

Civic Reflection on Action: an Institution-wide civic reflection module at Hasselt University

Schepers, Franne<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Hasselt University.

# Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service-learning

Keywords: civic university, reflection, institution-wide, interdisciplinarity, educational policy

#### **Abstract:**

Since the historical roots of Hasselt University lie in commitment to the regional community, our choice to be a civic university aligns with our DNA. Our civic mission is aimed at making and keeping the Limburg region strong. In order to institutionalize this civic mission in our education, civic is a central theme in the educational policy plan. One of the objectives within this theme states that every program offers students a range of civic experiences, including at least one civic course. A civic course always meets the following three cumulative criteria, which align with those for service-learning courses but focus specifically on the region:

- 1. Collaboration with external partners in Limburg
- 2. Independent and critical deepening of academic and practical skills within a regional need or challenge
- 3. Independent and critical reflection on a complex regional need or challenge and the potential impact of the student.

Many programs at Hasselt University already include civic experiences, but reflection often takes a backseat to action. To support programs in reaching the goals of the educational policy plan, we developed an institution-wide civic reflection module.

While programs will continue to offer civic actions, the focus of the institution-wide module will be on fostering reflection. The module consists of five sessions, during which students reflect on their civic actions in interdisciplinary groups. The sessions follow the DEAL-model by Ash and Clayton (2009), tailored for reflection in service-learning courses.

- Session 1 Describe Students share their participation in a civic action, mapping societal needs and partners, and identifying optimization opportunities.
- Session 2 Examine Students reflect on their civic action, analyzing it for personal growth, civic engagement and academic enhancement. Additionally, they delve into a critical incident. They discuss each other's insights and needs.
- Session 3 Articulate Learning Students express the lessons learned from their reflection and their application in current or future civic actions. Seeking synergies, both intra- and interdisciplinary, they propose a new interdisciplinary civic action.
- Session 4 Test Students present and discuss their current actions and future ideas to a panel of regional stakeholders and teaching teams.



- Session 5 – Synthesis Students reflect on their conversations with stakeholders. They further extend the lessons learned from the reflection module: what civic roles can they take on in their future careers? And how can the university enhance its civic role?

During the academic year 2023-2024, a trial module was conducted involving ten Master of Architecture students. Faculty members from various programs also participated and plan to introduce the module to their students starting next academic year. Our goal is to gradually expand the institution-wide adoption of the civic reflection module. Additionally, we plan to develop an institution-wide civic action course. In the civic reflection module, students will propose a shared civic action to regional stakeholders. Implementing these ideas may lead to the course's creation. Furthermore, we are exploring the possibility of organizing existing program-specific civic actions in an interdisciplinary manner. We hope to ease this process by having students explore connections between their civic actions in the reflection module.

#### References:

Ash, S.L. & Clayton, P.H. (2009). Generating, Deepening, and Documenting Learning: The Power of Critical Reflection in Applied Learning. Journal of Applied Learning in Higher Education, 1, 25-48



# SESSION 6.2 TRANSDISCIPLINARITY IN SERVICE-LEARNING

# Breaking the Barriers: Introducing Credit Bearing Interdisciplinary Service-Learning in a UK Higher Education Institution

Drake, Philip<sup>1</sup>, Lindley, Rachel<sup>2</sup>, Kinakh, Vitalia<sup>3</sup>, Farrington, Rebecca<sup>4</sup>, Ariyaratnam, Raj<sup>5</sup>

Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service-learning

**Keywords:** Interdisciplinary, service-learning, curriculum integration

### **Abstract:**

From the beginning of vegetarianism, to starting the global cooperative movement and women's suffrage, and the establishment of the Trades Union Council, Manchester has been at the heart of socially progressive ideals in the United Kingdom. It is perhaps then no surprise that social responsibility is one of the three core strategic priorities (alongside teaching and learning, and research and discovery) of the University of Manchester. However, whilst this core focus leads to social responsibility being incorporated into both its teaching and research, not dissimilar to most universities, students and academics tend to operate within their disciplinary 'silos', with many Faculties/Schools/Departments of the University operating independently of each other and rarely coming together to share ideas, activities or ventures.

This paper will explore how academics and students from healthcare science and the humanities, with very different disciplinary identities and epistementalities, ambitiously and creatively come together to form a service-learning community of practice (Lave and Wenger 1991). It will consider if, through a common intention of civic engagement; promoting students to volunteer, engage and work together in a positive, mutually beneficial, and symbiotic partnership with the local community (Thew et al. 2021), it is possible that the usual restrictions related to interdisciplinary work may be traversed and evaded. It will examine the difficulties arising in the reciprocal relationships that exist between the students, educators and community partners and also look to the possibility (and concurrent difficulties) of shifting interdisciplinary volunteering with reflection to a service-learning base of civic engagement, practical experience and academic study and the consequent necessity that follows of attempting to integrate this into the curriculum (Aramburuzabla, McIlrath, & Opazo 2019). This raises many potential complications, not least whether it is possible to 'breakout' of our specific disciplinary silos to provide a coherent and connected educational and community experience of mutual beneficence. It will consider if a focus on reflexivity and social (in)justice (Drake 2020), rather than specific disciplinary skills and knowledge, can help circumvent and reach beyond the problems facing an interdisciplinary module.

By adopting such an approach, questions arise, including how non-discipline specific intended learning outcomes ('ILOs') can be created for an interdisciplinary module (Spelt et al. 2009)? Such



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> The University of Manchester

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> The University of Manchester

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> The University of Manchester

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> The University of Manchester

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> The University of Manchester

questions are important to consider how pedagogically astute forms of assessment can be applied equally and consistently to students studying in multi-disciplinary areas such as law, medicine and dentistry, as well as other less professionally focused areas of study.

Introspection of existing discipline specific service-learning credit bearing modules will be provided, together with a scrutiny of how these may be adapted to create a service-learning experience that exposes students and educators to a conjoined pedagogical experience where students work with often the most vulnerable, disadvantaged and marginalised to break down barriers not only between higher education institutions and the communities they serve, but also for learning.

#### References:

Aramburuzabla, P., McIlrath, L., & Opazo, H. (2019). Embedding Service Learning in European Higher Education: Developing a Culture of Civic Engagement. Routledge.

Lave, J., & Wenger, E. (1991). Situated learning Legitimate peripheral participation. Cambridge University Press.

Spelt, E. J. H., Biemans, H. J. A., Tobi, H., Luning, P. A., & Mulder, M. (2009) Teaching and Learning in Interdisciplinary Higher Education: A Systematic Review. *Educational Psychology Review*. 21, 365–378. DOI 10.1007/s10648-009-9113-z.



# SESSION 6.2 TRANSDISCIPLINARITY IN SERVICE-LEARNING

Discover. Experiment. Co-create. Learn. Case study of a new transdisciplinary partnership in community-engaged learning

Ben Shalom, Anna<sup>1</sup>, Vlaanderen, Danielle<sup>2</sup>, Renes, Marlon<sup>3</sup>, Jonkman-Bakker, Marieke<sup>4</sup>

# Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service-learning

**Keywords:** Community-engaged learning, Partnership relations, Co-creation, Social impact, Qualitative research

### **Abstract:**

This case study aims to explore partnership relationships and models in community-engaged learning, by presenting a case study about a Community-Engaged Learning (CEL) course entitled I am Utrecht. Some research has been conducted on exploring existing partnership relations and partnership models. The existing literature focuses on the characteristics that make the partnership work or the type of partnership models that CEL can offer, including course-driven, partnerdriven, and theme-driven partnership models. However, in the course I am Utrecht we experience a new and more complex type of partnership, in which teachers of Utrecht University (UU) and an MDT societal partner (Serve the City Utrecht ) are co-designing the CEL course, whilst participating students and other societal partners form theme-driven partnerships during the course. This innovative case study explores the integrated curriculum co-design of the CEL course by exploring the co-creation process in the transdisciplinary team of teachers from the educational science department of Utrecht University and the MDT societal partner, responsible for the MDT (Maatschappelijke Diensttijd) trajectory of the students. MDT is a governmental scheme of voluntary work for young people from ages 12 to 30 to contribute to society. Participants and stakeholders gain experience with connecting to people outside their regular living environment. Upon completion of the requirements of the MDT, the volunteering students receive an MDT certificate.

During the course, the MDT partner is primarily interested in capturing the personal learning goals and growth of students to ensure the MDT goals are met whilst UU teachers focus the class activities on both the personal learning goals of students and on creating meaningful social change in the local communities. In our experience, and according to sociocultural theory (Vygotsky & Rieber, 1997, Rogoff, 2003) the two are inseparable: personal growth takes place in a social and cultural context. Social change takes place when all parties are committed to learning. (Greenwood, D. J. & Levin, M., 2007). This project aims to integrate personal learning and social change by capturing the co-design of the course which is the product of the co-learning process of the transdisciplinary team of UU teachers and the MDT partner. All stakeholders (students, teachers, partners, and MDT partner) are striving for social impact and are open to personal and collective learning to achieve this. With this case study, we aim to develop a co-learning framework at the



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Utrecht University.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Utrecht University.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Utrecht University.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Serve The City Utrecht.

teacher-MDT partner level to capture the intensive co-learning process that takes place in this course as we believe that a more integrated curriculum design is a result of a collaborative learning process which in turn creates a more powerful learning environment for the participants of the course.

- Farnell, T. & Culum, B. (2021). Towards a European Framework of Community Engagement in Higher Education. In B. &. Hall (Ed.), Socially Responsible Higher Education. International Perspectives on Knowledge Democracy (pp. 253-264). Brill. Retrieved from https://www.jstor.org/stable/10.1163/j.ctv1v7zbn5.27
- Greenwood, D. J. & Levin, M. (2007). Introduction to Action Research: Social Research for Social Change (Vol. 2nd). Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage.
- Soslau, E., & Gartland, S. (2021). "I want them to feel heard. I want their voices to be agents of change": Exploring a Community-Engaged Partnership Focused on Critical Service-Learning. Journal Of Community Engagement And Scholarship, 13(2). https://doi.org/10.54656/yimw 9070
- Vygotsky, L. S., & Rieber, R. W. (Ed.). (1997). The collected works of L. S. Vygotsky, Vol. 4. The history of the development of higher mental functions. (M. J. Hall, Trans.). Plenum Press.



# SESSION 6.3 DIGITALIZATION IN SERVICE-LEARNING

# Digitally competent, socially conscious: Engaging the degrees in education in service learning

De Oliveira, Janaina Minelli<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Universitat Rovira i Virgili.

# Conference track: Best practices and practical experiences in service-learning

**Keywords:** Digital competence, education, social commitment, service learning, communicative skills.

#### **Abstract:**

This project is carried out in the teaching of the subject Communicative Skills, in the Multimodal Literacy module, in four different degrees of the Faculty of Educational Sciences and Psychology: Early Childhood Education, the double degree in Early Childhood and Primary Education, the degree in Pedagogy and the degree in Social Education. Two academic courses have engaged in the project. In its first edition in the 2022-23 academic year, 107 students and six community organizations participated. In the 2023-24 academic year, 182 students and 19 organizations participated. Students work in groups of five over the course of 15 weeks to produce an infographic, a video, a podcast, and a comic, all based on the assignment provided by the entities. Every semiotic object is created to spread the goals of the partner organizations, who may then post the results of the students' work on their websites, social media accounts, or promotional events. At the start of the project, each group of students has a virtual meeting with their cooperating entity. After that, communication is maintained by email while the work is being prepared. Additionally, the entities take part digitally in the students' final exhibition of their works. Students have given their works' ability to assist real entities a very high rating. They also enjoyed learning from the hands of the collaborating entities and experiencing realities that were in most cases very different from their own. At the same time, the entities cherish the chance to raise awareness among future educators regarding their values and projects.

Harmonizing several rhythms, such as that of an association whose members primarily develop their activities in their spare time and a university subject with a demanding syllabus, is one of the challenges encountered. Students are also exposed to real-world experiences through SL. Organizations view students as adults with expectations that they must meet, which has occasionally called for students to be resilient and project managers to be adept at handling disputes. But in every instance, the learning has been priceless.

This project was distinguished with the URV Social Council Award for Teaching Quality 2024 and is the Universitat Rovira i Virgili's nominee for the Jaume Vicens Vives 2024 distinction.



# SESSION 6.3 DIGITALIZATION IN SERVICE-LEARNING

# Service-Learning in Computer Science, an Opportunity to work in accessibility

Rodríguez-Fórtiz, María José<sup>1</sup>, Rodríguez-Almendros, María Luisa<sup>2</sup>, Escobar-Pérez, Juan José<sup>3</sup>, Bermúdez-Edo, María<sup>4</sup>, Prados-Suárez, Belén<sup>5</sup>

# Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service-learning

Keywords: Service-Learning, Computer Science, Accessibility, Agile Methodologies, Soft skills

#### **Abstract:**

The universities have to provide the students with opportunities to acquire knowledge, but also to gain a sense of community and personal responsibility, preparing them to the professional world (Overton, 2015). Service-Learning (SL) is a methodology which provides educational experiences on a practical level, with a high impact on the students because of the meaningful community service activities. Faculty and community partners also receive benefits from the collaboration (Bringe et al., 2023). Most of the projects that apply SL in universities are developed in education, social or health studies (Salam et al., 2019). This is due that they are more related to the service to the community, even implementing some practices in real contexts. However, it is hard to find projects applying SL in the Computer Science area, focusing the most of them in teaching the community partner concepts related to the area, such as programming, or office programs.

In the University of Granada we are applying SL in the area of Computer Science, developing accessible applications for different community partners that have people with special needs. Each year we collaborate with a different community partner: an association, a school, or a non-profit organization. The last year, our partner was a special education school, whose students needed a mobile application with agenda of personalized activities to be carried out step to step, such as, making the bed, cleaning or cooking. This application had to be accessible for students with cognitive, visual or auditory disabilities. They also need a web application to manage the school student's profiles, and the activities.

To give more detail of our experience, we will describe the steps followed in the application of SL:

- 1. The faculty prepare materials: user requirements, technical specifications, surveys, etc.
- 2. The students are grouped into 6-person teams, with different roles. Each team analyses the materials and prepare an interview.
- 3. The community partner is interviewed to complete and clarify the requirements.
- 4. The students visit the community partner to know better its activities and the needs of its users.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Department of Languages and Computer Systems. University of Granada.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Department of Languages and Computer Systems. University of Granada.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Department of Languages and Computer Systems. University of Granada.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Department of Languages and Computer Systems. University of Granada.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> Department of Languages and Computer Systems. University of Granada.

- 5. The faculty prepare material to learn about accessibility and soft-skills, including practical activities, as the visit of a blind person, and the talk of a coaching.
- 6. The teams develop the applications following agile methodologies, which allow to create prototypes in an incremental way. The community partner collaborate with the students in the specification of requirements, design, validation and final tests. All the teams have to develop the same applications, but they decide about their chronograms, designs and technologies. One of the prototypes is selected to be used by the partner.
- 7. The students, faculty and community partner complete a survey to assess the experience.

Our experience of using SL in very rewarding. The survey's results shows that the project is useful for the future professional of our students because the collaboration with real entities, as the community partner. They also are more aware of the need to develop accessible and inclusive software, feeling now better prepared (Rodríguez-Fortiz et al., 2023).

- Bringle, R. G., Hatcher, J. A., & Jones, S. G. (Eds.). (2023). International service learning: Conceptual frameworks and research. Taylor & Francis.
- Overton, T. P. (2015). Measuring Effect of Graduate Student Service Learning Experiences: Pre-Post Self-Efficacy of Counseling and Educational Diagnostician Students. Journal of Service-Learning in Higher Education, 4(1), n1.
- Rodríguez-Fórtiz, M.J., Rodríguez-Almendros, M.L., Escobar-Pérez, J.J., Bermúdez-Edo, M., & Prados-Suárez, B. (2023). Cómo aplicar la metodología Aprendizaje-Servicio en Informática: Apprendo, un caso práctico. Actas de VI CONGRESO INTERNACIONAL UNIVERSIDAD Y DISCAPACIDAD. Fundación ONCE. Salamanca, Octubre 2023.
- Salam, M., Awang Iskandar, D. N., Ibrahim, D. H. A., & Farooq, M. S. (2019). Service learning in higher education: A systematic literature review. Asia Pacific Education Review, 20, 573-593.



# SESSION 6.4 RESOURCES FOR SERVICE-LEARNING INSTITUTIONALIZATION

# Innovation Resources for Best Practices in your Service-Learning Teaching

Penela Quinteros, Fernanda<sup>1</sup>, Fontana Venegas, Rocío<sup>2</sup>

- <sup>1</sup> Pontificia Universidad Católica de Chile.
- <sup>2</sup> Pontificia Universidad Católica de Chile.

# Conference track: Processes of service-learning institutionalization

**Keywords:** critical thinking – collaboration – community partners – pedagogy platform – teaching innovation.

#### **Abstract:**

Service Learning (SL) as a teaching-learning methodology has fundamental and particular characteristics in its implementation, such as reflection and the link established with community partners. Therefore, within the UC Service-Learning Program, in order to continue strengthening the institutionalization of the methodology, two platforms have been created that allow self-training, collaboration and linkage in the two aforementioned characteristics. This communication seeks to show both platforms, their potential and possible uses as resources and tools to improve the teaching-learning processes in courses with the A+S methodology.

First, there is what we have called the "Reflection Page", which is composed of resources, strategies and activities that seek to enhance and promote reflection in Service Learning. This is related to the development of the transversal skills that A+S UC seeks to promote, which include: communication skills, critical thinking, social commitment, teamwork and problem solving. It is important to remember that reflection is fundamental for the future professional role of students in society, either through personal experience in a service experience, thus contributing to quality service after completing the project. To promote the above, a repository has been designed that includes documents with reflection activities according to the level of depth to be implemented in the reflection strategy and can be reinforced with elements such as gamification and games. In addition, in this repository there are videos, documentaries, free access readings, among others.

A second initiative to strengthen the institutionalization of A+S in the UC is the so-called "Match Platform". Its purpose is associated with the challenge of management and communication, configured as a space to create links between the various actors of Service Learning, facilitating the generation of collaborative projects through the search and contact according to challenges and interests. It is through the creation of a user (with the role of teacher, student or community partner) where challenges can be exposed to address them through a subject that implements A+S and from there start working together during the implementation of the service project.

Both online platforms seek to promote the autonomy and self-training of key actors of the methodology or those who want to start Service Learning, resulting in the sustainability of A+S from its planning to its execution. The potential of these platforms is that they have a collaborative character, that is, those who enter also nurture these spaces either with experiences, activities, connections to work and/or execute projects together. The purpose is to promote



innovation and diversification of the activities and interactions developed in Service Learning, facilitating the processes. Having the virtual connection as an ally, it is possible to interact regardless of borders, strengthening the networks that finally become good practices for education. It is important to generate bridges that are dynamic in the interactions and advances that education in general is developing, and thus democratize resources so that teaching and learning processes are inclusive, diverse and relevant.

- Centro de Desarrollo Docente UC. (2024). Aprendizaje Servicio:Plataforma Match, https://www.plataformamatch.cl/ Centro de Desarrollo Docente UC. (2024). Aprendizaje Servicio: Web reflexión. www.reflexion.aprendizajeservicio.uc.cl
- Jouannet, C.; Salas, M. y Contreras, M. (2013). Modelo de implementación de Aprendizaje Servicio (A+S) en la UC: Una experiencia que impacta positivamente en la formación profesional integral. Calidad en la educación, 39, 197-212.
- Jouannet, C. (2017). Implementación de un Programa de Aprendizaje Servicio (A+S) desde la perspectiva de estudiantes participantes: Un estudio de caso en una universidad chilena. Tesis de Maestría. Universidad Alberto Hurtado. http://repositorio.uahurtado.cl/handle/11242/24635



# SESSION 6.4 RESOURCES FOR SERVICE-LEARNING INSTITUTIONALIZATION

# Mapping and Assessing Diversified Community-Engaged Teaching & Learning Practices using TEFCE Toolbox – YUFE Case Study

Ćulum Ilić, Bojana<sup>1</sup>, Dimnjašević, Tea<sup>2</sup>, Van Moer, Eva<sup>3</sup>, Cywińska-Raczkowska, Joanna<sup>4</sup>, Gallart Parramon, Silvia<sup>5</sup>

# Conference track: Processes of service-learning institutionalization

**Keywords:** University-community engagement, Engagement in higher education, Community-engaged teaching and learning, University-community partnerships, TEFCE Toolbox, Case-study

#### **Abstract:**

The broader societal contribution of higher education started re-emerging in the last decade as a European policy priority, expressed dominantly in EC Communiques, stating that higher education institutions should ensure that community engagement in higher education promotes diversity, equity and inclusion. This paper seeks to explore the advantages of the TEFCE Toolbox, a framework in Europe aimed at enhancing community engagement (CE) within higher education. Specifically designed to advance the CE agenda in a European context, the TEFCE Toolbox serves as an institutional self-assessment tool. It acts as a reference guide for universities, communities, and policymakers to gain a deeper understanding of CE dimensions in higher education. Additionally, it assists universities in evaluating their performance and areas for improvement across seven thematic dimensions of CE: teaching and learning, research, service and knowledge exchange, students, staff, management policies, and management engagement.

The TEFCE Toolbox guides users through a process of identifying CE practices within their institution. It encourages participatory discussions among various stakeholders to create an "institutional community-engagement heatmap." This heatmap assesses the authenticity of CE practices, societal needs addressed, diversity of engaged communities, spread of engagement across the university (and in this case across the YUFE alliance), and sustainability of engaged practices. Utilising a customised analytical framework called "SLIPDOT analysis" (Strengths, Areas of Lower Intensity, Areas with Potential for Development, Opportunities, and Threats), universities can delve deeper into CE discussions with academics, students, and community representatives.

This paper focuses on one TEFCE dimension - teaching and learning - by mapping and evaluating community-engaged partnerships between universities and non-academic entities through empirical cross-case study analysis within the YUFE alliance. Paper sets out to address the research question – what insights, benefits and future application possibilities arise from using the TEFCE Toolbox for analysing community-engaged teaching & learning practices in a context of European



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> University of Rijeka, Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>University of Rijeka.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> University of Antwerp.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Nicolaus Copernicus University in Toruń.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> Universidad Carlos III de Madrid.

university alliance - YUFE? The choice of a case-study research methodology within a qualitative research paradigm was deemed the most suitable. To explore the diverse application settings of the TEFCE Toolbox, the study followed multiple cross-country case-study designs (Yin, 2015). Multiple case design refers to case study research in which several instrumental bounded cases are selected to develop a more in-depth understanding of a phenomenon under study (Mills et al., 2010).

The results highlight the TEFCE Toolbox's adaptability to different university types and socioeconomic environments, and to the alliance context as well, thus bringing a novelty into analysing TEFCE Toolbox capabilities. Insights from various academic and non-academic actors show successful applications within diverse YUFE Universities, leading to recognition of CE achievements and areas for improvement. This specific analysis is immersed in teaching & learning TEFCE dimension and thus centres on various curricular, co-curricular, and lifelong learning engagement practices across YUFE Universities. The rich data collected from this analysis serves as a foundation for creating strategies and policies to institutionalise, recognize, and reward engaged practices and actors involved within YUFE alliance. Ultimately, the TEFCE Toolbox supports universities in addressing societal challenges and promoting community-engaged teaching and learning, contributing to the Societal Impact pillar of YUFE.

### **References:**

European Commission. (2017). Communication on a renewed EU agenda for higher education (COM 247). European Commission.

European Commission. (2020). Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions on achieving the European Education Area by 2025. European Commission.

Mills, A. J., Durepos, G., & Wiebe, E. (Eds.). (2010). Encyclopedia of case study research. Sage Publications.

Yin, R. K. (2015). Case study research: Design and methods (5th ed.). Sage Publications.



# SESSION 6.4 RESOURCES FOR SERVICE-LEARNING INSTITUTIONALIZATION

Interventions to Deepening Community-Campus Partnerships: Multi-Campus Reflections and Research Results – Updates

Robert G. Bringle<sup>1</sup>, H. M. Botkin <sup>2</sup>, J. Camo-Biogradlija<sup>3</sup>, P. H. Clayton<sup>4</sup>, L. E. Kniffin<sup>5</sup>, & M. F. Price<sup>6</sup>

# Conference track: Processes of service-learning institutionalization

**Keywords:** Community-campus relationships, transactional relationships, transformational partnerships

### **Abstract:**

Relationships are centrally important to the quality of service-learning, but they are often an under-examined aspect of practice and they remain an underdeveloped topic of scholarship and research (Bringle & Clayton, 2013; Bringle et al., 2009; Bringle & Hatcher, 2002). Kniffin et al. (2020) presented a new measure, TRES II (Transformational Relationship Evaluation Scale). It is based on an EUTT framework (exploitative, unilateral, transactional, transformational) that is unique in the literature as a way of conceptualizing differences in the quality of community-campus relationships. The EUTT continuum is applied to ten domains: goals, conflict, decision-making, resources, role of the partnership in each partner's work, role of the partnership in sense of self, extent and nature of interactions, power, outcomes, and satisfaction (later replaced with communication). TRES II has recently been embedded into the TRES II Reflection Framework, which is designed to heighten its meaning-making potential and its impact on practice.

This session will introduce TRES II, the Reflection Framework, which uses the DEAL model of critical reflection (Ash & Clayton, 2009), and following two updates: (a) a 6-month follow-up on the outcomes after using the Reflection Framework, and (b) a revised response format for TRES II that has eight levels and asks respondents to also indicate what change is possible in the next 12 months (in addition to "current" and "desired"). The Reflection Framework focuses on the nature of the partnership, an examination of partnership dynamics (e.g., power sharing, decision making), and generating actionable learning and improving practice among all participants in service-learning partnerships (instructors, students, community partners, community residents/clients, campus administrators).

Research was conducted with 37 participants from five campuses who engaged with the Reflection Framework and completed a 1-week and 6-month post-intervention survey. The Reflection Framework captured the current status of the relationship and the desired status of the relationship.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Indiana University

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>University of Nebraska

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>University of Michigan

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup>PHC Ventures

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup>Fort Hays State University

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup>The Forum on Education Abroad

Typically, partners completed the Reflection Framework individually, then came together with their partners to discuss their responses. Data on TRES II and 1-week and 6-month follow-up will be presented.

Responses on the survey indicated that completing the Reflection Framework positively influenced participants' perception of various aspects of the community-campus relationship, including: (a) their commitment to the community-campus relationship, (b) their clarity regarding the nature of the community-campus relationship, (c) how they think about others in the community-campus relationship, (d) their perspective on community engagement relationships now and in the future, and (e) follow through after using it on subsequent communications and action steps by a majority of the participants (Kniffin et al., 2023). The results of the research supported the conclusion that, for the first time, there is evidence that an intervention can lead to expecting improvements in community engagement relationships and taking action steps to deepen them. Those attending will be invited to consider ways in which these tools could be used in their practice and the types of research questions that could be explored using these or other tools focused on assessing partnership qualities.

- Ash, S. L., & Clayton, P. H. (2009). Generating, deepening, and documenting learning: The power of critical reflection for applied learning. *Journal of Applied Learning in Higher Education*, 1, 25-48
- Bringle, R. G., & Clayton, P. H. (2013). Conceptual frameworks for partnerships in service learning. In P. H. Clayton, R. G. Bringle, & J. A. Hatcher (Eds.). Research on service learning: Conceptual frameworks and assessment Vol. 2B: Communities, institutions, and partnerships (pp. 539-571). Stylus.
- Bringle, R. G., Clayton, P. H., & Price, M. F. (2009). Partnerships in service learning and civic engagement. *Partnerships: A Journal of Service Learning & Civic Engagement*, 1(1), 1-20.
- Bringle, R. G., & Hatcher, J. A. (2002). University-community partnerships: The terms of engagement. *Journal of Social Issues*, 58, 503-516.
- Kniffin, L., Camo-Biogradlija, J., Price, M. F., Kohl, E., Williams, J., Dickovick, A. D. C., Goodwin, J., Johnson, K. V., Clayton, P. H., & Bringle, R. G. (2020). Relationships and partnerships in community-campus engagement: Evolving inquiry and practice. *International Journal of Research on Service-Learning and Community Engagement*, 8(1), Article 15.
- Kniffin, L. E., Clayton, P. H., Camo-Giogradlija, J., Price, M. F., Bringle, R. G., & Botkin, H. M. (2023). Using a critical reflection framework to deepen community-campus relationships and partnerships: A multi-institutional mixed-methods study. *International Journal of Research on Service-Learning and Community Engagement*, 11(1).



# **POSTER PRESENTATION 1**

# SLIDE: Service-Learning as a pedagogy to promote Inclusion, Diversity and Digital Empowerment

Somers, Kaat<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> University Centre Saint-Ignatius Antwerp (UCSIA).

Conference track: Collaboration & alliances for service-learning

**Keywords:** service-learning, digital empowerment, diversity, digital inclusion

#### Abstract:

The <u>SLIDE project</u> (1/01/22-31/12/24) is a collaboration between seven Higher Education Institutions (HEI) and three Service-Learning networks. SLIDE aims to intertwine the Service-Learning (SL) pedagogy with Digital Empowerment (DE) to promote inclusion and diversity. The project brings together students and academics from a wide range of European universities to draw on existing practices, share knowledge and develop best practices in and with the community whereby all become teaching resources, problem solvers, and partners. The overall purpose of SL is to foster a sense of civic engagement and responsibility in students and to motivate them to produce positive social change, while the purpose of DE is to make an individual fit to the digital technology, placing that individual at the centre of teaching and drawing upon his personal experiences to engage him.

The project meets three needs of contemporary education, that came more apparent during the COVID-19 crisis:

- To digitally empower university teachers who should rapidly transform into learning experience designers and experts in emerging technologies;
- To close the gap between self-perceived and actual digital competences of university students by equipping them with appropriate skills and sensitizing them towards digital inclusion of underprivileged and underrepresented groups;
- To combine DE of teachers and students with S-L, while establishing connections between Higher Education Institutions and communities at risk, either in direct proximity or in remote areas.

The SLIDE project is targeted at higher education teachers, students and community organizations. In order to reach these stakeholders, different outputs will be developed over the project timeline:

- A Service-Learning and Digital Empowerment Manifesto that describes the needs and conditions for success of stakeholders for Service-Learning and Digital Empowerment (Geers, Meijs, & Somers, 2023);
- An e-learning module for teachers to improve their digital readiness and capacity within their teaching;
- An Online World Café for teachers to engage about Service-Learning and Digital Empowerment (Laven, Paudel, Paz Lourido, Somers, & Weinlich, 2024);
- An e-learning module for students to enhance their digital and social competences;



- A Social Hackathon for students in collaboration with the community to enhance their understanding of digital gaps, diversity and inclusion;
- A Virtual European Service-Learning and Digital Empowerment Hub to create an online space for disseminating knowledge on service-learning and digital empowerment in Europe.
- A policy report that explores the opportunities and thresholds for the interlinkage between Service-Learning and Digital Empowerment

#### **References:**

Geers, I., Meijs, L., & Somers, K. (2023). The Service-Learning and Digital Empowerment Manifesto. https://slide-erasmus.eu/

Laven, R., Paudel, F., Paz Lourido, B., Somers, K., & Weinlich, W. (2024). Training Manual. The (Online) World Café Method in the context of Service-Learning. https://slide-erasmus.eu



# **POSTER PRESENTATION 2**

# Towards an Integrated Approach to Service Learning Within and Outside the Program

<sup>1</sup> Van Loon, Kathleen, <sup>2</sup> Van Uytven, An

# Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service-learning

Keywords: implementation, integrated approach, interdisciplinary collaboration

# Abstract (max. 500 words):

The Socio Educational Care Work program at Karel de Grote University College (Belgium, Antwerp) trains students to understand profession-related ethical, normative, and social questions at micro, meso, and macro levels. In this respect, the practicing socio-educational care worker acts based on universal rights and values. Thus, one of our tasks as educators is to prepare our students to take an active role in the socio-political challenges of our society. Taking a holistic and inclusive view, the socio-educational care worker supports the client in various domains of daily life, focusing on achieving optimal quality of life. She or he will need to be able to identify structural needs and requirements at the policy level, in consultation with the target group. Service Learning can be a powerful pedagogical approach to achieve this, fully aligned with our program's DNA and vision.

## Our Goals:

- To further spread and establish Service Learning as a powerful pedagogical approach within and outside our program.
- Foster interdisciplinary collaboration on complex problems and make concrete contributions to society.

## Path Taken:

Last academic year, one course unit was embedded in the idea of Service Learning. Consequently, we observed a change in the awareness and actions of students, lecturers, and the workforce. The three pillars of Service Learning provided teachers with a clear foundation. Teachers gained more clarity regarding the purpose of the course unit. It also provided guidance for coaching and supporting reflection among students. Students engaged in more in-depth collaborations with partners in the field, leading to substantial improvements in their reflective skills. They reflected on themselves as individuals, as professionals, and on their role in society. Conversely, the field appreciated the sustainable changes that were instigated around clients and organizations.

#### Future Plans:

These findings have reinforced our idea of implementing and perpetuating Service Learning as a framework. We aim to integrate Service Learning into the program as a didactic and content-based framework.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>KdG University of Applied Sciences and Arts.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>KdG University of Applied Sciences and Arts.

# - Within the program:

The "Social and Metropolitan Challenges" module is the next course unit that aims to follow the path of Service Learning. This module focuses on identifying issues within our field, determining areas of concern, and exploring avenues for change. Collaboration with the workforce can still be expanded.

- In cooperation with other programs: Impact Lab: This is a new module where four programs of Karel de Grote University College will collaborate, with social entrepreneurship as the common denominator. Students will work on concrete assignments from the social work and economy sector. With this new module, we aim to foster partnerships within the college and a broader field of work.

# Our Learning Questions:

- What are the experiences of other colleges in implementing Service Learning within a curriculum?
- What are the experiences regarding the establishment and perpetuation of interdisciplinary learning across programs?



# **POSTER PRESENTATION 3**

The Role of Reflection in fostering Spiritual Dimension in Service-Learning Projects at University: a Systematic Review of the Literature

Martínez Odría, Arantzazu<sup>1</sup>, Gómez Villalba, Isabel<sup>2</sup>

# Conference track: Empirical research on service-learning and service-learning impact

**Keywords:** service-learning, higher education, reflection, spiritual development, integral education

#### **Abstract:**

The integral development and capacity building of university students, aimed at fostering a more just society for all, is part of the mission and identity of Catholic Higher Education Institutions (CHIEs). This commitment is reflected in the foundational documents of these institutions and in the recent teachings of the Catholic Church's Magisterium (Pope Francis, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2017, 2020), which inspire the educational work carried out by CHIEs. The pedagogical, spiritual, and social embodiment of this mission finds in SL an exceptional educational approach. As an educational philosophy that connects curricular learning and community needs, SL fosters experiential learning for the common good (Tapia, 2015), involving the integration of classroom teachings with real-world understanding, analysis, and engagement through student-led projects, actions, and services (Tapia, 2004; Gargantini & Giraudo, 2022).

When examining the impact of SL on students' learning, the scientific literature emphasises the role of systematic reflection in fostering deeper and more meaningful learning of the students and other involved agents. However, there is a relatively limited focus on the scientific literature on the connection between reflection and the spiritual growth of students (Barrett, 2015, 2016; Love & Talbot, 1999; Roehlkepartain et al., 2008; Small & Bowman, 2012). More systematic research is needed in this area.

The global mapping of the presence of SL in Catholic Universities (Argarate et al., 2023) demonstrates the widespread adoption of SL at the international level. It is recognised as an opportunity to connect universities with the common good and to strengthen the identity of CHIEs, while also aiming to provide students with a comprehensive education.

This is the work, which is carried out within the framework of the Uniservitate Program, aimed at addressing the spiritual dimension of service-learning. Within the framework of Higher Education Institutions (HEIs), and regarding the educational support of students carrying out service-learning projects, the linkage of critical reflection and service action is a key element for the integral education of students and the development of the spiritual dimension. The objective of this work is to determine the current trends of the presence of the spiritual dimension developed in HEI as reported in the scientific literature. The methodology employed is based on a systematic review of scientific articles deposited in three databases such as Scopus, Web of Science (WOS) and Ebsco Host, through a bibliometric design in accordance with the PRISMA statement. For this purpose, a search equation with its respective Boolean operators is established, as well as inclusion and exclusion criteria.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Education Area. San Jorge University.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Education Area. San Jorge University.

Through this systematic review, we pretend to identify which are the main journals, areas of knowledge, and methodological approaches dealing with service-learning and spirituality, as well as the position that scientific literature assigns i to the role of systematic reflection in fostering an integral development of students. Numerous scientific publications addressing the role of reflection in SL projects are found, but scientific production analyzing the role of systematic reflection in fostering deeper learning linked to the cultivation of students' spiritual dimension is very limited.

- Argarate, T., Brosse, R., Budani, A., Bustamante, R., Elesgaray, L., Luft, M., Pisano, D., Tapia, M.R., Tapia, N., Ulla, T., & Wodon, Q. (2023). Service-learning in Catholic Universities: Results from a Global Mapping Survey, The Review of Faith & International Affairs, 21(1), 44-52.
- Barrett, M. (2015). Fostering the spiritual development of undergraduates through servicelearning. (Doctoral dissertation). University of Massachusetts-Boston.
- Barrett, M. (2016). Dimensions of Spirituality Fostered through the PULSE Program for Service Learning. Journal of Catholic Education, 20(1), 114-135.
- Gargantini, G., & Giraudo, F. (2022). Servicio y espiritualidad: impacto en la formación de los graduados. En M.N. Tapia et al (coords), Espiritualidad y Educación Superior: perspectivas desde el Aprendizaje-servicio (pp. 214-236). Colección Uniservitate.
- Love, P., & Talbot, D. (1999). Defining spiritual development: A missing consideration for student affairs. NASPA Journal, 37, 361-376.
- Roehlkepartain, E.C., Benson, P.L., Scales, P.C., Kimball, L., & Ebstyne-King, P. (2008). With their own voices: A global exploration of how today's young people experience and think about spiritual development. Center for Spiritual Development in Childhood and Adolescence.
- Small, J., & Bowman, N. (2012). Religious affiliation and college student development: A literature review and synthesis. Religion & Education, 39(1), 64-75.
- Pope Francis (2013). Exhortación apostólica Evangelii gaudium sobre el anuncio del Evangelio en el mundo actual. https://www.vatican.va/content/francesco/es/apost\_exhortations/docume nts/papa-francesco\_esortazione-ap\_20131124\_evangelii-gaudium.html
- Pope Francis (2014). Discurso. Plenaria de la Congregación para la Educación Católica, https://www.vatican.va/content/francesco/es/speeches/2014/february/documents/papa-francesco\_20140213\_congregazione-educazione-cattolica.html
- Pope Francis (2015). Carta encíclica Laudato si' sobre el cuidado de la casa común. https://www.vatican.va/content/francesco/es/encyclicals/documents/papa-francesco\_20150524\_enciclica-laudato-si.html
- Pope Francis (2017). Constitución apostólica Veritatis Gaudium sobre las universidades y facultades eclesiásticas. https://www.vatican.va/content/francesco/es/apost\_constitutions/documents/papa-francesco\_costituzione-ap\_20171208\_veritatis-gaudium.html
- Pope Francis (2020). Carta encíclica Fratelli tutti sobre la fraternidad y la amistad social. https://www.vatican.va/content/francesco/es/encyclicals/documents/papa-francesco\_2020 1003\_enciclica-fratelli-tutti.html
- Tapia, N. (2004). El aprendizaje-servicio en Argentina y América Latina: estado de la cuestión y perspectivas de desarrollo. En A. González y R. Montes (comp.), Aprendizaje y servicio solidario en la Educación Superior y en los sistemas educativos latinoamericanos Actas del 7mo. Seminario Internacional «Aprendizaje y Servicio Solidario», (pp. 122-125). CLAYSS.
- Tapia, N. (2015). Escuelas del presente que ya son la educación del futuro. Educatio Catholica, 1, 125-133.



# **POSTER PRESENTATION 4**

# A Minor in Service-Learning: Learning by Doing – Consulting to Social Entrepreneurs, lessons from more than a decade of teaching

Geers, Ivo<sup>1</sup>, Lucas, Meijs<sup>2</sup>,

# Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service-learning

Keywords: Service-learning, teaching, consulting, practice

#### **Abstract:**

For more than a decade, a minor program at Rotterdam School of Management has been utilizing the service-learning method. In a span of 10 weeks, students of various backgrounds, but mostly business, are confronted with an organizational problem given to them by an existing Rotterdam-Area based civil society organizations. These organizations vary from a platform aimed at fostering understanding of stepfamilies, to a local pool in need of a new concept for their location.

For many students this is the first time during their bachelor's studies they'll work with real life organizations and step out into society to hone their skills. What follows is an intense 10 weeks with incredible learnings and experiences. The minor is steadfast rated among the highest in our offering. Not only due to the tight organization and content, but due to the unique experience we offer our students.

In our poster presentation, we'll delve deeper into the specifics of this minor, showing you the content of our sessions, our special events, the methodology, assignments and our learnings from over 10 years of teaching.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Rotterdam School of Management Erasmus University.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Rotterdam School of Management Erasmus University.

# How tailored care-ful training supports impactful research with communities: reflections on practice

Thomas Hughes, Helen<sup>1</sup>, Barke, Jenny<sup>2</sup>

# Conference track: Collaboration & alliances for service-learning

**Keywords:** community-engaged research, community-researchers, project-based research training, co-analysis, community-organisations, reflexive learning

## Abstract:

Community-engaged research in collaboration with community-organisations creates an opportunity for personal growth and civic learning to be situated as intentional learning goals(Stokamer & Clayton, 2017) and is a well-recognised form of service-learning (Bringle et al., 2016). Grounded in the principles of experiential learning collaborative research provides students with opportunities to enhance and transform their understanding of ideas and theories through practical experiences in 'the field' creating potential for educators, students, and community partners, and by proxy their networks and communities, to meaningfully connect across a range of social divides through engaging with people with different experiences to themselves (2013). In this way community research enables us to situate our knowledge and expertise as part of a knowledge network that includes experiential ways of knowing (amongst others), the intersections within these networks can be imbued with utopian potential (Bell & Pahl, 2017). This workshop will frame collaborative research as a practice of 'hope' for a liberating education system imagined by Friere (1985, 2021) wherein teaching and learning are form of embodied (critical) praxis, through which students are enabled to explore issues of 'social difference, social justice, and social transformation' (Mayo, 1999, p. 58) while re-imagining and re-working their conceptualizations of identity, knowledge, and representation (Martin, 2017, p. 2).

This workshop will draw on our combined experience in academia and the UK third sector working with and training community groups, academics, students and individuals with lived experience to co-produce research. Using a participatory approach the workshop will create space to reflect on the values and traditions of community engaged research, exploring how we can enact these values to co-produce meaningful and impactful research which also facilitates transformative experiential learning opportunities for all those involved. The workshop will pay particular attention to the role and meaning of 'training' in community research to explore how to value, work with and across different forms of expertise. We will share the challenges we have faced, reflect on methodology, and share practical examples and ideas. Participants will have the opportunity to bring their own examples into the workshop and consider these in relation to the notion of care-ful collaboration in which the materiality and relationality (Manchester & Barke, 2020) and the 'messy' emotionality (Thomas-Hughes, 2018) of the collaborative context is centred. The workshop will conclude with a focus on practical frameworks and co-constructing new ideas for collaborative community-engaged research within service-learning pedagogy at all levels of higher education.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>The Cabot Institute for the Environment, University of Bristol.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>University of Exeter.

- Farnell, T. & Culum, B. (2021). Towards a European Framework of Community Engagement in Higher Education. In B. &. Hall (Ed.), Socially Responsible Higher Education. International Perspectives on Knowledge Democracy (pp. 253-264). Brill. Retrieved from https://www.jstor.org/stable/10.1163/j.ctv1v7zbn5.27
- Greenwood, D. J. & Levin, M. (2007). Introduction to Action Research: Social Research for Social Change (Vol. 2nd). Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage.
- Bell, D., & Pahl, K. (2017). Co-production: towards a utopian approach. International Journal of Social Research Methodology, 5579(September), 1–13. https://doi.org/10.1080/13645579. 2017.1348581
- Bringle, R. G., Ruiz, A. I., Brown, M. A., & Reeb, R. N. (2016). Enhancing the Psychology Curriculum Through Service Learning. Psychology Learning & Teaching, 15(3), 294–309. https://doi.org/10.1177/1475725716659966
- Friere, P. (1985). The politics of education: culture, power, and liberation. Bergin & Garvey.
- Friere, P. (2021). Pedagogy of hope: reliving pedagogy of the oppressed. Bloomsbury Academic. https://doi.org/10.1080/00131911.2020.1766207
- Hooks, B. (2013). Teaching community: A pedagogy of hope. Routledge.
- Manchester, H., & Barke, J. (2020). Regulating for 'care-ful' knowledge production: researching older people, isolation and loneliness. In Imagining Regulation Differently (pp. 67–84). Policy Press.
- Martin, G. (2017). Scaling critical pedagogy in higher education. Critical Studies in Education, 58(1), 1–18. https://doi.org/10.1080/17508487.2015.1115417
- Mayo, P. (1999). Gramsci, Freire, and adult education: possibilities for transformative action. Zed Books.
- Stokamer, S. T., & Clayton, P. H. (2017). Student Civic Learning through Service Learning. In Research on Student Civic Outcomes in Service learning.
- Thomas-Hughes, H. (2018). Ethical 'mess' in co-produced research: reflections from a U.K.-based case study. International Journal of Social Research Methodology, 21(2), 231–242. https://doi.org/10.1080/13645579.2017.1364065



# Digital Development: training program for higher education students

Mikelic Preradovic, Nives<sup>1</sup>, Somers, Kaat<sup>2</sup>

# Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service learning

Keywords: service-learning, higher education teachers & students, digital development

#### **Abstract:**

The objective of this workshop is to provide higher education teachers and trainers with resources that can enable their students to fully participate in digital education, to sensitize them towards digital inclusion and digital empowerment of underprivileged and underrepresented community members and empower them to address sensitive contemporary societal issues and at developing their own digital competences.

All workshop participants will gain free access to the online course on Digital Development (https://www.slide-erasmus.eu/moodle/) that was created by the project consortium as part of the Erasmus+ project SLIDE (Service-Learning as a pedagogy to promote Inclusion, Diversity, and Digital Empowerment). This course can be used by students as a standalone resource, but also by teachers as a tool to educate their students about four main digital pillars: competence (confident and appropriate use of digital technologies to engage in society), fluency (appropriate use of technologies and application of digital skills to enhance one's own learning, work-readiness or everyday life), intelligence (a set of social, emotional and cognitive abilities that enable individuals to face the challenges and adapt to the demands of digital life) and engagement (appropriate use of digital tools to find, listen to and mobilize a community around an issue).

Each of the 8 modules in this e-course contains activities that are graded (tests and essays). After the completion of the e-course the students will be able to:

- critically reflect on the use of digital content;
- recognize the ethical dimensions of using the digital content in digital communication, collaboration and participation;
- model a more mindful approach regarding the use of digital media in work, study, and life;
- create digital content that is both visually appealing and informative, and inclusive to different stakeholders;
- apply storytelling approach and scenario-based approach;
- understand the concept of digital intelligence;
- recognize service-learning as a strategy to enhance digital empowerment of communities and marginalized groups

#### References:

University of Antwerp. (2024, July). SL Training Hub. SLIDE-Erasmus. https://www.slide-erasmus.eu/moodle



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences, University of Zagreb.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> University Centre Saint-Ignatius Antwerp (UCSIA).

# Reflection becoming innovation in Service-Learning: When and How?

Rusu, Alina Simona<sup>1</sup>, Ćulum Ilić, Bojana<sup>2</sup>, Brozmanová Gregorová, Alžbeta<sup>3</sup>

# Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service-learning

**Keywords:** meaningful reflection; good practices; Higher Education; Service-Learning; innovation.

#### **Abstract:**

Service-Learning is commonly defined as an innovative pedagogical strategy that is intentionally focused on student development and community improvement, fostering through continuous reflection the educational innovation and social transformation of all the actors involved (Bringle, Santos Rego, & Regueiro, 2022). The workshop aims to create a safe space for exchange of experiences in reflection methods in Service-Learning in Higher Education Institutions, targeting all three phases of reflection - before, during and after the course.

Participants will be engaged in creating several word webs based on attributes of reflection as meaningful experience, such as: informative, generative and transformative. Once created, the word webs will be further used to identify when and how the reflection in each of the phases becomes innovation in the process of Service-Learning. The idea of the workshops arises from promising research results of a qualitative analysis performed by the authors on the perceptions of higher education students from Slovakia, Romania and Croatia of their first-ever Service-Learning experience (Culum, Gregorova, & Rusu, 2021). Students from all three countries valued their SL experience as one that provided them with possibilities to learn a lot equally about both - the chosen academic field and their immediate community. Beside their positive reflection upon the process of learning, students indicated a high level of appreciation of opportunities given within the SL courses following their personal development and contribution to the community. The participants of the workshop will be asked to check whether their own reflective methods used in the SL-related activities match the attributes of the meaningful reflection fostering innovation, as identified through the word webs. Recommendations will be discussed while anchored in the 4C model of qualitative reflection, describing it as continuous, connected, challenging and contextualised.

## **References:**

Bringle, R. G., Santos Rego, M. A., & Regueiro, B. (2022). Editorial: Service Learning, Educational Innovation and Social Transformation. Frontiers in Education, 6:818660. doi: 10.3389/feduc.2021.818660

Ilic, B.C., Gregorova, A.D., & Rusu, A.S. (2021). Service-learning as a Novelty Experience at Central and Eastern European Universities: Students' Narratives of Satisfaction, Empowerment, and Premises of Change. Frontiers in Education, 6, 1-13. doi: 10.3389/feduc.2021.606356



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> University of Agricultural Sciences and Veterinary Medicine Cluj-Napoca, Faculty of Animal Science and Biotechnologies, Romania.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>University of Rijeka, Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences, Croatia.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Matej Bel University, School of Education, Slovakia.

# Brainstorming the Future of Civic Engagement in Europe and Beyond: University Collaborations for Inclusive Learning and Community Service

Tsoi, Marina<sup>1</sup>, Mueller-Pulsfuss, Maria<sup>2</sup>, Hoth de Olano, Christiane<sup>3</sup>, Mykhailyshyn, Olha<sup>4</sup>

## Conference track: Collaboration & Alliances for Service Learning

**Keywords:** Civic engagement, human rights, democracy building, online program, collaborative development

#### **Abstract:**

The workshop, "Brainstorming the Future of Civic Engagement in Europe and Beyond: University Collaborations for Inclusive Learning and Community Service," aims to stimulate collaborative efforts to address the complex challenges of human rights violations and the erosion of democratic principles. In an era marked by global interconnectivity, there is an urgent need for comprehensive educational initiatives to address these issues. The imperative for educational institutions to lead in the cultivation of informed, empathetic, and proactive citizens cannot be overstated (Mtawa, Ntimi & Nkhoma, 2020). By initiating collaborative efforts, we are harnessing the experiences and achievements of the School of Transformation and Sustainability (STS) at KU, along with its varied collaborative ventures, and the collective expertise, innovative capacity, insights, and perspectives of participants to create an impactful online program dedicated to addressing the issues of our contemporary world (Schnebel & Gerholz, 2019).

Building on the imperative for educational initiatives, the adoption of an online format for service-learning programs is not merely a strategic choice but a necessary evolution. Online service-learning programs significantly expand accessibility and inclusivity, enabling students from diverse global backgrounds, to participate. Importantly, the scalability of online programs means they can reach a wider audience, thus amplifying their impact by addressing broader social issues more efficiently and cost-effectively.

Following this rationale, the essence of this workshop is to convene scholars, educators, and practitioners dedicated to reimagining and strengthening civic engagement through education. By creating a space for collaborative ideation and strategic planning, this initiative aims not only to conceptualize an online program but also to establish the foundations for a sustainable model of inclusive learning and community service. The proposed workshop is designed to act as a catalyst for a participatory development process, inviting contributions that will shape the curriculum, methodologies, and delivery mechanisms of the program. A particular focus will be placed on human rights advocacy and the promotion of democratic values, underscoring the program's commitment to addressing the critical issues of our time.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> School of Transformation and Sustainability (STS), Catholic University of Eichstaett-Ingolstadt.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> School of Transformation and Sustainability (STS), Catholic University of Eichstaett-Ingolstadt.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Hub for Central & Eastern Europe and the Middle East Uniservitate Programme, Catholic University of Eichstaett-Ingolstadt.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Hub for Central & Eastern Europe and the Middle East Uniservitate Programme, Catholic University of Eichstaett-Ingolstadt.

# The objectives of this workshop are

- Collaboratively brainstorm ideas for the content, structure, and delivery methods of the online program with a special emphasis on human rights and the fundamentals of democracy building.
- Explore and articulate potential common goals and priorities among the partner universities for the joint initiative.
- Discuss strategies for ensuring inclusivity, accessibility, and student engagement in the online learning environment.
- Introduce KU's School of Transformation and Sustainability and our Fellowship Program as potential avenues for collaboration.
- Establish a framework for ongoing communication and collaboration between workshop participants

# The workshop is structured as follows

- 1. A brief presentation of the objectives and scope of the workshop (10 minutes)
- 2. Interactive brainstorming in small groups (30 minutes)
- 3. Reporting and discussion of key findings and next steps (20 minutes)

By the end of the workshop, participants will have engaged in collaborative discussions and contributed to the development of key elements for the online program. We invite conference participants to join us in this collaborative endeavor and help shape the future of civic education through university cooperation.

#### References:

Mtawa, N., Ntimi, M., & Nkhoma, N. (2020). Service-learning as a higher education pedagogy for advancing citizenship, conscientization and civic agency: A capability informed view. Higher Education Pedagogies, 5, 110-131. https://doi.org/10.1080/23752696.2020.1788969

Schnebel, K. B., Gerholz, K.-H. (2019). Demokratieverständnis fördern – Integration gestalten: Zur Verbindung von politischer Bildung und Service Learning, 116-133. In: Deichmann, C., & May, M. (Eds.). (2019). Orientierungen politischer Bildung im "postfaktischen Zeitalter". Politische Bildung. Springer VS Wiesbaden. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-658-23851-3



# Rethinking Campus-Community Relations: Asset-Based Approach to Equitable Partnerships

Nance, Agnieszka<sup>1</sup>, Smith, Bridget<sup>2</sup>

# Conference track: Processes of service-learning institutionalization

**Keywords:** University-Community Relationships, Transformative Engagement, Asset-Based Approach, Resource Mapping

#### **Abstract:**

This will be an interactive session focused on deepening relationships between universities and community partners at the macro-level. Tulane's curricular requirement necessitates partnerships with hundreds of community agencies, but we've learned that our role in facilitating these relationships can go from transactional to transformative- connecting partners to more than just one faculty or class, but to multiple University resources. All participants will be able to contribute their experience and ideas in this workshop.

Method: asset-based approach and mapping of resources on an individual level (single faculty, student, community agency/NGO) or macro level (multiple departments, university-wide efforts). Recognizing that service learning can often be enacted with a unilateral and/or deficit-based mentality, we use the Asset-Based Community Development (ABCD) approach for stakeholders to recognize what each has to contribute to the partnership at various levels of interaction and ownership. While ABCD is traditionally used with community organizations, we borrow from the SOFAR framework's stakeholder constituencies.

By engaging academic community engagement professionals in this interactive asset mapping activity, one can promote collaboration, foster understanding, and empower participants to leverage their assets effectively in building partnerships for meaningful community engagement.

## Takeaways:

- Enhanced Understanding of Macro-Level University-Community Relationships
- Strategies for Transformative Engagement Beyond Transactional Partnerships
- Empowerment to Utilize University Resources for Community Benefit
- Insights into Asset-Based Approaches for Partnership Development
- Practical Techniques for Resource Mapping and Collaboration Optimization



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Tulane University, New Orleans, USA.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Tulane University, New Orleans, USA.

# The influence of the cultural context of community service-learning practices

Demeijer, Frederique<sup>1</sup>, Con Aguilar, Eldris<sup>2</sup>, Zweekhorst, Marjolein<sup>3</sup>

# Conference track: Collaboration & Alliances for Service Learning

**Keywords:** Community service-learning, organizational culture, complex societal issues, societal transformation

#### **Abstract:**

In this workshop, we invite participants to engage in a discussion on the role of the cultural context in defining their community service learning (CSL) practices. Note that we use the concept CSL rather than Service-Learning (SL), since CSL tends to focus more on the outcome for the community, whereas SL focuses more on the learning of the student. Originating from the United States and Canada in the 1960s and 1970s, CSL as a structured pedagogical approach spread to Europe in the decades following. Although European educators and institutions were influenced by developments in North America, its adoption varied both across countries and institutions. Cultural beliefs, institutional governance, and policy, as well as the cultural, political, and economic context of a specific country or region influence and inform these engaged educational practices.

This larger cultural context co-determines what is considered as efficient, what is quality, what is knowledge and how it is produced. However, this larger cultural context is often taken-for-granted. Ideally, CSL "serves as a vehicle for connecting students and institutions to their communities and the larger social good, while at the same time instilling in students the values of community and social responsibility" (Neururer and Rhoads 1998, p. 321). It aims to increase civic engagement and social responsibility, develop practical skills, and stimulate personal growth and self-reflection, amongst others. However, how this is all defined largely depends on the cultural context. A close examination of the literature shows that little research is dedicated to how this cultural landscape potentially impacts CSL activities and practices (Kempner and Makino 1993; Väkimaa 1998).

Therefore, in this 60-minute workshop, we aim to make the invisible visible by exploring this often hidden, taken-for-granted cultural context with the participants. By critically reflecting and explicating the cultural characteristics and belief systems in which a HEI is embedded, we aim to get a better understanding of how this influences our different CSL practices.

First, we give a 10- minute introductory presentation. Secondly, we will zoom into the strategic, tactical, and operational level of HEIs as stipulated by Stephens et al. (2008). Through three different rounds in a World-Café setting (15 minutes each), we invite participants to reflect on the following questions: 1) what drives European universities vision and mission towards socially engaged education; 2) to what extent are institutional alliances and cooperations among stakeholders key in promoting CSL in the European context and; 3) how can European universities implement change through the curriculum, research, and mutual learning with society on complex societal issues (Filho 2000; Scholz et al. 2000)? We will conclude jointly (5 minutes) reflecting on



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Athena Institute, Faculty of Science, Vrije Universiteit, the Netherlands.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Athena Institute, Faculty of Science, Vrije Universiteit, the Netherlands.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Athena Institute, Faculty of Science, Vrije Universiteit, the Netherlands.

these different levels, hoping that getting a better understanding of these different levels and their cultural embedment will help practitioners in designing, implementing, and co-creating CSL practices that can be adapted to the different variety of contexts in Europe. Furthermore, this understanding will aid in a more culturally sensitive approach and guide CSL practices to contributing to transformations towards fairer, more democratic, and environmentally responsible societies (Stephens et al. 2008).

- Filho, W.L. (2000) 'Sustainability and university life', International Journal of Sustainability in Higher Education, 1(2), pp. 168-81.
- Kempner, K. and Makino, M. (1993) Cultural Influences on the Construction of Knowledge in Japanese Higher Education, Comparative Education, 29(2), pp. 185–199.
- Neururer, J., and Rhoads, R. A. (1998) 'Community service: Panacea, paradox, or potentiation', Journal of College Student Development, 39(4), pp. 321-330.
- Scholz, R.W., Mieg, H.A. and Oswald, J.E. (2000) Transdisciplinarity in groundwater management: towards mutual learning of science and society, Water Air and Soil Pollution, 123, pp. 477-87.
- Stephens, J. C. et al. (2008) 'Higher education as a change agent for sustainability in different cultures and contexts', International Journal of Sustainability in Higher Education, 9(3), pp. 317–338
- Väkimaa, J. (1998). Culture and identity in higher education research, Higher Education, 36, pp. 119–138.



# Two in One: The Fusion of Citizen-Science and Barcamp - A Synergy for Promoting Service-Learning

Voigt, Miriam<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>University of Koblenz.

# Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service learning

Keywords: Citizen-Science, Barcamp, Networking, Community of practice, non-hierarchical space

#### **Abstract:**

Citizen-Science, as the involvement of the public in scientific processes, offers a means to collect large amounts of data, tackle complex issues, and simultaneously enhance public understanding and engagement with science and research. Barcamps are informal, participatory conference formats that facilitate an open agenda and active participant involvement, providing a platform for informal exchange of ideas, knowledge, and experiences. Both formats are excellent frameworks for Service-Learning projects because they presuppose an equal democratic working relationship between actors from society, science, politics or business (Miller & Compernass, 2023, p. 253)

The learning processes in Service-Learning situations can be embedded in the concept of the community of practice according to Lave and Wenger (1991). According to this concept, learning takes place in the concrete situation and serves as an instrument for expanding participation in communities of practice. The desire to participate in so-called communities of practice leads to a transfer or exchange of knowledge and thus to the generation of learning content and creates the willingness to acquire the necessary skills and knowledge (Grotlüschen & Pätzold, 2020, p. 87ff.).

Following the concept above, examples include the Barcamp method and the Citizen-Science research approach. They represent a non-hierarchical space in which everyone acts independently and enters into dialogue with the community (Weber, 2014, p. 28). A Barcamp is an innovative, open and interactive event concept or method. It enables active participation by everyone and also focuses on strong networking during the event. This concept corresponds to learning in communities of practice, as everyone has the opportunity to contribute to a learning topic and influence or change the learning community through their knowledge transfer during the session. The common goal of all participants is networking, the exchange of ideas and the generation of new collaborations. The Citizen-Science research approach also corresponds to the communityof-practice concept and can be categorized as part of the participatory action research approach (Fox & Martin 2007, p. 52). Citizen-Science describes the participation of people in scientific processes who are not institutionally bound to this field of science. Participation can range from the short-term collection of data to the intensive use of free time to delve into a research topic together with scientists and/or other volunteers (Bonn, Richter et al., 2016, p. 6). Through the joint research process, learning takes place on a specific research topic with the aim of generating new knowledge for everyone.

At the #7ECSLHE, a mini Barcamp will be organized. Participants will thus have the opportunity to familiarize themselves with the Barcamp format on a meta-level while engaging in micro-level discussions exchanging experiences or best practices with Citizen-Science projects. A Barcamp



fosters a unique, productive, and trusting working environment, crucial for further collaboration. The following infrastructure is required: a room where it is possible to work in small groups. At least one hour is required.

- Bonn, A., Richter, A., & et al. (2016). Green paper Citizen Science Strategy 2020 for Germany. Leipzig.
- Cendon, E., Mörth, A., & Pellert, A. (2017). Linking theory and practice. Lifelong learning at universities. Münster.
- Fox, M., Martin, P., & Green, G. (2007). Doing practitioner research. London.
- Grotlüschen, A., & Pätzold, H. (2020). Learning theories in adult and continuing education. Bielefeld.
- Lave, J., & Wenger, E. (1991). Situated Learning: Legitimate Peripheral Participation. Cambridge.
  Miller, J., & Compernass, F. (2023). The Barcamp as a participatory and interdisciplinary approach to Service Learning. In: Journal for Higher Education Development, 18(2), Campus-Community Partnerships: Future Partnerships between University and Society. DOI: 10.3217/zfhe-18-02/13
- Weber, S. M. (2014). Change by Design? Dispositives of the Creative and Institutional Fields of the New. In: Weber, S. M. et al. (Eds.): Organization and the New. Wiesbaden, 27–48.



# Collaborative Knowledge Mobilization in Campus-Community Partnerships

Jörg, Miller<sup>1</sup>, Derkau, Julia<sup>2</sup>

### Conference track: Empirical research on service-learning and service-learning impact

Keywords: research-based teaching, SOTL, Service Learning, didactic concepts, research in SL

#### **Abstract:**

The "Collaborative Knowledge Building in Campus-Community Partnerships" development workshop is an engaging and participatory session. The workshop places a robust emphasis on participant involvement, fostering a collaborative environment where diverse perspectives contribute to the collective understanding and advancement of knowledge transfer practices.

In this workshop, our primary objective is to equip participants with not only a deep understanding of collaborative knowledge transfer theories and strategies but also with tangible action plans ready for immediate implementation within their respective academic and community contexts.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>University Duisburg-Essen, Germany.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>University of Mannheim, Germany.

## Reflection as a transversal axis in service-learning

Penela Quinteros, Fernanda<sup>1</sup>, Fontana Venegas, Rocío<sup>2</sup>

#### Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service-learning

**Keywords:** critical thinking – Soft skills– methodology – professional role – teaching innovation.

#### **Abstract:**

Reflection in Service Learning (SL) is understood as a continuous and deep process, where academic content, service, values and attitudes of each discipline and profession are articulated (Brockbank & McGill, 2002, Cooper, 1999, Tejada, 2013). This process allows students to internalize their experiences and transform them into knowledge and skills applicable to their personal and professional development. Reflection thus becomes a bridge between theory and practice, fostering a deeper understanding of the concepts studied and their relevance in the real world (Culcasi & Fontana, 2023; González et al., 2016).

The workshop presented at this conference addresses the relevance of reflection in Service Learning, a teaching-learning methodology that combines community service with academic learning. This methodology requires continuous, contextualized, challenging and collaborative reflection to achieve a truly transformative educational experience and the delivery of quality service. The main objective of this in-person workshop is for participants to acquire the necessary tools to understand and apply reflection in a Service-Learning course. During the session, the importance of integrating a reflection strategy as an essential component in the design and execution of a Service-Learning course will be emphasized.

The structure and planning of the workshop consists of different moments. A first initial activity to raise previous knowledge about the reflection, then the theoretical exposition of contents associated to the reflection. Then a reflection activity "Truth Thermometer", a resource that teachers can use in their courses. Then the central elements of the design of a reflection activity will be reviewed, to end with an individual work contextualized in the course itself. Attendees will have the opportunity to identify the key elements of an effective reflection strategy and learn how to design reflection activities that promote the development of meaningful learning in students. In this workshop, reflection activities will be addressed and exemplified to provide teachers with tools to implement in their R&S courses. Practical examples will be discussed and exercises will be conducted for participants to experience reflection and its impact on learning. The importance of this workshop lies in its practical and applied approach, which seeks to empower teachers to effectively integrate reflection into their A+S course programs. At the end of the workshop, attendees will be better equipped to guide their students in reflecting on their service and personal experiences, thus facilitating the connection between academic learning and social engagement and preparing them for their future professional role.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Pontificia Universidad Católica de Chile.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Pontificia Universidad Católica de Chile.

- Brockbank, A. y McGill, I. (2002) Aprendizaje reflexivo en la Educación Superior. Madrid: Ediciones Morata, S. L. 1° Edición en Español, 311
- Centro de Desarrollo Docente UC. (2024). Aprendizaje Servicio: Web reflexión. www.reflexion.aprendizajeservicio.uc.cl
- Cooper, J. (1999). Estrategias de enseñanza. Guía para una mejor enseñanza. México: Limusa Noriega Editors
- Culcasi, I., & Fontana, R. (2023). Service Learning and soft skill: a systematic literature review. Form@re- Revista abierta para la Formazione en Rete, 23 (2),24 –43. https://doi.org/10.36253/form-14639
- González M., Jouannet C., & Gonzalez, T. (2016). Metodología Apren-dizaje Servicio (A+S): Una oportunidad de desarrollo de habilidades transversales en estudiantes universitarios. Educación y Diversidad 10 115–126
- Tejada, J. (2013). La formación de las competencias profesionales a través del aprendizaje servicio. Cultura doi:10.1174/113564013807749669



# How to choose assessment and construct a curriculum-based portfolio in community-engaged learning?

Christianne Smit<sup>1</sup>, Gerda Andringa<sup>2</sup>

### Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service-learning

Keywords: Community engaged learning, Curriculum based portfolio, Alternative assessment

#### **Abstract:**

Community-engaged learning\* in higher education tackles urgent societal questions by combining academic knowledge with practical know-how in a reciprocal learning collaboration with societal partners. This educational format differs fundamentally from commonly used academic teaching designs. For one it offers opportunities of cumulative learning where students transfer knowledge across contexts and build knowledge over time. As a result, community-engaged learning requires not only a different set of learning objectives but alternative assessment as well. In this workshop, we discuss questions on how to choose appropriate assessment within a community-engaged learning format, taking into account ambiguous objectives such as 'personal growth', 'social engagement', or 'active citizenship' and catering to cumulative learning. To take this a step further, we invite the participants to join us in a pressure-cooker on constructing new assessment types using a portfolio design.

\*at Utrecht University we use the term 'community-engaged learning' (instead of 'service learning') to describe experience-based education in which students and teachers together with external partners work on issues in society. We prefer this term as we think it better expresses the role of the societal partner (Cf Pompa 2002; Mitchell 2008).

Inspired by the studies by Celio, Yorio and Conway, we use the following categories of learning objectives:

Learning objectives*	Assessment?
1. Objectives concerning disciplinary knowledge and/or expertise on the societal question: connecting academic discipline to practical issues etc	
2. Objectives concerning academic skills: presenting academic findings to a larger audience, cooperating with fellow students and non-academic partners, applying creative methods etc	



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Utrecht University.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>University College Roosevelt.

3. Objectives concerning personal development: acting responsibly, ethically and with integrity, showing self-efficacy, acting independently and constructively, reflecting critically on one's own positionality etc	
4. Objectives concerning social and civic engagement: transformative thinking, respectful attitude, acting adaptively etc.	

<sup>\*</sup>Objectives 1 and 2 are often used in regular courses as well; objectives 3 and 4 specifically match the service-learning aims

### Discussion questions:

- Academic studies on community-engaged/service learning often urge reflection as the principal form of assessment. It is questionable, however, if reflection can be tested and graded. Are there any alternative assessment formats that can be used? And, as objectives 3 and 4 aim for growth and engagement, can we measure these aspects? Are these 'gradable', or is it necessary to use pass/fail? If so, on what grounds does a student pass or fail?
- University College Roosevelt is developing a curriculum-based portfolio to evaluate cumulative aspects of community-engaged learning throughout the curriculum. How to design this portfolio format in such a way that it allows evaluation of student development over time?

- Celio, C. I., Durlak, J., & Dymnicki, A. (2011). A meta-analysis of the impact of service-learning on students. *Journal of Experiential Education*, 34(2), 164–181.
- Conway, J. M., Amel, E. L., & Gerwien, D. P. (2009). Teaching and learning in the social context: A meta-analysis of service learning's effects on academic, personal, social, and citizenship outcomes. *Teaching of Psychology*, 36(4), 233–245.
- Mitchell, T. D. (2008). Traditional vs. Critical Service-Learning: Engaging the Literature to Differentiate Two Models. *Michigan Journal of Community Service Learning*, 14(2), 50–65.
- Pompa, L. (2002). Service-Learning as Crucible: Reflections on Immersion, Context, Power, and Transformation. *Michigan Journal of Community Service Learning*, 9(1), 67–76.
- Yorio, P. L., & Ye, F. (2012). A meta-analysis on the effects of service-learning on the social, personal, and cognitive outcomes of learning. *Academy of Management Learning & Education*, 11(1), 9–27.



# Which Community? Conceptualizing and Institutionalizing University Relations with Social Partners

Kennedy, James<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>Universiteit Utrecht.

Conference track: Processes of service-learning institutionalization

**Keywords:** Institutionalization, community, professional practice, social justice, Third Mission

#### **Abstract:**

When dealing with the aims of service-learning, existing literature has focused on what kind of formation is sought in service learning for students. My research colleague Jorg Huijding identified four, significantly overlapping typologies to this end: Morton (1995) distinguishes between approaches to service (charity, project, or social change); Kahane et al. (2000) between types of citizens to be formed (responsible citizen, participatory citizen or social reformer); Britt (2012) sees differences between pedagogical frames (skill sets with accompanying reflexivity, civic values and critical citizenship, or social justice activism); and most recently Langhout et al. (2023) speak of service learning typologies (personal responsibility, critical citizenship or social justice). Largely left implicit, though, are the kinds of communities higher education engages with in its service-learning projects. The external partners are partly chosen by socially critical commitments; indeed the 'community' often implied in community service-learning, as our study of the American literature, such as the Michigan Journal of Community Service Learning at least suggests, are underserved communities where all the different aims mentioned above are each strongly present. Mostly out of the picture are other kinds of partners with which the university frequently engages, and which also effect the kind of engagement and service-learning entailed.

To start off this workshop, I identity four types of 'communities' that we have seen: 1) a focus on marginalized or underserved groups, which often implicitly or explicitly includes a social justice orientation; 2) a territory-based service-learning that is commitment to a neighborhood or street that mostly seeks quality-of-life improvements; 3) a – very large – 'professional practice' kind of service-learning, in which students and practitioners work together to improve professional or institutional performance; and 4) research and development, in which students engage with businesses and institutes to serve society. Each type of community brings both possibilities and problems, as will briefly be explored with the workshop participants. I'll briefly explain how we approach this challenge at Utrecht University.

Perhaps more than the aims of education itself, the types of partnerships universities (or faculties, departments, etc.) effectively seek out and maintain says a good deal about how your institution conceives and practices its mission to society.

This session will explore and discuss the following questions:

- 1) Which kinds of communities does your institution work with, and to which ends?
- 2) Do different parts of the university cooperate with different kinds of communities? Are, and can, all of these be properly seen as forms of service-learning?



- 3) Should service-learning be restricted to working with certain kinds of partners, and what grounds should that (not) be done?
- 4) As you seek to further institutionalize service-learning, how wide or focused should your inclusion of various 'communities' be?

These questions are important as service-learning is increasingly brought into connection with the university's intensive search for societal engagement and relevance. How should your institution best understand its Third Mission on the basis of its divergent service-learning practices?

- Britt, L. L. (2012). Why We Use Service-Learning: A Report Outlining a Typology of Three Approaches to This Form of Communication Pedagogy. Communication Education, 61(1), 80–88. https://doi.org/10.1080/03634523.2011.632017
- Edwards, A. A., Steacy, L. M., Siegelman, N., Rigobon, V. M., Kearns, D. M., Rueckl, J. G., & Compton, D. L. (2022). Unpacking the unique relationship between set for variability and word reading development: Examining word- and child-level predictors of performance. Journal of Educational Psychology, 114(6), 1242–1256. https://doi.org/10.1037/edu0000696
- Langhout, R.D., Lopezzi, M.A. & Wang, Y.-C (2023). Not All Service Is the Same: How Service-Learning Typologies Relate to Student Outcomes at a Hispanic-Serving Institution. Journal of Higher Education Outreach and Engagement, 27(2), 73-89.
- Morton, K. (1995). The Irony of Service: Charity, Project, and Social Change in Service-Learning. Michigan Journal of Community Service Learning, 19-32. http://hdl.handle.net/2027/spo.3239521.0002.102
- Westheimer, J. & Kahne, J. (2004). What Kind of Citizen? The Politics of Educating for Democracy. American Educational Research Journal, 41 (2), 237-269.



# Advancing Service-Learning Research through a Future-focused Global Research Agenda

Furco, Andrew<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup>University of Minnesota.

Conference track: Empirical research on service-learning and service-learning impact

**Keywords:** research, global, impacts

#### **Abstract:**

Research plays a critical role in advancing the study and practice of service-learning and community engagement (SLCE) by providing much-needed evidence that identifies the best practices and potential impacts of SLCE. In preparation for its 25th anniversary conference, the International Association for Research on Service-Learning and Community Engagement (IARSLCE)embarked on a multi-year effort to develop a comprehensive, global research agenda for the study and practice of service-learning and community engagement. This international agenda articulates the key issues, questions, methodological approaches, challenges that will shape the field in the coming years. The agenda is intended to advance knowledge and understanding of service-learning and community engagement across the educational spectrum and across national, cultural, and disciplinary contexts, and it focuses on ensuring that the future research in the field reflects the diverse and evolving interests and perspectives of scholars, practitioners, collaborators, and supporters from across the globe.

The Research Agenda is being developed through a series of forums through which more than 300 members of various service-learning and community engagement networks and communities from across the globe have had opportunities to offer their perspectives on the key questions and issues that future research studies and efforts should focus on and emphasize to further the field. At each forum, participants explore research questions and themes across 10 sections: impacts; implementation; institutionalization; methodology; instruments; theories and conceptual frameworks; conducting post-covid activities; equity-focused practice; cross-cultural and crossnational studies; and replication. To date, 25 forums have been held in 10 countries, including several European countries (Belgium, Italy, Slovakia, United Kingdom).

This workshop session presents some of the preliminary findings from the input gathered during the various forums held in Europe. The purpose of this presentation is to highlight some of the emergent themes and research questions that these forums have produced within the European context. Scholars and practitioners who attend this workshop session will: (1) participate in a presentation of some of the key questions and emerging themes that were submitted to the research agenda across the ten sections on which the research agenda is organized; (2) receive information on the scheduled forthcoming steps to analyze the more than 10,000 data points collected to date; and (3) have an opportunity to explore opportunities to contribute to the final phase of the research agenda production.



Furco, A. & Ma, C. (2019). Setting a global research agenda: Protocol for regional research agenda setting protocols. International Initiatives Committee. International Association for Research on Service-Learning and Community Engagement.



# Designing a learning pathway towards service learning and cocreation: a practical toolbox

Soens, Aaron<sup>1</sup>, De Cock, Chloë<sup>2</sup>

### Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service-learning

Keywords: Cocreation, curriculum development, soft skills, learning pathway, curriculum design

#### **Abstract:**

During the academic year 2023-2024 Odisee University of Applied Sciences had the opportunity to develop a toolbox that supports educators and teams to reflect on their curriculum. Our institution has the ambition for every student to have at least one 'authentic' and 'real' cocreation experience during or at the end of their study career.

From different observations such as:

- The fact that students are not always fully prepared to participate in service learning projects (lacking motivation, not the proper attitude...)
- The fact that programmes have educational activities in international and/or intercultural contexts or activities that provide civil service but lack the service learning attitude or dimension.
- The fact that reflection is omnipresent in our educational environment but not always implemented in a well thought-out way.
- The fact that a service learning project is often an isolated part of the curriculum.

We found it necessary to facilitate teams in their thought process by offering them a model for developing a learning pathway towards the service learning activity. The team first has to agree on the desired learning outcomes, then they can pave the 'path' towards these 'cocreation' skills. We use a tool to scale the level of learning outcome and to gradually let the students grow.

During the workshop we intent do briefly introduce the tools with some examples out of our project, but also to let participants think about (the place of) their proper (experience in the) curriculum. The workshop is therefore aimed at educational support staff, but open to teachers as well.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>Odisee University of Applied Sciences

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Odisee University of Applied Sciences

# The World Café Approach in Service-Learning

Laven, Rolf<sup>1</sup>, Paudel, Florentine<sup>2</sup>, Weinlich, Wolfgang<sup>3</sup>

### Conference track: Best practices & practical experiences in service-learning

Keywords: Service-Learning, World Café, Demonstration, Trainings-Manual

#### **Abstract:**

During the workshop, we will explore the transformative potential of the World Café approach to the context of Service-Learning.

- 1. Introduction to World Café:
  - o Gain understanding of the World Café method & applications in various contexts.
  - o Explore core principles that make World Café a powerful tool for inclusive dialogue.
- 2. Stakeholder Engagement in Service-Learning:
  - Examine the role of stakeholders, including learners, community members, and social groups, in shaping service-learning experiences.
  - Discuss the potential impact of diverse perspectives on the quality of servicelearning initiatives.
- 3. Practical Demonstrations
  - Experience a live demonstration of the World Café method tailored to the context of service-learning.
  - o Participate in discussions that simulate the inclusion of stakeholder voices in decision-making processes.
- 4. Reflection and Sharing:
  - o Reflect on the workshop experiences and insights gained.
  - Share observations and thoughts on how the World Café method can be adapted to enhance service-learning projects.
- 5. Transferring Experiences to Your Settings:
  - o Discuss strategies for successfully transferring the World Café experiences to diverse educational settings.
  - Explore potential challenges and solutions in implementing stakeholder engagement in service-learning.
- 6. Training Manual Introduction:
  - Conclude the workshop with an introduction to a comprehensive training manual designed to serve as a practical guide.
  - The manual includes step-by-step instructions, case studies, and adaptable templates for incorporating World Café approach into service-learning initiatives.
- 7. Q&A and Open Discussion: Engage in a question-and-answer session to address specific concerns and queries.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>University College of Teacher Education Vienna.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>University College of Teacher Education Vienna.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> University College of Teacher Education Vienna.

- Aldred, R. (2011). From community participation to organizational therapy? World Café and Appreciative Inquiry as research methods. Community Development Journal, 46(1), 57–71. https://doi.org/10.1093/cdj/bsp039
- Berman, S. (2015). Service Learning: A Guide to Planning, Implementing, and Assessing Student Projects. United States: Skyhorse Publishing. Bringle, R.G. & Hatcher, J.A. (1996) Implementing Service Learning in Higher Education. Higher Education. 16. https://digitalcommons.unomah a.edu/slcehighered/16
- Brown, J., Isaacs, D. & Margulies, N. (2005). The World Café: Shaping Our Futures Through Conversations That Matter. San Francisco: Berrett-Koehler Publishers, Inc.
- European Association Service Learning in Higher Education (EASLHE) (2023). Definition of Service-Learning. Available under: European Observatory of Service-Learning in Higher Education EOSLHE (25.05.2024)
- Jorgenson J., Steier, F. (2013). Frames, framing, and designed conversational processes lessons from the World Café. The Journal of Applied Behavioral Science, 49(3), 388–405.
- The World Café Community Foundation (2015). A Quick Reference Guide for Hosting World Café. Available under: Cafe-To-Go-Revised.pdf (theworldcafe.com) (visited on 25.05.2024)
- World Café Europe (2022). Different types of World Cafés. Available under: https://www.worldcafe.eu/en/world-cafe-approach/ (visited 25.05.2024)



# Unravelling the Rationales, Responses and Roles of practitioners when embedding Service Learning – A reflective practice workshop

Tijsma, Geertje<sup>1</sup>, de Groot, Laura<sup>2</sup>, Demeijer, Frederique<sup>3</sup>, Zweekhorst, Marjolein<sup>4</sup>

### Conference track: Processes of service-learning institutionalization

**Keywords:** institutional logics, engaged education, engaged practitioner responses, institutional complexity, roles

#### **Abstract:**

Higher education institutes (HEIs) increasingly aim to embed (community) service learning practices (Tijsma et al., 2023). However, the rationales (motivations and behaviour) behind embedding service learning can be divergent – both on the individual practitioner level and on the institutional (policy) level (Compagnucci & Spigarelli, 2020; Lounsbury & Pollack, 2001; Taylor & Kahlke, 2017).

In this interactive session, we take a closer look at the various rationales and make you, as a practitioner, more aware of your own rationales in relation to embedding service learning within your institutional context, by considering questions such as: What rationales drive you as a practitioner, researcher, or policy maker to embed service learning practices? And how does this (dis)align with institutional practices? What potential tensions can arise in relation to your own service learning practice? And how can you best deal with or respond to these tensions? We give meaning to this workshop based on the findings of a recently published paper (Tijsma et al., 2024). In this paper we describe different rationales, responses and roles of individual practitioners in relation to embedding service learning.

- 1) Individual assignment on Rationales (20 minutes) As a first step in this workshop participants will fill in the form including statements about the role of HEIs that connect to state, market, corporate, community or professional logics (a form will be shared during the workshop). You fill in the handout; score statement from 1 5, rank the 3 statements that they deem most important, discuss in pairs your scores and rankings and finally share about your discussion plenary.
- 2) Short presentation on rationales, responses and roles (10 minutes) After the forms have been filled out and discussed we give a short presentation in which we explain how the statements can be linked to different logics. Logics refer to the prevailing sets of beliefs, values, norms, and practices that shape organizations' behavior and decision-making. They provide a shared understanding of what is considered appropriate and legitimate in the field, guiding the actions and interactions of organizations, professionals, and other stakeholders (Besharov and Smith, 2014). Specifically, we distinguish professional logics, market logics, corporate logics, state logics and community logics (Cai and Mountford, 2022; Thornton et al., 2012). We explicate



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Athena Institute, Vrije Universiteit.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Athena Institute, Vrije Universiteit.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Athena Institute, Vrije Universiteit.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Athena Institute, Vrije Universiteit.

- how tensions can arise between individual practice and institutional structures when logics to not align or even conflict and describe different roles that practitioners can take when this happens (Pache and Santos, 2013; Shea et al., 2023; Tijsma et al., 2024) (see also appendix B).
- 3) Reflection on Responses and Roles (25 minutes) After the presentation we ask to reflect on the following questions in small groups of approx. 5 people using another handout that will be provided during the workshop reflecting on questions such as; What are your drivers and rationales (for embedding service learning)? How do you experience the (institutional) support in this? And do you recognize yourself in one (or more) of the responses and roles we just presented, or do you use a different approach? If so, what kind of approach?
- 4) Closing (5 minutes) Finally we take 5 minutes to very briefly share amongst the groups the most important topics of discussion. We allow you to take the handouts with you after the workshop. We hope this workshop will provide you with more insights on your own positionality within your institute and how you might deal with some (perhaps unavoidable) tensions.

- Besharov, M. L., & Smith, W. K. (2014). Multiple institutional logics in organizations: Explaining their varied nature and implications. Academy of management review, 39(3), 364-381
- Cai, Y., & Mountford, N. (2021). Institutional orders analysis in higher education research. Studies in Higher Education, 1-25.
- Compagnucci, L., & Spigarelli, F. (2020). The Third Mission of the HEI: A systematic literature review on potentials and constraints. Technological Forecasting and Social Change, 161, 120284.
- Lounsbury, M., & Pollack, S. (2001). Institutionalizing civic engagement: Shifting logics and the cultural repackaging of service-learning in US higher education. Institution, 8(2), 319-339.
- Pache, A. C., & Santos, F. (2013). Embedded in hybrid contexts: How individuals in organizations respond to competing institutional logics. In Institutional logics in action, part B (pp. 3-35). Emerald Group Publishing Ltd.
- Shea, L. M., Harkins, D., Ray, S., & Grenier, L. I. (2023). How Critical is Service-Learning Implementation?. Journal of Experiential Education, 46(2), 197-214.
- Taylor, A., & Kahlke, R. (2017). Institutional orders and Community Service-Learning in Higher Education. Canadian Journal of Higher Education, 47(1), 137-152.
- Thornton, P. H., Ocasio, W., & Lounsbury, M. (2012). The institutional orders perspective: A new approach to culture, structure, and process. Oxford University Press on Demand.
- Tijsma, G., Demeijer, F., Zweekhorst, M., & Urias, E. (2024, January). Unraveling institutional complexity in engaged education practices: rationales, responses, and roles of individual practitioners. In Frontiers in Education (Vol. 8, p. 1310337). Frontiers Media SA.
- Tijsma, G., Urias, E., & Zweekhorst, M. (2023). Embedding engaged education through community service learning in HEI: a review. Educational Research, 65(2), 143-169.



# Community Need at the Heart of Service Learning/Community Engaged Learning (SL/CEL)

Cowell, Hannah<sup>1</sup>, Lyons-Lewis, Andrea<sup>2</sup>

## Conference track: Processes of service-learning institutionalization

Keywords: coproduction, reciprocity, strategy, models, sharing

#### **Abstract:**

"Service-learning advocates an opposing epistemology: a need for knowledge to be local and co-created with (rather than for) the community" (d'Arlach et al., 2009, p.5)

"Service-learning for us is less a pedagogical practice and more an active partnership with the community working on the pressing issues in our city" (Burton et al., 2019, p.90)

Service Learning (SL), also known as Community Engaged Learning (CEL), offers an opportunity for us to collaborate with our community and ensure that our curriculum is relevant to the changing needs of our society. It also allows us to challenge the power dynamics of knowledge that exist in our society and realign these for reciprocal collaborations and outcomes. Mutual benefit is a key value of SL/CEL but, in order to truly achieve this, it is essential that community need is at the core of our projects and is considered in equal measure to academic and student need right from curriculum-design phase. How do we foster an environment where we can codesign with our community? How do we ensure the community voice is heard and its needs are represented throughout university curricula? What models of SL/CEL exist in different parts of Europe and how are these designed and implemented with community need at their core?

We invite colleagues to join us at this workshop ready to share and learn from each other's experiences of:

- 1. Incorporating community need into the curriculum through SL/CEL whilst ensuring we align with the various strategic directions of our institutions
- 2. Different models of SL/CEL that exist at our own institutions and how these harness mutual benefit and reciprocity

We will engage in activities designed to allow us to visualise the varying strategic directions of our institutions that SL/CEL contributes to, how community need is considered as a key component and to learn and inspire others through discussing existing and possible models of SL/CEL. We will use presentations to set the scene and provide examples, then colleagues will participate in round-table discussions to contribute to a mind map, establishing a collaborative approach to sharing knowledge and best-practice.

This workshop contributes largely to the overarching theme of the conference through encouraging collaboration and sharing knowledge to enhance our practice and continue to positively contribute to our communities and our shared objectives. We hope to share and learn



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> University of Bristol.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Nottingham Trent University.

how we can ensure community need is at the core of our work in SL/CEL both for our European colleagues and to bring back to our work at the University of Bristol (UoB) and Nottingham Trent University (NTU). Embedding mutually beneficial SL/CEL projects in the curriculum is a driver for both Hannah and Andrea's work. Hannah's work at UoB focuses on collaborating with and supporting academic staff on curriculum design to embed SL/CEL that aligns with key parts of the university's strategies and frameworks. Andrea leads a large service learning module at NTU with a team of 15 colleagues and seeks to work in partnership with communities in line with the university's civic mission.

#### **References:**

Burton, S., Hutchings, S., Lundy, C. & Lyons-Lewis, A. (2019). Evaluating the complexity of service-learning practices: Lessons from and for complex systems theory. Journal of Higher Education Outreach and Engagement, 23(3), 89-101.

d'Arlach, L., Sánchez, B., & Feuer, R. (2009). Voices from the community: A case for reciprocity in service-learning. Michigan Journal of Community Service Learning, 16(1), 5-16.

